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CHAIRMAN’S

STATEMENT
¥ F B 5

I present herewith the annual report of
New Universe Environmental Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”)

for the year ended 31 December 2023.

FANEUZHHTFRAREBERLA ([EX 2
A)REMBE (MBI FAEE)BEE=F
—=F T+t A=t RUFEZFR-

Dear Shareholders, BN AR R ¢

As we reflect on the past year, it is clear that 2023 presented a [EIEBREHN—F PR (LHEIHARN) D
unique set of challenges for the hazardous waste disposal sector GEREMEEITER Z\ —F R Y
in China, particularly in Jiangsu Province. The market dynamics —ZRFEFHEHKE - MiGHF AR - EEB
were characterised by intense competition and overcapacity, which | - T A[ & G EHEE BE T[E - SEK
inevitably led to a decline in handling prices and a surge in operational ~ A$AFH - KEBRFIFERIBINRMZET N ©

costs that the Group’s financial performance mirrored these market

conditions.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's revenue from @E:%:Ei—f—:ﬂi —BIEFE K
continuing operations decreased by 21.4% to HK$405,612,000 as &£ B KEFELLEBEN KRB EFE T K
compared to the previous year, and the Group recorded a post-tax loss  21. 4%:.:405 612,000/ 7T - i B2 & £ ) )%
of HK$35,767,000 as compared to the net profit of HK$4,564,000 in 7 #4,564,0005% 7T 8 tt, + 7 £ @ 413 &4 12
previous year. fE51835,767,0005% 7T °
Adjusted EBITDA in 2023 decreased by 28.2% to HK$82,450,000 =% = =4 1N 8 ZEBITDA T [£28.2% %
(2022: HK$114,899,000). 82,450,000 7L (ZZF = =4 : 114,899,000
BIT) o
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the loss attributable toowners HE - - =4+ _-_A=+—BItFE "
of the Company was HK$33,118,000 of which HK$28,582,000 was  7~/A & A A JE/H 518 /533,118,00008 7T
arisen from continuing operations (2022: profits of HK$7,273,000 of X 1 #51828,582,0007% 7 5 B EE SR
which comprised a profit of HK$19,946,000 derived from continuing 1 & 4 (:;f:_i Y@ #)7,273,0007%8 7T
operations). HR B RO A AT B A s
19,946,000/ 7T) °
Equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 December W-ZZE-=F+ - A=+—H ' X a7 #%
2023 was HK$908,251,000 (2022: HK$961,677,000). Total & A FE{5 % A& A908,251,000/8 T (=&
bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023 was = —4 :961,677,000/87C) - NR_E_=F
HK$44,000,000 (2022: HK$97,959,000). Cash and cash equivalents +—-A=+—0 ' KAEEWNRTESHEEA
of the Group as at 31 December 2023 was HK$186,365,000 (2022: 44,000,000/ 7t (— & — — 4 : 97,959,000
HK$270,279,000). BL) R-ZE-=F+=-—A=+—H0 &K
SEMES NERIEEIEE R186,365,000
BT (ZZTZ =4 : 270,279,000 7T) °
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Final Dividend

On 22 March 2024, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.0016 per share out of the retained profits of the Company as
at 31 December 2023 for the year then ended to express gratitudes
for the continued supports of the shareholders, which is subject to
the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “AGM"). Upon shareholders’ approval at the AGM, the
final dividend is expected to be payable on or about 31 July 2024 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on 7
June 2024.

Business Prospects

As we look ahead, our business prospects need to be adjusted
considering the challenges we faced in 2023. We have anticipated
a stable business environment and a revival in market demand,
notwithstanding the reality proved to be more complex. In response
to these challenges, besides we have decided to disposed of the
operating segment of environmental equipment construction and
installation services, we have also temporarily halt operations in
certain loss-making units commencing the second half of 2023. These
strategies would allow us to reassess our capacity and reallocate
resources more effectively. In 2024, we will be exploring opportunities
for business restructuring to enhance our operational efficiency
and financial performance. Our commitment to stable performance
targets, corporate governance, and environmental governance
remains strong. We recognise the need for a more dynamic approach
to navigate the evolving market landscape. Despite the uncertainties
posed by various economic factors, we remain optimistic about the
sustainability of our environmental-related business in the long run.

Acknowledgment

In recognition of the challenges faced in 2023, | extend my sincere
appreciation to our valued customers, suppliers, business partners,
bankers, and shareholders for their unwavering support. | also
wish to express my heartfelt gratitude to our dedicated employees,
esteemed colleagues, and the management team for their tireless
efforts despite the unsatisfactory results. As we move into the new
year, we acknowledge the need for improvement and are committed
to working diligently towards better results. | remain steadfast in
my commitment to guide the Group towards a future of profitability
and sustainability. Together, we will face all challenges head-on and
become more robust, learning from our past experiences.

oL/

l\_“-—

XI Yu
ZE
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

FIERITEAREL

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B B # E

Revenue from continuing operations down 21.4% to HK$405,612,000.

REFELCLEK ZWET %21.4%ZE405,612,0005% 7T °

Loss attributable to owners of the Company was HK$33,118,000 in
2023 versus profit of HK$7,273,000 in 2022.

U —F=-—FRB%7,273,0008 T  R=B-=ZFAQRAEFTAELEE
#33,118,00058 ¢ °

Adjusted EBITDA down 28.2% to HK$82,450,000.
KA KEBITDAT %28.2% £82,450,00058 7T ©

Equity attributable to owners of the Company was HK$908,251,000
at 31 December 2023.
REZBZ=Z5+ZA=+—-8 ' X2 AHEH AEHERZE%908,251,000/ 7T °

Bank borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$44,000,000 at
31 December 2023 reduced by 55.1%.

?é:%:zfﬁL:H =+—R8 ' FAREHRTEER44,000,000/8 5T -
£55.1% °

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to
HK$186,365,000 at 31 December 2023.
RZBZZF+ZAZ+-HB FEENREREHAREEE S
186,365,0005& 7T °

Basic loss per share attributable to owners of the Company was HK
cents 1.09 in 2023 versus basic earnings per share of HK cents 0.24 in 2022.
HUH—B-__FEREARBFN0.24EI RZB-=ZFEXAAEHAENL
BREABER1.09EA -

The Board resolved to declare a final dividend of HK cents 0.16 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2023.
E?E{ij&ﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁé:gzzﬁﬁ-zﬁ ST-HLEFEZRERESR
0.167 °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
EEE B RSN

OPERATING PROFIT* ADJUSTED EBITDA BASIC LOSS/EARNINGS PER SHARE
R > KFAEWEBITDA BRELXER BRI
(Thousand HK$ F&tT) (Thousand HK$ F&T) (HK cent &4l
= B
2022
Mo
(o))
N o o
Ty} 0
N <
o -
202 2022
023 0 o e
2023 2022

SEGMENT REVENUE
7w ER

2023

‘ Provision of environmental treatment and disposal
services for industrial and medical wastes

RETIEFEBEEMRRALEREERYE

. Provision of environmental plating sewage treatment services
in Eco-plating Specialised Zone

RIRREFEE N RERREFTKEERE

. Equity investments in plastic materials dyeing business

PRABEBHRARE

% Derived from continuing operations

REFEEEES

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE
BRERE

(HK cent &)

2023

2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE AR DN

el L T ]

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, the overall performance of the Group was still down-turning
as compared to that in 2022 amidst the continuous impact of
changing local market demand of handling hazardous waste
discharged.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations decreased by 21.4% to HK$405,612,000
(2022: HK$516,141,000) and recorded a net loss of HK$31,231,000
(2022: net profit of HK$17,237,000) from continuing operations.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the loss attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$33,118,000 (2022: attributable profit of
HK$7,273,000).

Equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 December
2023 decreased to HK$908,251,000 (2022: HK$961,677,000). Total
bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023 decreased to
HK$44,000,000 (2022: HK$97,959,000). Cash and cash equivalents
of the Group as at 31 December 2023 decreased to HK$186,365,000
(2022: HK$270,279,000).

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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TR E51831,231,0008 T (Z T - —F : 4f
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NEIHEA AFEATE B 533,118,000 7T (=
T —F : E(REFI7,273,00087T) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Environmental Treatment and Disposal Services for

Industrial and Medical Wastes

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company’s subsidiaries
had collected from external customers for treatment and disposal in
aggregate of approximately 96,686 metric tonnes (2022: 100,096
metric tonnes) of different hazardous and non-hazardous waste from
various cities in Jiangsu Province, and the total segment revenue from
the provision of environmental treatment and disposal services for
industrial and medical wastes was approximately HK$272,671,000
(2022: HK$373,494,000).

2 8 & 5 i

ITXLEFRBEYRREENEE

AR 7%

@ﬁ T_=F+-_A=+—HULEFE XK
NEIH B A B BT 8 E % W # MR

EPWERENMEES HE%96,686 A0 (=

T~ — 4 100,096 2 ) ZIERH M IEBK

BEYMER I ENEREMRREEREE
R 2 o b Uz 4B BE 4 5272,67 1,000 7T
(ZZT =4 : 373,494,000/ 7T) °

2023 2022
—E-= - —
Waste Waste
collected Segment collected Segment
and disposed revenue and disposed revenue
KEREEREY aEE BEREBEEY 7 EBU A
metric tonnes HK$'000 metric tonnes HK$'000
N TERT N FET
Hazardous industrial waste fL % T EY) 87,410 227,168 82,553 287,654
Regulated medical waste EHIBEREY 8,344 44,046 14,428 82,973
General industrial solid —ﬂxliﬁg

waste and others EEY K B 932 1,457 3,115 2,867
Total 4zt 96,686 272,671 100,096 373,494

The Group holds interests in two associates, with 30% equity interest
in Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited* (“Zhenjiang Xin
Qu"”) which was licensed for landfilling 20,000 metric tonnes of
hazardous industrial waste per annum, and 30% equity interest in
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal Company
Limited (“NCIP") which was licensed for collection, incineration and
disposal of 38,000 metric tonnes of hazardous industrial waste per
annum in the PRC. The attributable results of Zhenjiang Xin Qu and
NCIP are accounted for on equity method and classified under the
operating segment of environmental treatment and disposal services
for industrial and medical wastes of the Group. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group shared a net profit of HK$656,000
from Zhenjiang Xin Qu (2022: shared a net profit of HK$2,209,000)
and shared a net loss of HK$10,072,000 (2022: shared a net loss of
HK$9,459,000) from NCIP respectively.

REBAMEBE AR SEED  RETH
EEEEERGERAR ([EIFER]DH
B30% D EREAELBTEXRKFER
BEMEEBRAR (BRAXF] FH30%
%é’%%%#Tﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ P TEEDE
20,0007 M8 - B EET A RNPEAKS
W%*%%&EEE@I%%%E@%@%
“@ cHETHTRRERRFHEMLFEEIRE
BEANRUR D EEARSB T EREZEEY
RREEREENKCENH LT HEZE
=+ A=t—HBULFE AEEHF
FEAG$ET ¥ 12 69 45 F)656,00008 T (—Z T = —
& AR A FI2,209,0008 7T) B ELE R KX
FHEEE10,072,0008 T (- —F :
15 % E5189,459,000/8 7T) °

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA

9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
L EERPT R

The Group holds 65% equity interest in a sino-foreign joint venture, ZAREEFEHRINE SDEIMNEHTFLYE 2
Liuzhou Xinyu Rongkai Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited* EWMEREEER AT ([FTFE£LE])) B965%%
("Xinyu Rongkai”), which owned the capacity for collection, # ZARETREEFENMNESKE %
incineration and disposal of 20,000 metric tonnes of hazardous & - lEE G E20,000 &l T X EYHNE
industrial waste per annum in Liuzhou, Guangxi Province, the PRC.  §t - NEFE(FF F LI EBEIREZEA
The attributable results of Xinyu Rongkai is accounted for on equity BEUANRDIEEAEEB T X L EEEYIRRE
method and classified under the operating segment of environmental ENEBEHKEL DL N - HE T =%
treatment and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes +—-—A=+—H & E  ~A&E@EE(EEIE
of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group 11,726,000 0 (= E = —F : E{5 F 5B
shared a net loss of HK$11,726,000 (2022: shared a net loss of 13,044,000/ 7T) °

HK$13,044,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the loss margin (pre-tax) HZE-_ZE-_=#F+_-_A=+—HILEE &
of the Group’s operating segment of environmental treatment and SEEIEH T ¥ NEEEDIRRERENEER
disposal services for industrial and medical wastes was approximately fEHEE D LT AIEEBERL AT 5% (ZF
7.5% (2022: profit margin (pre-tax) of 5.5%). ZZF  BRATAEERASS5%) °

REBEMR  ARERRTENEREYR
REENREERE 2 EFAIENRIENEE
Riez HtamIBee DT

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s combined capacity of
the licensed waste treatment and disposal facilities for the provision
of environmental treatment and disposal services for industrial and
medical wastes was summarised as follows:

2023 2022
—EB-= = =
Annual Annual
capacity capacity
Note metric tonnes metric tonnes
FRBR FRER
B N NI
Subsidiaries in the PRC: RHPEIMELT :
Licensed hazardous waste TEET AT fE bR BE K I
incineration facilities B 135,400 135,400
Licensed epidemic medical waste BRI B EBEEY
incineration facilities R (ii) 10,490 6,080
Licensed epidemic medical waste R Al ER G BEED
detoxification treatment facilities mELRERIE 3,300 3,300
Associated companies in the PRC: RPBEBENR :
Licensed hazardous waste TEFT A fE b BE W I I
incineration facilities B 38,000 38,000
Licensed hazardous waste TEFT A fo b BE W HE 8
landfill facilities B 20,000 20,000
Joint venture in the PRC: RPBEEERE:
Licensed hazardous waste BB EE I
incineration facilities 3531 (iii) 15,880 20,000
Combined licensed waste EFTENEER
treatment and disposal facilities EERESHE (i) 223,070 222,780

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The combined capacity of the licensed waste treatment and disposal
facilities represents the total effective treatment and disposal quantity
of hazardous waste allowable to handle under the valid operating
permission licences with contribution to the results of the Group as at
the end of the reporting period calculated on annualised basis.

A new operating licence has been granted to a subsidiary located at
Sugian, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for incineration of regulated medical
waste with an annual capacity of 5,000 metric tonnes in February 2023.

The operating licence of Xinyu Rongkai for collection, incineration
and disposal of hazardous industrial waste with an annual capacity of
20,000 metric tonnes has lapsed in October 2023 pending approval for
renewal, and the facilities of the joint venture is pending governmental
approval to resume operation.

The combined licensed treatment and disposal facilities above does not
include the hazardous waste landfill facilities with an annual capacity of
18,000 metric tonnes constructed and owned by a subsidiary situated
at Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, of which the licence lapsed in
November 2017 and is pending the governmental approval to resume
operation.

e
=
&

—~
=

(i)

(iii)

=g
_—

2 E S W koA

FERFRI R R IE MBR B AR 2 G A BT B
NERFELCELEFERRERRYAE
EXEEEMZEREEFUREARINE
BERENZENRENEELRE -

RIBE-=F - AURPEIHEEED
N—RXMBARRSEFREREXE
BE R 5,000 R MiBE h 2 FTAE & FT A 7% o

FFLYTBEEEFIRE RERES
Bl T 2EEY20,0002 RN ELHFaED
RZZZ=F+AKY BEHFBNEE  Z
BEDERNLREEFEFILEHJIREES -

T EFITEEREEZHERENRRE
MR IHEAER TR —KMNBARE
RN FRIE S 518,000 MM fE [ B
YIRS AR AT A ER S
—tF+— AR AERFHE S AT
BiEE -

“EFEFER HFERFREEERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEESW NN

‘-"/

Environmental Plating Sewage Treatment Services in BIREHEFEXEMNIBREEISKE
Eco-plating Specialised Zone B IR 7%

For the year ended 31 December 2023, total revenue from the HZE-_ZT-_=F+_A=+—HIFE &
operating segment of provision of environmental plating sewage MR EIHEEIT 2 BREEEZER
treatment services and provision of leasing facilities and related ([FREAETEHRERE ) NIERRETIEISKE
utilities in the eco-plating specialised zone owned by the Group BiR &I 4 S5 M ELMEEE & RS MK
situated at Zhenjiang, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (the “Eco-plating & ZFULZS %4 /5132,941,000/8 0 (=&
Specialised Zone”) was approximately HK$132,941,000 (2022: = —4F : 142,647,000/ 7T) + % 2B & 31 F
HK$142,647,000) and the segment profit margin (pre-tax) was EZEHA11.9%(ZFEZ_F :21.6%) °
approximately 11.9% (2022: 21.6%).

Segment revenue

pan-idl €
2023 2022
—E_-= —E-—
HK’000 HK"000
FHET FET
Industrial sewage treatment and IHS5KEER
providing public utilities and REAAEER
management services BIERE 100,481 108,323
Leasing of factory buildings and facilities B k&2 HE 32,460 34,324
Total #Et 132,941 142,647
2023 2022
=F-= —F-=
Average gross floor area of factory EHEEIRERS REEZ
buildings and facilities available for EHREmEmE (FHK)
leasing (square metres) 101,034 101,034
Average utilisation rate of buildings B N 5% b 2 P A A R
and facilities 90.7 % 96.0%
Plating sewage handled by the SRR )5KEERATEEEESK
centralised sewage treatment plant (BF A M)
(metric tonnes per annum) 330,615 348,939
Average utilisation rate of sewage ERKEEBERE N 2 FAFAE
treatment capacity 20.0% 21.1%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Eco-plating Specialised Zone has a total land area of
approximately 180,000 square metres, in which, office building,
factory buildings, and centralised filtering plants were built.
Currently, the office building and centralised sewage filtering and
sludge treatment plants were built with a total gross floor area of
19,560 square metres, and factory buildings and facilities with a
total gross area of 106,807 square metres and available for leasing
to manufacturing clients which undertake their plating-related
operations inside the Eco-plating Specialised Zone. The Group owns
22 factory buildings in the Eco-plating Specialised Zone which are
leased by 35 (2022: 38) manufacturing clients as at 31 December
2023. The Group operates a centralised plating sewage treatment
plant, a centralised industrial sludge treatment plant and customised
facilities equipped for all clients in the zone.

On 31 May 2023, the Group has entered into a plant construction and
lease contract to construct a plant tailored for a new foreign client
(that principally engaged in surface engineering and coating of metals
and plastics) in the Eco-plating Specialised Zone with a site area of
approximately 15 mu (approximately 9,900 square meters) and lease
the plant built to the client for an initial lease term of five years.
Thereunder the contract, the lessee might decide whether to purchase
the land and the plant under lease by submitting a written intent one
year before the end of the lease term at a maximum consideration for
the possible transfer of approximately RMB47,450,000 (approximately
HK$52,195,000) which is subject to further negotiations between the
relevant parties by the end of the lease term. The possible transfer
of land and plant to the new client at the end of the lease term
thereunder the plant construction and lease contract constituted a
discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules. Details of the possible transaction are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 30 May 2023 and 5 June
2023.

Investments in Plastic Materials Dyeing Business
The Group holds the equity interests in three manufacturing entities,

which principally engaged in plastic materials dyeing in the PRC, as
equity investments. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the profit
margins (pre-tax) of Suzhou New Huamei Plastics Company Limited
("Suzhou New Huamei”), Danyang New Huamei Plastics Company
Limited (“Danyang New Huamei”) and Qingdao Zhongxin Huamei
Plastics Company Limited (“Qingdao Huamei”) were 0.7%, 2.3% and
4.2% (2022: 2.4%, 2.1% and 2.3%) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, total dividend received by
the Group (before PRC dividend withholding tax) in relation to the
results of Suzhou New Huamei, Danyang New Huamei and Qingdao
Huamei in previous year was approximately HK$3,945,000 (2022:
HK$4,249,000).

2 8 & 5 i

BRAREEFER 2B EE4 A180,000
FHA BEREAZAENHLE IKREEK
SERAFRBER - WA REPXFKB
R K5 e B TR M 48 SR T AR A 5119,560
FRrA IRERAREZBEEAEAR
106,807 F Kk A EFHEIRREHE S
XENKEBEERAEB  REXE, oK
EERTRREEZXEREAEE22ETKE
B RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H " ¥MH35
R(ZEZ-_F 1 38R)WEERFHA - &
EEGEEAREERANMERT P MEMNER
REESKEER  SHFAILESTEEEMR
K TE I 5 e

RZTEZ=FRA=T—8 AEEET—
ERMERERAEAR @ BHHNIINEERS (X
ENECBAEBNREIERER)EE
—EBARRREESEROEE GH0ERE
#1588 (499,900 5 K) + W KB RE
MeEzErR  VHRHAEHRART - BREZ
AR ABAAEREHAR —FRERE
EAEMREELBEEREL M RME  ATAE
ERNRERENAAREA47,450,0007T (49
52,195,000/ 70) BN E & RAT B E
EFE—SHE ZBEREREESRIE
TEHEHERRAIERK Tt RBREERS
MEP  BXEMRAEI4EETARAN
ATHE x%o&ﬁT%Q%z%FEﬁ#
RARIHBA_Z-_=FAA=THEZ=
::ix\HEEIZM*ﬁ

PRIAEERIEE

REBBEE-MEISETRANREBRLEE
B2RECENBREEBRARE HEZ
E_ZF+ A=+ —HIEFEE  HMNEE
EBHRERAR ([FHMNFESE])  FEHE
EZBRERAR([AEHEX)REESFTH
EEXBHARAR((ESEE]) BT ATFE
KABNE0.T% ~ 2.3%R42% (B - —4F:
2.4% ~ 2.1%K%2.3%) °

BHEZT-_=-F+-A=+—RHLFE &
SEWINBEBAHMNTES  AEHEXRS
SEZIAFEERBBTE CRIOBKRHARER
EFBHFR) #9/453,945,0008 L (ZFE ==
4,249,000/ 70) °

TECCZEER FFRAREBEBRAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BN EEVEL

Disposal of operating segment in Environmental
Equipment Construction and Installation Services

On 31 July 2023, the Group has entered into an agreement to sell the
100% equity interest in Jiangsu Yu Xin Environmental Engineering
Management Company Limited* (the “Target Company”) which
was principally engaged in environmental equipment construction
and installation services at a consideration of RMB12,000,000
(approximately HK$13,074,000) (the “Disposal”). Upon completion of
the Disposal in August 2023, the Group ceased to hold any interest
in the Target Company which financial results would no longer be
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
The Disposal constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

As the purchaser of the Target Company is owned as to 97% and 3%
by Mr. HE Ling Yun, an executive director and a general manager of
the Target Company and Ms. SHI Zhao Xia, a vice general manager
of the Target Company, respectively, the Disposal constituted a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. By virtue of Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules, since
(i) Mr. HE Ling Yun is a connected person at the subsidiary level,
(i) the Board has approved the Disposal; and (iii) the independent
non-executive Directors have confirmed that the terms of the Disposal
are fair and reasonable and the Disposal is on normal commercial
terms or better and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole, the Disposal is only subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements, and is exempt from the circular,
independent financial advice and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

By divesting the loss-making operation, the Company aims to
reallocate resources towards the development of environmental
treatment and disposal services for hazardous industrial and medical
wastes, as well as operations in the Eco-plating Specialised Zone in
Jiangsu Province, the PRC. This strategic decision is in line with the
Company’s goal of optimising resource allocation, reducing losses,
and improving profitability to drive overall group performance. Details
of the Disposal are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 July 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
experienced a decline in operational revenue where the market
demand for hazardous waste incineration treatment services
fluctuated in different cities of the PRC. In response, the Group
made the strategic decision in 2023 to divest from the environmental
equipment construction and installation services sector and
temporarily halt operations in certain loss-making units. Despite
these challenges, the Group remains steadfast in its commitment to
uphold national environmental protection standards and maintain its
waste processing facilities. Entering 2024, the Group is dedicated to
ensuring the timely renewal of hazardous waste operating licences for
its subsidiaries, with minimal downtime for necessary adjustments to
the incineration facilities.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s four subsidiaries in the PRC
maintained an incineration capacity of 135,400 metric tonnes per
annum. The centralised sewage filtering system in the Eco-plating
Specialised Industrial Zone and its sewage filtering plant has been kept
fine-tuning to good conditions to well accommodate the current 35
professional plating clients with leasable factory floor area of 101,034
square meters.

Despite the uncertainties and challenges in the business environment,
the Group will persist in its focus on environmental-related business.
It will prudently explore opportunities for business restructuring
and industrial upgrading to enhance the sustainability of its
environmental operations. The Group will also consider reactivating
certain loss-making operating units once the market conditions are
reinvigorated.

The Group is committed to upholding corporate governance practices
and environmental governance, ensuring the smooth and stable
operation of the entire Group.

Barring any unforeseeable uncertainties arising from the hazardous
waste treatment section and local economies in the PRC, the Group
remains optimistic about the future and is committed to improving its
operations, returning to profitability, and maintaining a strong focus
on environmental protection and waste management.

2 8 & 5 i
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEES®

FINANCIAL REVIEW

5

The summary of annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023
together with corresponding figures for 2022 is presented as follows:

Summary of annual results

FA 75 [

BHE-_ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HItFEZ%2
— T FZHAEHT)

FEEME CGER
25T

PEXEME

=

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+T—HLEE

2023 2022 Change
—=E-= —E-= beikg)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 %
M THExT FAET
(Restated)
(e&E3))
Continuing operations EiERE R
Revenue from environmental THERBEEREYNIRRERIE
treatment and disposal services N EERGE 2
for industrial and medical wastes W zs 1) 272,671 373,494 -27.0
Revenue from environmental TETSKRRESE - BBE -
industrial sewage treatment, BB MHHE
utilities, management services, TREHE
and leasing out factory facilities 2 Wz 1(ii) 132,941 142,647 -6.8
Total Revenue a4 za 1 405,612 516,141 -21.4
Average gross profit margin EHERR
(in percentage) (Ao 2 16.1 23.0 -30.0
Other revenue H At Uz 3 3,945 4,249 -7.2
Other income HA U A 4 6,781 11,203 -39.5
Gain on disposal of interest in HE - B AL
a subsidiary & 5 = 27,303 -
Distribution costs PR 6 (19,263)  (22,090) -12.8
Administrative expenses TR 7 (49,771) (58,572) -15.0
Other operating expenses Hi & & 8 (21,506) (20,909) +2.9
Reversal of impairment loss/ JFE U BR 2 2 R B B 1B
(impairment loss) on trade B8 CRERIE)
receivables, net TR AR 9 15,672 (2,185) -817.3
Finance income BE WA 10 5,469 5,420 +0.9
Finance costs A AR 11 (3,780) (5,683) -33.5
Share of results of associates SIHEE R R 2 EA 12 (9,416) (7,250) +29.9
Share of results of a joint venture SIE—FREEDEEE 13 (11,726) (13,044) -10.1
Income tax FRrign 14 (13,053)  (20,033) -34.8
Discontinued operation DRI REER
Loss from discontinued operation HE DK R TR R 15 (4,536) (12,673) -64.2
Net (loss)/profit for the year REE (BE) #F 16 (35,767) 4,564 -883.7
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners — ZNQ B#EH A &L
of the Company (&18) /&% F 16 (33,118) 7,273 -555.4
Basic (LPS)/EPS BRER (B8B)
(in HK cents) ax GBIl 16 (1.09) 0.24 -554.2
Diluted (LPS)/ gREE (BH8)
EPS (in HK cents) ax &Il 16 (1.09) 0.24 -554.2
Adjusted EBITDA 4 EEEBITDA 17 82,450 114,899 -28.2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
& =

Summary of annual results by semi-annual cycle

R owm Koo AT

REFHERPI >N FXEME

1H 2023 2H 2023 Total 2023
—E_=F ZE_=F —E-=8%
F¥F T¥F et
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F 5 FET FHET FE T
(Restated)
(&E7)
Continuing operations BHERSEER
Revenue from environmental TENBEEFEYHRREE
treatment and disposal services FEBERG 2
for industrial and medical wastes g 1(3i) 138,808 133,863 272,671
Revenue from environmental TESKRREER BE-
industrial sewage treatment, EERS & EE
utilities, management services, T W% Tt
and leasing out factory facilities 2 Wz 1(ii) 61,830 71,111 132,941
Total Revenue W e g 1 200,638 204,974 405,612
Average gross profit margin T ER =
(in percentage) (Botk) 2 12.6 19.6 16.1
Other revenue E b U 7 3 3,945 = 3,945
Other income H At e A 4 2,518 4,263 6,781
Distribution costs 7 BN 6 (10,121) (9,142)  (19,263)
Administrative expenses TEHX 7 (22,833)  (26,938)  (49,771)
Other operating expenses Hibig 8 (13,304) (8,202)  (21,506)
Reversal of impairment loss JE U8 BR R 2 LB
on trade receivables, net EEE B - JFRR 9 = 15,672 15,672
Finance income & YA 10 3,537 1,932 5,469
Finance costs A& KA 11 (2,051) (1,729) (3,780)
Share of results of associates DR E N R 2 EE 12 (4,424) (4,992) (9.416)
Share of results of a joint venture DIE—REELEZLHEE 13 (6,110) (5,616)  (11,726)
Income tax FriS % 14 (6,400) (6,653)  (13,053)
Discontinued operation ERIEREXER
(Loss)/profit from discontinued WEDR | FREERE
operation (E548) /35 F) 15 (7.270) 2,734 (4,536)
Net loss for the period HAERTE 16 (29,977) (5,790)  (35,767)
(Loss)/profit attributable to RRATEHEB AR
owners of the Company (EB8]) & F 16 (33,165) 47 (33,118)
Basic LPS (in HK cents) TR EAREE GE) 16 (1.09) (0.00) (1.09)
Diluted LPS (in HK cents) FhEgEE GBI 16 (1.09) (0.00) (1.09)
Adjusted EBITDA 4 A FEEBITDA 17 34,064 48,386 82,450
CECCEER FFRAREEBRAF

17



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
L EERPT R

1H 2022 2H 2022 Total 2022
—E-—fF —F-—F —FT——

—_—< —_—< —_—<

¥ THEF HEt

Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B FET FHET FET
(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)
(&) (&E7) EEH)

Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue from environmental TEMBEEYHIRRE
treatment and disposal services BENMEERE 2
for industrial and medical wastes W & 13) 186,823 186,671 373,494
Revenue from environmental TESKRREE EE -
industrial sewage treatment, EILAR % K
utilities, management services, TS e
and leasing out factory facilities & 1(ii) 74,453 68,194 142,647
Total Revenue W 4B %8 1 261,276 254,865 516,141
Average gross profit margin TG EF 2
(in percentage) (Bot) 2 20.8 26.1 23.0
Other revenue Hh U 2 3 4,249 - 4,249
Other income NN 4 2,670 8,533 11,203
Gain on disposal of interest in HE—RMBAFERZ
a subsidiary U %5 5 27,303 - 27,303
Distribution costs Sal = 1D 6 (12,794) (9,296) (22,090)
Administrative expenses THHX 7 (29,700) (28,872) (58,572)
Other operating expenses B 8 (7,950) (12,959) (20,909)
Impairment loss on trade W BR R 2 R E B 18 -
receivables, net R 9 - (2,185) (2,185)
Finance income s WA 10 854 4,566 5,420
Finance costs LD 11 (3,142) (2,541) (5,683)
Share of results of associates DIEBE R B EE 12 (3,643) (3,607) (7,250)
Share of results of a joint venture DMME—FRELhEEE 13 (6,939) (6,105) (13,044)
Income tax Frig i 14 (11,297) (8,736) (20,033)
Discontinued operation DRIEEEER
Loss from discontinued operation KEDKR IS EBEHER 15 (1,089) (11,584) (12,673)
Net profit/(loss) for the period HRaF, (EE) 16 12,807 (8,243) 4,564
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners KATER AN
of the Company wm A (E58) 16 14,761 (7,488) 7,273
Basic EPS/(LPS) (in HK cents) BREARRF(E8)
(B 16 0.49 (0.25) 0.24
Diluted EPS/(LPS) (in HK cents) SREEATF(EE)
(Bl 16 0.49 (0.25) 0.24
Adjusted EBITDA & FEEBITDA 17 52,962 61,937 114,899
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Notes:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net decrease in total revenue from continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2023 was mainly attributable to:

(i) a continued decrease in average unit handling price for the
environmental treatment and disposal services for industrial and
medical wastes in Jiangsu, the PRC; and

(i) a decrease in revenue from environmental industrial sewage
treatment, utilities, management services, and leasing out factory
facilities as there was a decline in overall manufacturing activities
of the clients in the Eco-plating Specialised Zone in the current year.

Decrease in gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 was mainly attributable to decrease in unit handling
price and increase in outsourcing landfill costs for disposal of the
secondary wastes produced by the incineration process of the Group.

Net decrease in other revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023
was mainly attributable to the decrease in total dividends declared by the
equity investments in the current year.

Net decrease in other income for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the PRC governmental incentive
subsidies received in the current year.

One-off gain on disposal of the entire equity interest in a wholly-owned
subsidiary in the PRC were recognised in the previous year.

Net decrease in distribution costs for the year ended 31 December 2023
was mainly attributable to the decrease in marketing agency fees in the
current year.

Net decrease in administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2023 was mainly attributable to reductions in staff headcount in the
current year.

Net increase in other operating expenses for the year ended 31
December 2023 was mainly attributable to the compensation paid for
reallocation of occupants and cleanup of a development site nearby the
Eco-plating Specialised Zone in the current year.

Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables for the year ended 31
December 2023 was mainly attributable to the change in default rates
arisen from improved debt recovery in the current year.

Net increase in finance income for the year ended 31 December 2023
was mainly attributable to the increase in interest income from free cash
deposits in the current year.

Net decrease in finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
mainly attributable to the decrease in interest-bearings borrowings of
the Group in the current year.

Net increase in loss shared from the associates for the year ended 31
December 2023 was mainly attributable to the continued decline in
overall business performance of both associates during the current year.

Net decrease in loss shared from the joint venture, Xinyu Rongkai, for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was mainly attributable to its decrease in
operating costs under temporary operation halt in the current year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERE W

5

14.  Net decrease in income tax for the year ended 31 December 2023 was 14, HE-_Z-_=®€+-_HA=+—HILEEF
mainly attributable to the decline in taxable profits from the continuing BREFRAOTEARAFERTE A
operations in the PRC in the current year. BB ERTEF TR -

15.  Loss from discontinued operation (net of tax) recognised for the year 15, #HZE-_Z-_=®€+_-HA=+—HILFEEF
ended 31 December 2023 and restated for 2022 was mainly attributable BARATR_E__FEMEINNERILE
to the one-off transaction on disposal of the Group’s entire equity EEBEERE(BRTE)  TEARKEFEH
interest in Jiangsu Yu Xin Environmental Engineering Management EREBREBENIHTIREARIEESES
Company Limited* in the current year and the net effect arising from the RARMEZEHREMETN —RAERS
de-consolidation of the operating segment of environmental equipment UEBHEEHRREEREERTERBEE
construction and installation services of the Group. B EFTEERN T ERE -

16. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the losses of the Group and net 16, HZE_ZE_=#F+_A=+—HIFE
loss attributable to owners of the Company and the respective loss per AEBEMEEBURARARHE ARG FES
share (“LPS”) were mainly attributable to: B RESREEFZEHEAR :

(i)  decrease in revenue and profit from the environmental treatment 0) FHBEMREER TR RKRAFHRT
and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes in the PRC EEYNEBEEVEREERENESER
as there was a decrease in average unit handling price; BE s R AER D

(i) decrease in revenue from the environmental industrial sewage (i BREFERAZIESKBREE
treatment services in the Eco-plating Specialised Zone; Wz A

(i) increase in other operating expenses during the current year which (i) ANFEHMEEHAZEN TE22H
was mainly attributable to the compensation paid for relocation RENFENRREEER —RFAEM
of occupants and cleanup of a development site nearby the HERBBZ@HENRBTEMNE: &
Eco-plating Specialised Zone; and

(iv) increase in net loss shared from an associated company engaging (v, RE—XRETFEERYEEREDR

REEIE R B E RIEH B E RR A ME
IR B INPTEL o

in environmental treatment and disposal services for hazardous
waste in Nanjing, the PRC.

AARRAREHANMNBERIELEEETR
NFE - BiIE e B RERERE
MEEERREEREES S RIELE—
RMETBE FEMEAEN (B18) /B (T4
FHEEBITDA]) BE RN EB ML EKR - &
ECEC=F+ A=+ -HIEFEELH
BEBITDAR > X ZE AR AN B8R 15 48 & i 7
TBEATER ©

17.  The Company uses the adjusted (loss)/earnings for the reporting period  17.
excluding discontinued operation and the impact of interest, taxation,
depreciation, amortisation, share of results of equity-accounted
investees and non-recurring one-time items (“Adjusted EBITDA") to
measure the operating results of the Group. Decrease in Adjusted
EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2023 was mainly attributable to
decrease in operating profit recorded in the current year.

20  New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Seasonality of operations

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the operation of providing
environmental treatment and disposal services for industrial and
medical wastes was the key driver of revenue of the Group which
encountered a relatively higher demand in the first half of the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the environmental treatment
and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes recorded a
revenue of HK$272,671,000 (2022: HK$373,494,000) and pre-tax
loss of HK$20,324,000 (2022: profit of HK$20,629,000) with revenue
of approximately 50.9% (2022: 50.1%) being accumulated in the
first half of the year and approximately 49.1% (2022: 49.9%) being
accumulated in the second half of the year.

Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group incurred capital
expenditure to increase property, plant and equipment and to
acquire land use rights for the operating segment of (i) environmental
treatment and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes
amounted to approximately HK$14,152,000 (2022: HK$21,954,000),
(ii) industrial sewage and sludge treatment and facility provision
services in the Eco-plating Specialised Zone amounted to
approximately HK$5,974,000 (2022: HK$2,959,000), and (iii) head
office for corporate use in Hong Kong being HK$6,000 (2022:
HK$7,000).

Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments for capital assets:

Para —_— X AL

s 2 = A o AT
8 T g

HE - Z-_=F+_-_A=+t—HItFE &K
SEREETENEEEMRREENEER
B AEEWSMEBNEE  REFFID
RBEEREMER -

BE-_E_="#+-_A=+—HIEE"
TXENEFEEMRRERE RE B R
B U 272,671,000 (& = =
373,494,000/ jT) & %t A1 &5 820,324,000
B (ZZT == F : % 720,629,000/ 7T)
B 49509% (ZE = =4 :50.1% ) 2 Ik
HmEBFREEF  H401% (ZF ==
49.9%) ZETIA T HF

BEARX

B2 - =ZF+_A=+—HIEFE &K
EEELEEAAIAEMDE BEREE
MU T RN THIEE D) T
LEERBEYRREEMEERBEBLOA
14,152,000 7t (= Z = — 4 : 21,954,000
B (NRREFEERARB T HEIFK
M5l B K ik iR 7 £ B 49 45,974,000
BT (ZF = — 4 :2,959,000/% 7T) K(ii)FH
REBBEBELERE £ 56,0005 T
TE -4 :7,00087T) °

A
RIREBR - REBFEARNE E(EH T H
&

2023 2022
—E_-= —ZT=-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHExT
Contracted but not provided for: BRIABE R B

— Capital expenditure in respect of - BEAME BELEEHEZ

property, plant and equipment BARE 44,084 22,464
— Capital contribution to an equity —M—ERAKENE

investment 15,976 15,976

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA
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BN EEVEL

On 28 July 2022, Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited (“Zhenjiang New Universe”) (an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company), entered into an investment
agreement (the “Investment Agreement”) with the Zhenjiang
Economic and Technological Development Zone Management
Committee, pursuant to which Zhenjiang New Universe would further
invest USD15,000,000 into the local expansion plan of Zhenjiang
New Universe which comprises, among others, the building of a
new incinerator with a daily capacity of 100 metric tonnes (33,000
metric tonnes per annum) of hazardous waste, the technical
transformation of the existing incinerator with a daily capacity of
50 metric tonnes (16,500 metric tonnes per annum) of hazardous
waste, and the optimisation of other facilities. The expansion plan
will be implemented on the land owned by Zhenjiang New Universe
with a total area of 2,045 square metres. Pursuant to the Investment
Agreement, New Universe Environmental Technologies (Jiang Su)
Limited (“NUET(JS)"”) (the immediate holding company interested
in 100% paid-up registered capital of Zhenjiang New Universe)
should inject additional capital in the amount of USD5,000,000 into
Zhenjiang New Universe by the end of December 2022. Up to the date
of this report, the additional capital of USD5,000,000 to be registered
for and injected into Zhenjiang New Universe is still pending the
approval of the relevant departments of the PRC government.

Liquidity, financial resources and gearing

(@) For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group financed its
operations and made payment of debts and liabilities due timely
with internally generated cash flows and banking facilities.

(b) The Group remained moderately stable in its financial position
with equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$908,251,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$961,677,000) and consolidated total assets amounted to
approximately HK$1,301,424,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: HK$1,514,046,000).

()  The Company did not have any equity fund raising activity within
the past twelve months immediately prior to the date of this
report (2022: Nil).

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

RZE-_—F+A-+NH BEIFFEE
BEWEERRAR ([HEIHFF]  AQFM
BIIEZEHRANNE R R HE T &5l
FAEmEELZEHR —MHREmS ([&
Bkl B EIHFRE—FTRE
15,000,000 7T BRI ¥ 72 & A &
P8l AR EmE—EERIE10028 (&
#33,000200) EREYHNREE - HIREH
BRIB502 M8 (416,500 M) &R BE W I0 1
EEITRITSE - U REEE MR - %
BB T A A E2,045F 5
KE) iy EHTT o @%32&%%** ST
FHI100% HEZER AR FRIREHE OT8F)
AREAF (TNUETUS)] - BEAEIHF100%
EHRAMERAENEEZRAG) AR
—ECCF T ARAABETIHFREINEE
5,000,000 K& - HEARREBE - &
¥ & &) & 5,000,0003 JT A RE S
B R H A R BB A B SR PI AL o

//Ibéjjéqi @ﬁ%éff&é;z@1 s Ih

(@) BE_ZT-_=F+_H=+—81F
E - AEEHREANTEENR SN
ERBRTME  UBEBNELEL R
XNEIBMEEREE -

=
fF
=3
L
i
~F

(b) ZIS%%%%EPE%@H@EM%#%'E@
—EZ=F+ZA=+—B2ZARQ
WA AR 4 /908,251 ooo,%rc
(ZE - -4 :961,677,000/8 7T) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE B RSN

(d) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had: (d) REmEMKR KXEEF:
2023 2022
—E_-=F —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
(i)  Cash and bank balances: He MIBTHES
in HK$ BT 50,706 69,100
in RMB AR 113,563 181,069
in USD ETT 22,096 20,110
186,365 270,279
2023 2022
—E-=H —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
(i) Available unused unsecured A FE A m A A 2 EEF
banking facilities: RITHMEEE
in HK$ BT 35,600 10,000
in RMB AR 117,700 29,041
153,300 39,041

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREH B R DN

(e)  The Group monitors adjusted EBITDA as
a consolidated level and considers that

to an understanding of the Group’s

Adjusted EBITDA is calculated by adjusting profit/loss for the
year to exclude discontinued operations and the impact of
taxation, gross interest expense, depreciation, amortisation,
share of results of equity-accounted investees and non-recurring

one-time items.

performance measure at
this measure is relevant
financial performance.
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Reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to loss/profit for the year: 4R EEBITDABL A E B 18 % A HY 3
gk
2023 2022
—E_=F - F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FHET
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB, BN (35,767) 4,564
Adjustments for: FE
— Income tax -FrE5M 13,053 20,033
— Gross interest expense —HAF B 3,780 5,683
— Depreciation of property, plant ~ -#% - BE K&
and equipment RBITE 72,428 75,593
— Depreciation of right-of-use —ERAEEENE
assets 3,278 3,362
— Share of results of associated -DIEE RNREED R
companies, net of tax (B F5) 9,416 7,250
— Share of results of a joint venture, - 1EA & R AIEEDEE
net of tax (18 % 78) 11,726 13,044
— Gain on disposal of interestina -HE&E—RMBARERZ
subsidiary g - (27,303)
— Loss from discontinued operation -KE B ILEEEE 2
&8 4,536 12,673
Adjusted EBITDA {S3BEBITDA 82,450 114,899
(fy  The Company monitors the financial performance of the (f) KX 8% B4 F ZEBITDAK HBR IR &
equity-accounted investees through adjusted EBITDA by BR BEKARMBEBEBNZ
excluding the impact of the capital investee, finance costs and Z NEREEREISHNEREE
tax entity structure. Set out below is the adjusted EBITDA of the BHPBRE - LATHINAR A ILE
equity-accounted investees of the Company for the two years mEEBHNBEREEBREE_Z
ended 31 December 2023: T=F+ZA=T-HLEREFEHR
A% 5 EEEBITDA -
2023 2022
—E=F T
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FH T
Adjusted EBITDA of associates: Bp = X A 1Y 48 58 ZEBITDA :
Zhenjiang Xin Qu L & 10,955 15,889
NCIP MRRT (10,602) (5,443)
Adjusted EBITDA of joint venture: B &N R B T EEBITDA ¢
Xinyu Rongkai T (6,657) (5,645)

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEREBA®R RSN

The Group monitors its liquidity through current ratio. The (g) K’%llzﬁﬁ%ﬁttfﬁtﬁ ,ﬁ@)éﬁ 0

current ratio of the Group representing the ratio of the
consolidated current assets to the consolidated current liabilities
was 1.33 times as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 1.15 times).

The Group monitors its capital by reference to the gearing ratio. (h) AEBEUEEBEL REEEE R
HE&
B) B A AR5 E: o AR & B R MY

This ratio is calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings
(including lease liabilities) divided by total equity. The gearing

@E‘Ju&btt$ (ﬁﬁéﬁ@)é%ﬁ#

mEBAEEILE) AI3BE(ZE

F 0 1.15(%) ©

=

SRR B EERRE (R

H

ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows: BEAGBHERNMT
2023 2022
—BC-=F —F-—

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FH T

Bank borrowings RITEHE 44,000 97,959

Lease liabilities HEaE 332 667

Total interest-bearing borrowings ATEEERE 44,332 98,626
Total equity (inclusive of non-controlling F% AR 42%8 (B IR IE4E AR REZS)

interests) 1,013,359 1,075,507

Gearing ratio BEEAMBELEE 4.4% 9.2%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements.

ESNEEE ] PNOEE S

EAIINERIE I Z BEAIRE ©

TECCEER HFRREEARAR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
7 o M

(i) At the end of the reporting period, the interest-bearing bank

(i) MNB|EHPR AKEZFERITEER

borrowings of the Group were as follows: mr
2023 2022
—_E-= —_=__
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHET
Secured RMB bank borrowings BERARKRITEE (i) 22,000 67,800
Unsecured RMB bank borrowings EEPARKEITEE (i) 22,000 4,859
Unsecured HK$ bank borrowings BIERBTRITEE (iif) - 25,300
44,000 97,959
Notes: K1 -
() Bearing interest at fixed rates ranged from 3.90% to 4.25% () AFEMEABEFFENTF3.90%
(2022: 4.05% to 4.35%) per annum in the current year. T425% (ZZE - —_F :4.05% %
4.35%) ©
(i) Bearing interest at fixed rates ranged from 3.20% to 3.75% iy AFEMBAEBEFEFNENT320%
(2022: 3.70% to 4.60%) per annum in the current year. E23.75% (ZZFE - _F :3.70%%

(ili)  Bearing interest at variable rates ranged from 4.88% to 7.99%
(2022: 1.65% to 7.99%) per annum in the current year.

Capital structure
There was no significant change to the capital structure of the

Company as at 31 December 2023 comparing to that as at 31
December 2022.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and

affiliated companies
On 2 March 2022, the Group as the vendor has entered into an

agreement with a purchaser to dispose of the entire equity interest
in Taixing Xin Xin Resources Recycling Company Limited*, an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in the PRC, at a
consideration of RMB42,100,000 (approximately HK$51,760,000)
(the "Taixing Xin Xin Equity Disposal Agreement”). Completion
of the Taixing Xin Xin Equity Disposal Agreement took place on
14 April 2022 and the Group recognised a gain on such disposal
of approximately HK$27,303,000. Reference is made to the
announcement of the Company dated 2 March 2022 for details.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

4.60%) °

iy ANFEFEBZHEFNEN T4.88%
£799% (T = =4 :1.65%%
7.99%) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 31 July 2023, the Group as the vendor has entered into an
agreement with a purchaser (controlled by a senior management
staff at subsidiary level) to dispose of the entire equity interest in
Jiangsu Yu Xin Environmental Engineering Management Company
Limited*, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
in PRC, at a consideration of RMB12,000,000 (approximately
HK$13,074,000) (the “Jiangsu Yu Xin Equity Disposal Agreement”).
Completion of the Jiangsu Yu Xin Equity Disposal Agreement took
place on 3 August 2023 and the Group recognised a gain on the
disposal of approximately HK$4,945,000. Reference is made to the
announcement of the Company dated 31 July 2023 for details.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no significant investments nor
material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Significant investments held and their performance
According to the valuation report dated 22 March 2024 issued by

an independent professional valuer, Colliers International (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Colliers International”) (23 March 2023: Colliers
International), the total fair value attributable to the Group's
interests in the equity investments in Suzhou New Huamei, Danyang
New Huamei and Qingdao Huamei as at 31 December 2023 was
HK$81,500,000 (2022: HK$70,300,000).

Fair value attributable

&8 5 i

m:gz_itﬂ +—HB AEBEUEH
FEHE—ZEH (AMBEARERNSE
FERZEH) I —EHpE UREARE
12,000,0007T (A8 & % ,\(913,074,0005%@ i
E—RURPEBARGHEEZERE NN
BRAAIHFFRERILEEEERATNE
i (DTaFmRELERa]) - Z1E
FHRELERZECN _ZE_=F/\A=0H
ERR S AEBEEERZOEHBREL
4,945,000 L - SF B2 B AR BB A
E-ZF A=+ —HHAM -

BRAXBEEIN  ARANBE_T_=F
T-A=+ - BLEFEIEEAMEMERNR
ERMBAR BMEAFARGLELEENERX
WERNE -

FiisERIEERERKIE

BREBYEXHEMS HBEBDERRD (B
B)BRAA (e HEER) (ZEZ=F=
A-+Z=ZB & hER) L AEBHAE=-F
THWE=ZA-+-_HHNHEERSE R -Z
T=F+-RA=+—8 KEESEEMEH
EX BT EZRTEEZTNREAEE
@ /A B 2% A81,500,00008 L (=&
— Z % :70,300,000 ) °

Fair value relative to
the Group's total assets

to the Group HEREER
AEBEEQFE REEZATE
Group's interest 2023 2022 2023 2022
NEBHZD == —=E-= —E_-= —EF-
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Suzhou New Huamei BRMETESR 18.62% 7,000 17,500 0.5% 1.2%
Danyang New Huamei  f}E5¥rsEsE 24.50% 7,600 7,600 0.6% 0.5%
Qingdao Huamei EBEX 28.67% 66,900 45,200 5.1% 3.0%
81,500 70,300 6.2% 4.7%

The unlisted equity investments acquired by the Group in October
2007 are held for long term strategic purposes. The change in fair
value of the equity investments for the year end 31 December 2023
were recognised as other comprehensive income and accounted for in
the investment revaluation reserve of the Group.

AEER -_ZEZLFTANKBZEIRLD
BEREDNEARIARBENMES - BE
“EC=FT_A=TBLFE - REK
BZAVEEPERIREME2EEE AR
AEBOKREEGHREBEAR -

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA
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5

Impairment testing on goodwill

Goodwill was recognised upon the completion of a business
combination in 2007 that currently composed of Zhenjiang New
Universe and Yancheng New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company
Limited that principally engaged in environmental waste treatment
and disposal services in Jiangsu Province, the PRC which since then
being identified as a cash-generating unit. As at 31 December 2023,
the assessment on the recoverable amount of this cash-generating
unit was conducted with reference to the valuation report dated 22
March 2024 issued by Colliers International (23 March 2023: Colliers
International), based on reasonable assumptions, including but not
limited to the cash flows projection with a growth rate at 2.1%
(2022: 2.2%) of that cash-generating unit operating with the licensed
incineration capacity of hazardous waste 26,400 metric tonnes per
annum and licensed disposal capacity of regulated medical waste
3,380 metric tonnes per annum, and at the pre-tax discount rate of
16.12% (2022: 16.61%) having accounted for the risks encountered
in the industries. No impairment loss to the goodwill was considered
necessary for the two years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Impairment testing on interest in an associate, NCIP

As at 31 December 2023, the assessment on the recoverable
amount of the Group’s interest in NCIP, that principally engaged
in environmental waste treatment and disposal services in Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC, was conducted with reference to the
valuation report dated 22 March 2024 issued by Colliers International

(23 March 2023: Colliers International),

based on reasonable

assumptions, including but not limited to the cash flows projection
of NCIP with a growth rate at 2.1% (2022: 2.2%) of NCIP as
cash-generating unit with the licensed incineration capacity of
hazardous waste 38,000 metric tonnes per annum, and at the pre-tax
discount rate of 15.57% (2022: 15.74%) having accounted for the
risks encountered by NCIP in the industries. No impairment loss to the
Group’s interest in NCIP was considered necessary for the two years

ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2023, the following assets of the Group were
pledged as collaterals for banking facilities granted and other ordinary

business of the Group:

RSN AER:IE
EEDDR_ZEZLFERMARFHET
FFRENTFHERBEYEEERARMA
B EBErmER EZEFETHERK
ERREVEEREERY  WHWEHR A
—EReELEEN R _=F+=A
—t+—HB HEReEABMNTRESHE
ETZED2ER BB (ZE2=F=
AZ+=B: & hEBR)MEABHA=F
ZHHFE=AZTHNHEREMES - &

FHEHREDNENZELAENBR  BFEET
RANZESELCENREFIBREDR
BEa 1 26,4008 K A B B2 R

REWBR B 8 7 & 3,380 A METEH2.1%
(Z2EZZF 1 22%)BEENIR S K EA
RRMEANRBHORATITZER16.12% (ZF
11661%)  HE_T-_=—FRK=_F
T+ A=+ BILmMEFE  AEE
REENEHNEIRAEERE -

\éﬁ AT (BREE) 3 00 A6

Q 7f_¢+ A=+—H #Ax&H
RERRT (TERFTFERIHEIRLER
REVRENGBERS) #ana ko
BHOAEN2ERHER (==
A-+=B: 2 H7BR)MEERYA-F
“HFE=ZA-t+-_HAMHERSET  HE

BEREDENRZESENRRK  BEET
RRAZBRcELEUIREFFAEREY

K RE 115 38,0002 MEETTFH2.1% (=
T F 1 22%)EEERNRESREN AR
ML R PTE ¥ ¥ AR R mmmﬁm+
15.57% (ZE -5 : 15.74%) - H &
——iﬁ_g::¢+:ﬂz+—aiﬁﬁ
FE AEBEREBEVLBHNBERRAFHE
mET IR E IS -

BEEH

RZEZ=F+ZA=+—8 AEBEUT
BETUNER (ERERBITRENURES
BEHEMHEEE TR

2023 2022

—E=HF —_EF-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT

Carrying amount of collaterals: EHRmzEREE :

Property, plant and equipment L E ] 57,483 89,129
Land use rights -+ b {5 AR A 7,692 26,091
Restricted bank deposits PR B HY IR 1T 1 3K - 5119
65,175 120,339
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2023 2022

—s=-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHEIT

Secured liabilities and guarantee issued: B EFE KRB FHHER -

Secured bank borrowings BERBIRITIEERE 22,000 67,800
Bills payables B R® - 10,242
22,000 78,042

Contingent liabilities

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 20
May 2022, 30 May 2022 and 7 February 2023 in relation to the legal
proceedings in process against NUET(JS), an 82% indirectly owned
subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong. Two writ of
summons issued by the Jiangsu Zhenjiang Intermediate People’s Court
(the "Court”) in the PRC were received by NUET(JS) in respect of the
proceedings filed by two existing shareholders (each a “Plaintiff”,
Mr. YIN Yong Xiang” and Mr. SUN Jia Qing™") each holding 8% of
the issued share capital of NUET(JS) on 20 May 2022 and 27 May
2022 respectively (the "Actions”). Thereafter the first hearing of
the two Actions took place and completed on 15 July 2022 at the
Court, NUET(JS) has received two civil judgments of the Court dated
4 January 2023 and 5 January 2023 in respect of the two Actions
respectively, in which, amongst others, the claims of each of the
Plaintiffs against NUET(JS) under the Actions were dismissed. Both
Plaintiffs did not admit to the judgments of the Court and have each
submitted a civil appeal (with both civil appeals dated 29 January
2023) to the Court, and the civil appeals have been transferred from
the Court to the Jiangsu Province High People’s Court in the PRC for
trial and hearing.

HABE
ZIRAARNBRBPA-ZTS__FRA=-T+
H T -_—_FRAA=+HR-E-_=%_
AtEHEB XM B4 Rt {NUETUS) (&
NN B EEB82%I 1 & 6 5t Ml A 3L &Y B
BT 2 FEEFR - NUETUS)D IR ==
T FRAZtTHERZEZ_FRA=-TL
AUl B BEI&HS I TR RARER (X
brl) MHm ek ER - WA B B BANUETUS)H
M D B3 ANUETUS)8% Ik N HE 5 Y IR A
BER(ZEEBAIREA]  BAXFELERRE
RELEAE) DRIRZOERIRFE ([FFALD) o
H%  BaZmBEFn BRI =T ==
t A+ RBEEREITITTAE - NUET(US)
WEREBR BRSO RA-E-_=F—A1MBEM
—ECF—ARBAREMEFRELHAR
EHF EPEFE(BEARR) BRREY
NUETUSIZEE M FA R R E R E - MA R
EUTRARTE R T RERERREIRS
R (MO RELFEHFHE T -_=F
—A=Z+hA) REREFLFEEHERZE
PR B A THRE S RAREREE R
BeEf o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
L EERPT R

The Group has already recognised the amounts being claimed under the
Actions as dividends payable to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary
without payment terms that being classified under other payables in
the Group's financial statements but no provision has been recognised
for any interest on those non-interest bearing dividend rights. As the
Actions are still in process, the information usually required by HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets is not
disclosed on the grounds that it might prejudice the outcome of the
proceedings. The Directors are of the opinion that the Actions and the
asset preservations still held by the Plaintiffs not yet released thereunder
the Actions are not expected to have adverse impact to the normal
operations of NUET(JS), Zhenjiang New Universe and any members of
the Group. Details are set out in note 46 to the financial statements.

Notes:

* Mr. YIN Yong Xiang is an existing director of the Group’s subsidiary,
Zhenjiang New Universe, and he is also the existing chairman of the
boards of Danyang New Huamei and Qingdao Huamei, and the former
vice-chairman and director of the board of Suzhou New Huamei
(dismissed by shareholders’ resolution passed on 27 October 2023).

**  Mr. SUN Jia Qing is an existing director of the Group’s subsidiary,
Zhenjiang New Universe.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no other significant contingent
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

Employee information

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 482 (2022 as restated:
614) full-time employees, of which 17 (2022: 18) were based in
Hong Kong, and 465 (2022 as restated: 596) in the Mainland
China. For the year ended 31 December 2023, staff costs, including
Directors’ remuneration and amount capitalised as inventories was
HK$89,272,000 (2022 as restated: HK$101,329,000). Employees
and Directors were paid in commensurate with the prevailing market
standards, with other fringe benefits such as bonus, medical insurance,
mandatory provident fund, and continuous development and training.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China and most of the
Group's transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk due to the exchange
rate fluctuation of RMB against HK$. Fluctuation of RMB against HK$
is expected to be moderate to the Group, and the Group considers the
foreign currency risk exposure is acceptable and the Mainland China’s
economy will regain its robustness. The Group will review and monitor
its currency exposure from time to time, and when appropriate hedge
its currency risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The results of the Company’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China are
translated from RMB into HK$ at the exchange rates approximating
the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items of the Company’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China
are translated from RMB into HK$ at the closing rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
RMB depreciated on average relatively to the HK$ resulted in an
overall downside exchange difference on translation from RMB to
HK$ for the financial statements of the subsidiaries, associates and a
joint venture in the Mainland China in an aggregate of approximately
HK$21,596,000 (2022: downside difference HK$82,937,000) that
were recognised as other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve of the Company in the
current year, and there was a release of negative exchange difference
of HK$352,000 (2022: positive difference HK$2,591,000) arisen on
the disposal of interests in PRC subsidiaries that was recognised to
the profit or loss of the Company during the year. The accumulated
exchange differences in the translation reserve will be reclassified to
profit or loss as when the interests in the relevant subsidiaries in the
Mainland China being entirely or partially disposed of by the Group.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties related to the
Company’s business:

1. The Group is dependent of the continuous renewal of hazardous
waste operating permission licences to be granted by the PRC
Government. The environmental business of the Group involving
in collection, storage, incineration, landfill, treatment and final
disposal of hazardous waste in the Mainland China requires
operating permission licences for handling hazardous waste
and the operating permission licences for handling epidemic
medical waste issued by the Environmental Protection Bureau of
Jiangsu Province and local environmental authorities. There is a
risk that the hazardous waste operating permission licence(s) of
the Group may be suspended temporarily or withdrawn or the
renewal of which may be delayed and subject to the compliance
with the PRC Governmental directions for renovation and
reconstruction.

The Group commits to ensure the continuous renewal of all
necessary licences for its operations and to ensure all subsidiary
entities engaging in environmental operations maintain and
continuously uphold their operating standards and waste
management standards and technically renovate the facilities in
order to comply with the environmental policies, standards, and
legislations as promulgated by the PRC Government from time to
time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
L EERPT R

The Group faces competition in the market of hazardous
waste collection for treatment and disposal services from other
operators in the environmental hazardous waste treatment
industry.

The Group has to continuously upkeep its facilities and
provide continuous staff development, to reduce energy
consumption and emissions, and to strengthen hazardous waste
decomposition technology, its waste management standard
and financial stability in order to compete with the increasing
number of competitors in treatment of hazardous waste
sector with more financial resources to develop larger scaled
waste disposal and recycling facilities, better standards and
technology to the compliance with all national and international
environmental regulations, and better technical know-how than
we have.

Owing to the increasing number of hazardous waste disposal
companies being granted license to operate currently in the
market, and the quantity of hazardous waste produced from
upstream manufacturers has not increased relatively, it resulted
in keen competition of hazardous waste among disposal
companies. The competition has become fierce, and it has also
increased the bargaining power of the intermediary agency
in hazardous waste distribution market. Intermediary agency
fee will be determined on the quantity of hazardous waste
discharged by a cooperative hazardous waste disposal unit.
Intermediary agency fee would constitute one of the major costs
to an entity running hazardous waste disposal operations and
affect the Group’s profitability performance.

The Group will strengthen its own marketing function and
the contractual relationship with all existing clients as well as
the cooperative relationship with the intermediary agencies
emerging in the market in order to ensure the Group operate in
a stable manner under the transitional change.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
5B E W

The Group engages in hazardous waste incineration to reduce
quantity of hazardous waste and to decompose hazardous waste
through high temperature incineration process, to landfill the
hazardous waste and post incineration residue, and handling
industrial sewage discharging by clients in an industrial zone that
faces environmental and social responsibility risks, which might
be caused by incidental breach of environmental emission limits,
incidental safety issues, contamination to land, and incidental
adverse waste discharging conditions caused by clients, and
which could have negative impact to the environmental waste
treatment operations of the Group.

The Group has sought for high quality plant construction design,
and implemented stringent controls over the construction of
new projects. The Group has to continuously upgrade the
efficiency of the existing plant and equipment and to enhance
the project management standards from time to time. The
Group has its own project management team and will appoint
independent professionals to report on environmental emissions
periodically and to monitor all possible environmental impact to
the society.

The scale of the Group’s operations has changed moderately
which from time to time, increases the significance of internal
control risks arising from the uncertainties of effectiveness and
achievement of the objective of risk management and internal
control systems, or ineffectiveness of the internal control due
to any defective critical point subsisted in the risk management
and internal control systems or any improper internal control
measure.

The Group has continuously monitored the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group by appointing independent professional consultants to
carrying out internal control review on all key operations of
the Group periodically. The Group has assigned designated
staffs to monitor each key operation of the Group who would
strengthen the liaison between the Group’s headquarter in Hong
Kong, district head office in Jiangsu and all project companies,
and from time to time, keep informed of the status of the
projects and ensure the top management’s policies are being
implemented in a timely and effective manner.
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_MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S 2 B i

5

The impact of economic conditions on local industries in the
Mainland China would affect the quantities of hazardous
waste discharged and the treatment service pricing for the
specific market offered by specific client base of the Group for
environmental waste treatment and disposal services.

The Group has to continue its business strategy to strengthen
penetration of different geographical markets and thereby to
reduce its dependency and further investment on the specific
markets.

Loss of key personnel and lack of appropriately experienced
human resources would result in a delay in achieving the Group’s
strategic goals and development of new projects.

The Company has to review the organisational structure of the
Group and responsibilities and duties of all key staff members
regularly and to mitigate any possible loss on human capital
by regular reviews of recruitment and retention practices,
remuneration packages and succession planning within the
management team and to motivate the staff by implementation
of the share option scheme of the Company.

The Group has faced credit risk attributable to the
underperforming accounts receivable from distressed clients
during the period of increased economic uncertainties under
COVID. The Company faces the challenge of inputting subjective
forward-looking information into the assessment of whether
credit risk on the accounts receivable has changed from time to
time. The Company would perform both individual and collective
assessments on the recoverability of underperforming accounts
due from clients grouped by locations in different industrial
parks in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. As all clients of the Group
have to comply with strict environmental regulations to timely
handle the hazardous waste produced in their manufacturing
process, they have to engage with qualified service provider(s) to
collect, manage, decompose and finally landfill their hazardous
waste produced in order to avoid non-compliance penalties
or even being ordered to shut down. Those clients facing
risks of financial stress from increased economic uncertainties
would request for concessions against the current terms of
their contracts with the Group, delayed settlement of invoiced
amounts, and even involve the local authority in charge of the
industrial parks where they located to intervene in mediation
and debts recovery.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group would incorporate impacts of economic uncertainty
and economic revival on the risk of default into the probability
of default for individual exposures on a timely basis, incorporate
qualitative factors as there were changes in client’s payment
behaviour, engage with independent professional valuer to
assess if there were significant changes in credit risks on a
collective basis, and review allowance on lifetime expected
credit loss upon the deviation of contractual payment terms
by client(s). The Group would limit its exposure to credit risk
by rigorously selecting the counterparties (i.e. the clients, the
customers, leasees in the Eco-plating Specialised Zone, the
hazardous waste producers, and the market intermediaries) and
explore prudently for opportunities of business optimisation and
market diversification.

The Group faces various financial risks that have been disclosed
in note 44 to the financial statements on pages 260 to 267 of
this report.
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hF 8B

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS A RE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—BHLFE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-o=F —T—— —E-—F —ZTE-FTF ZT—NF
HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT FHET FHET FHET FHET
(Restated)
(&E:75)
Continuing operations 3@ &8 & ¥
Revenue Uz 405,612 516,141 727,167 789,341 595,706
Cost of sales 55 AR (340,195) (397,313) (535,502) (569,558) (393,979)
Gross profit E A 65,417 118,828 191,665 219,783 201,727
Other revenue H 3,945 4,249 4,637 4,107 4,152
Gain on disposal of HE—KWEB QA
interest in a subsidiary 2 2 Uz - 27,303 - - -
Other income LN 6,781 11,203 7,407 13,443 11,198
Distribution costs 2 AR (19,263) (22,090) (23,916) (6,971) (9,554)
Administrative expenses {7 F & . (49,771) (58,572) (59,718) (56,433) (54,172)
Impairment loss on assets 98 AIFIEHEE E
classified as held for sale 2R {E 548 = - - (12,636) -
Reversal of impairment  JEUYBR SR &
loss/(impairment loss) EBiEs@E
on trade receivables, net (R{EEIE) - F58 15,672 (2,185) (28,685) (9,526) (4,469)
Other operating expenses H {th 4% 4 jf 57 (21,506) (20,909) (17,826) (24,525) (53,898)
Operating profit 1R E R R 1,275 57,827 73,564 127,242 94,984
Finance income BERA 5,469 5,420 4,140 402 2,517
Finance costs AL E B (3.780) (5,683) (6,521) (9,564) (13,909)
Finance income/(costs), ~ &M A (KA) -
net R 1,689 (263) (2,381) (9,162) (11,392)
Share of results of A RHEE N A
associates ZEE (9,416) (7,250) (6,389) 10,302 6,826
Share of results of a joint D{H— K& &
venture e (11,726) (13,044) (4,440) (1,835) (1,545)
(Loss)/profit before BrBLAT (E51E) R A
taxation (18,178) 37,270 60,354 126,547 88,873
Income tax FriS %t (13,053) (20,033) (7,436) (24,501) (17,744)
(Loss)/profit from REFFELE XD
continuing operations (B18) &= F (31,231) 17,237 52,918 102,046 71,129
Discontinued operation T #& IE & & #3%
Loss from discontinued 2R A B 4 IE & X 55
operation &8 (4,536) (12,673) - - -
(Loss)/profit for FE(EB) &R
the year (35,767) 4,564 52,918 102,046 71,129
(Loss)/profit for the UDTATEEEE
year attributable to: (F18) A
Owners of the Company AR AIHEA A (33,118) 7,273 40,419 74,576 40,625
Non-controlling interests 347 i 4 25 (2,649) (2,709) 12,499 27,470 30,504
(35,767) 4,564 52,918 102,046 71,129
Dividend declared for the Ey‘iriﬁiﬁﬁ”ﬁ)ﬁ
results of the year 4,857 11,536 11,839 21,857 21,250
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
h &M B2

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Z&X¥ER&ARE

As at 31 December

Rt+t=-—A=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EBEo=F —T-— B —F —ZTB-TF —E—-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT FAT FAET FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and W - BE &
equipment B 578,436 651,164 755,547 789,633 776,848
Right-of-use assets FREEE 98,547 103,159 111,053 129,640 131,559
Goodwill S 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000
Interests in associates REE N E 2w 138,899 153,450 175,835 180,175 169,137
Interest in a joint venture R—REEEZ
g 33,683 35,213 51,990 47,400 23,123
Equity investments at fair & @ H b 2 @ U 25 %
value through other NFEEARZ
comprehensive income  BRANIEE
(non-recycling) (A &1EE) 81,500 70,300 80,800 118,100 97,300
Deferred tax assets RIETHIBE E 5,846 10,229 10,154 - -
969,911 1,056,515 1,218,379 1,297,948 1,230,967
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 4,936 7,037 6,718 6,062 4,283
Trade and bills JE U BR 3 K
receivables L 92,617 106,499 150,022 129,438 89,021
Prepayments, deposits FENRIE  HeRkHE
and other receivables & Uk 5K TE 32,497 21,081 36,456 25,176 25,858
Contract assets EHEE = 32,652 22,591 1,534 894
Restricted bank deposits =R &l 2 81717 5K 731 5,225 8,191 12,511 154
Cash and cash ReRERRE
equivalents EH 186,365 270,279 302,074 257,523 267,393
317,146 442,773 526,052 432,244 387,603
Assets classified as held D ABFIEHEH
for sale EE 14,367 14,758 39,580 15,411 -
331,513 457,531 565,632 447,655 387,603
Total assets WEE 1,301,424 1,514,046 1,784,011 1,745,603 1,618,570
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
h & 8B 2

. N
= > == =
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES &HZ&8&EENEE (&
(continued)
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= —ETo-oF —ZE-—F —ZE-TF —ZET—HhHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT FET FETT
Current liabilities RBEE
Bank borrowings RITIEE 44,000 97,959 198,970 178,905 174,782
Other borrowing HiMEE - - - 25,000 -
Trade and bills payables R L ZE 59,392 69,739 78,607 66,315 32,732
Accrued liabilities and JEET B E R

other payables P QL] 137,374 218,612 228,986 226,539 196,733
Lease liabilities HEBE 332 326 750 117 451
Contract liabilities EHEE 4,272 3,190 38,507 25,011 25,103
Considerations payable — YHEMI B A 72

for acquisition of JERTRE

subsidiaries - - - - 24,800
Deferred government iR T BUT

grants 8k 1,881 1,935 2,057 1,106 1,048
Income tax payable FET P S B 2,729 5,575 6,094 6,251 4,112

249,980 397,336 553,971 529,244 459,761
Non-current liabilities FREBERE
Bank borrowings RITIEE - - - 10,130 65,627
Other borrowing HiEE - - - - 25,000
Lease liabilities HEAE - 341 720 30 139
Deferred government T HRT

grants # AL 8,360 10,462 13,431 5,327 6,095

Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEEE 29,725 30,400 33,079 37,535 33,632

38,085 41,203 47,230 53,022 130,493
Total liabilities BmeE 288,065 438,539 601,201 582,266 590,254
Net current assets/ REBEE(AE)

(liabilities) FE 81,533 60,195 11,661 (81,589) (72,158)
Net assets BEEFE 1,013,359 1,075,507 1,182,810 1,163,337 1,028,316
Share capital B A 30,357 30,357 30,357 30,357 30,357
Reserves 1 877,894 931,320 1,022,422 1,004,070 881,171
Equity attributable AT

to owners of the BEANEMN

Company &N 908,251 961,677 1,052,779 1,034,427 911,528
Non-controlling interests ~ 3E#2 A% 25 105,108 113,830 130,031 128,910 116,788
Total equity BRABEE 1,013,359 1,075,507 1,182,810 1,163,337 1,028,316
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EE ke EEEBEBN

DIRECTORS
XI'Yu (“Mr. XI", aged 66)

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr. XI was appointed as executive Director and nominated as the
Chairman of the Board on 11 April 2016. He was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 16 October 2018. He is the chairman
of the executive committee of the Board. Mr. Xl is the director and legal
representative of various major subsidiaries of the Group in the Mainland
China. He is also an officio member of the ESG committee.

Mr. Xl was an executive Director from 7 June 2002 to 18 August 2014,
and was the Chairman of the Board, compliance officer and authorised
representative of the Company from 9 December 2004 to 18 August
2014. He has been a consultant to the Group from 22 August 2014 to 31
March 2016.

Mr. XI graduated from the Chemistry Department of the Peking University
in July 1980. Mr. Xl is the father of Ms. Erica XI. Mr. Xl is a director and
shareholder personally holding 83.66% equity interests in New Universe
Enterprises Limited (“NUEL"”) which in turn currently owns beneficial
interests in 36.54% of the issued shares of the Company. Mr. Xl is also the
director of New Universe Holdings Limited (“NUHL") and the director of its
subsidiaries, inclusive of Sun Ngai International Investment Limited (“Sun
Ngai”, which is principally engaged in property investment).

CHEUNG Siu Ling (“Ms. CHEUNG", aged 62)

Executive Director and Authorised Representative

Ms. CHEUNG was appointed as executive Director on 1 April 2005.
On 18 August 2014, Ms. CHEUNG was appointed as the authorised
representative and the process agent of the Company. She is a member
of the executive committee of the Board. Ms. CHEUNG is the director of
various major subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. CHEUNG obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from
the University of South Australia in September 2005. Ms. CHEUNG is a
director and shareholder personally holding 6.07% equity interests in
NUEL. She is also the director of NUHL and the director of its subsidiaries,
inclusive of Sun Ngai.
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JIANG Qian (“Ms. JIANG”, aged 35)

Executive Director
Ms. JIANG was appointed as an executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee with effect from 30 June 2022.

Ms. JIANG obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from Xi’'an
University of Finance and Economics, China in June 2009, and a
Master’s degree in Finance from Fudan University, China in June
2012. Ms. JIANG obtained a Chartered Financial Analyst qualification
from the CFA Institute in May 2017, a fund practitioner qualification
from the Asset Management Association of China in June 2017, and
a Chinese legal professional qualification in April 2022. From July
2012 to September 2015, Ms. JIANG served as the senior investment
manager of the investment banking department Il of Hwabao Trust Co.,
Ltd. From September 2015 to January 2020, Ms. JIANG acted as the
investment director of the special investment department of CMIG Capital
Management Co., Ltd.*. Ms. JIANG is an executive director and a general
manager of Zhongmin Chuangfu Investment Management Co., Ltd.* since
January 2020, and is an executive director of the investments and mergers
and acquisitions department of CMIG Asia Asset Management Co., Ltd.*
since January 2021. Ms. JIANG is also a non-executive director of Yida
China Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 3639), since February
2022, and a supervisor of Shanghai DoBe Cultural & Creative Industry
Development Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300947), since March 2021.

LIU Yu Jie (“Ms. LIU", aged 59)

Executive Director
Ms. LIU was appointed as executive Director on 9 June 2015. She is a
member of the executive committee of the Board.

Ms. LIU obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree in Foreign Trade from
the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics, China in July 1987
and a Postgraduate Diploma in International Trade from the University
of International Business and Economics, China in June 1990. Ms. LIU
was the former executive director of SIIC Environment Holdings Limited
(stock code: BHK, a company whose shares are listed on the Singapore
Exchange) from November 2009 to August 2014. Ms. LIU is currently a
non-executive director of China Water Affairs Group Limited (stock code:
855, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange) since
April 2023 and has been an executive director of that company from
September 2014 to April 2023. She is also an executive director of Kangda
International Environmental Company Limited (stock code: 6136, a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange) since April 2019,
and an independent non-executive director of Zhongyu Gas Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3633, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange) since June 2017.
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HON Wa Fai (“Mr. HON”, aged 63)

Executive Director, Company Secretary, Financial Controller and
Authorised Representative

Mr. HON was appointed to the Group as financial controller on 6
September 2004. He was appointed as the qualified accountant, company
secretary and authorised representative of the Company on 6 October
2004, and appointed as executive Director on 28 September 2006. He is a
member of the executive committee of the Board.

Mr. HON obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Strathclyde, United Kingdom in November 2002, a Master
of Professional Accounting degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2001, and a Master of Applied Finance degree
from the University of Western Sydney, Australia in August 1999. He was
admitted as an Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (formerly named as Hong Kong Society of Accountants)
in April 1994 and admitted as a Fellow in December 2002, and he is a
registered practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since
November 1996. He was admitted as an Associate of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in May 1994 and admitted as a Fellow
in May 1999. He was admitted as a Senior Associate of the Financial
Services Institute of Australasia in June 1999, and an Associate with
the designations of Chartered Secretary and Chartered Governance
Professional of the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly named as the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators), United Kingdom
and the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly named
as the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries), Hong Kong, in
September 2000.

Xl Man Shan Erica (“Ms. Erica XI”, aged 28)

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Erica XI was appointed as executive Director and a member of the
executive committee on 1 October 2020. She has been re-designated
from an executive Director to a non-executive Director and resigned as a
member of the Executive Committee with effect from 30 June 2022.

Ms. Erica Xl is the daughter of Mr. XI. Ms. Erica X| obtained a Bachelor of
Laws degree from the University of Bristol, United Kingdom in June 2017,
a Graduate Diploma in Law from University of Law, United Kingdom in July
2020, and the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from Hong Kong University
in 2021. Ms. Erica Xl is a Counsel called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2022.
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YUEN Kim Hung, Michael (“Mr. YUEN", aged 62)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. YUEN was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 24
April 2002 and was appointed as the chairman of nomination committee
of the Board on 19 March 2012. He is a member of the remuneration
committee and audit committee of the Board and is an ex-officio member
of the ESG committee.

Mr. YUEN obtained a Professional Diploma in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1983. He was admitted
as an Associate Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in September 1988, a Fellow of the
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in October 1991, and a
chartered professional accountant member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of British Columbia, Canada in June 2015. Mr. YUEN is
currently providing accounting, secretarial and taxation services in Hong
Kong. He was the former independent non-executive director of Prosperity
Minerals Holdings Limited (a company whose shares had previously been
listed in the London Stock Exchange) from May 2006 to September
2014, the former independent non-executive director of Steed Oriental
(Holdings) Company Limited (stock code: 8277, a company whose shares
are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange) from September 2013 to
August 2016, and the former independent non-executive director of
Prosperity International Holdings (H.K.) Ltd (stock code: 803, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange) from January 2002 to May
2019.
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HO Yau Hong, Alfred (“Mr. HO", aged 66)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. HO was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 30
September 2004 and was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Board on 19 March 2012. He is a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Board and is an ex-officio
member.

Mr. HO obtained a Bachelor of Commerce (Honours) degree from
University of Windsor, Windsor, Canada in September 1984. Mr. HO
was admitted as a Canadian Chartered Accountant in December 1988, a
Fellow Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in September 1997, and a Fellow of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong in April 2001. Mr. HO was the former part-time
professor in accounting and auditing at Algonquin College, Ottawa,
Canada from September 1990 to April 1995. He was the former facilitator
for the Qualification Program of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in taxation from 2001 to 2015. He was the former
part-time tutor in taxation at the Open University of Hong Kong from
March 2006 to September 2007, and was the former part-time lecturer/
senior lecturer in taxation and accounting at the Hong Kong Shue Yan
University from September 2014 to May 2018. Mr. HO was the former
finance director of Sinosoft Technology PLC (a company whose shares
had previously been listed on the London Stock Exchange) from October
2007 to April 2009. Mr. HO is currently practising in Hong Kong with his
own accounting firm and as a director in corporate practice with Christian
Alliance CPA Limited.

YANG Harry (“Mr. YANG”, aged 61)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. YANG was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of each of the audit committee of the Board, the nomination
committee of the Board and the remuneration committee of the Board
with effect from 1 January 2023. He was also appointed as the chairman
of the audit committee and ESG committee with effect from 18 May
2023.

Mr. YANG obtained a Bachelor’'s degree majoring in English from the
Shandong Normal University, China in July 1983 and obtained a Master's
degree majoring in English for Foreign Trading from the University of
International Business and Economics, China in July 1989. Mr. YANG
joined the Sinochem Group as a section officer from August 1989 to
July 1991. Mr. YANG then served as a general manager and a director
of Sinochem (USA) Inc. from July 1991 to August 1998 and as a general
manager and managing director of Sinochem International Qil London

0., Ltd. from August 1998 to August 2001. From August 2001 to
February 2006, Mr. YANG served as a general manager and the vice
chairman of the board of US Agri-Chemicals Corporation. Mr. YANG was
the former executive director of Sinofert Holdings Limited (stock code:
297, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange) from 6
March 2006 to 20 March 2023. Mr. YANG has accumulated extensive
experience in international trade and international petroleum and fertiliser
business.
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(@)  Mr. Xl Yu, Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling and Ms. LIU Yu Jie shall retire from the
office as Directors by rotation, and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance
with Article 84 of the Articles of Association.

(b)  Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements on pages 198 to 199 of this annual report.

(c)  Save as disclosed therein, there are no other information relating to the
Directors is to be disclosed pursuant to the Rules 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WONG Lai Wa (“"Ms. WONG", aged 53)

Deputy General Manager of the Company

Supervisor of Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating Development Limited

Supervisor of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company
Limited

Supervisor of Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies Limited*

Ms. WONG was appointed as deputy general manager of the Company

in June 2007. She is currently the supervisor of various major subsidiaries

of the Group in the Mainland China. Ms. WONG obtained a Diploma

in Business Management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in

October 2005. She was formerly an accountant of NUHL from April 2003

to September 2008.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

(@ EXELE KRIBLEIRBIEALZEIHER
BEBRRBFAE LBERTEERTY -
RBARNB ZEMEIZMANEME  ER
EREBRERNEERRBERE LEREE -

EEHESHFBHERAFTRBE198EEFH199
BME B RERMFE10 -

—
O
=

BAFRAARBERN  TEEMBEBESRN
ERARBBIMES EHRRE13.5102)
RIEHBYEE -

SREIERE
mEE(ELT]
KL E] B4 AE T
PETERALREEERB ERE ﬁﬁﬁ
BT FEIREYEE AR

—~
n
~

' 535%)

/‘\Iéf%%‘/??ii%/;?ﬂffﬁ/ﬁﬂ

BERERC tﬁxxﬂﬁéifﬂ%$ GRS

%&IE°f&fﬁﬁ$ﬁlﬁ¢lmim%%zﬁﬁff%
RAMEE BELXIR _TZLFTAEEAE

PXABESHEEENE - RENR_-ZFT

—FUAE_TENFNAREGEHFTER

Z &5t e



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
sEE NN ERE®RN

LIU Yuan (“Ms. LIU Yuan”, aged 53)

Vice President of the Company
Director & General Manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste
Disposal Company Limited
Director of Yancheng NUHF Environmental Technology Limited*
Director of Xiangshui New Universe Environmental Technology Limited
General Manager of Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies Limited*
(resigned on 1 January 2023)
Director of Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited*
Director of Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited
Director of Liuzhou Xinyu Rongkai Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited*
Ms. LIU Yuan was appointed as vice president of the Company in August
2018. She is currently the director and/or the general manager of various
major subsidiaries of the Group in the Mainland China. Ms. LIU Yuan was
appointed as a finance manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste
Disposal Company Limited in April 2003 and then promoted to deputy
general manager in September 2005. She was appointed as director
and general manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited in January 2009. Ms. LIU Yuan graduated from Nanjing
College of Economics (now renamed as Nanjing University of Finance and
Economics) with a Professional Certificate in Accounting and Statistics in
June 1998, and she was conferred the title of intermediate accountant in
China in May 2001.

GU Lin ("Mr. GU", aged 54)

Chief Engineer of the Company

Deputy General Manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited

Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies
Limited*

Mr. GU was appointed as chief engineer of the Company and deputy

general manager of the Group’s subsidiary, Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental

Technologies Limited* in December 2018. Mr. GU is the deputy general

manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company

Limited since October 2007. Mr. GU obtained a Bachelor of Science

degree from the Jilin University, China, in chemical engineering in 1991.

He was conferred the professional qualification of senior engineer

(specialised in petrochemical engineering) in China in October 2012.
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Mr. YANG Jun Rong (“Mr. YANG Junrong”, aged 56)

Deputy General Manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited
Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies
Limited*
Director of Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited*
Mr. YANG Junrong was appointed in September 2020 as deputy general
manager of the Group's subsidiary, Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental
Technologies Limited*. Mr. YANG Junrong is the deputy general manager
of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited since
January 2009. Mr. YANG Junrong obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
from the Nanjing Institute of Aeronautics (now renamed as Nanjing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics) in materials science of
corrosion and protection. He was conferred the professional qualification
of senior environment engineering project manager (specialised in waste
treatment) in China in March 2015.

Mr. CHEN Hong Ye (“Mr. CHEN Hongye”, aged 45)

General Manager of Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating Development
Limited

Mr. CHEN Hongye was appointed as the general manager of the Group’s
subsidiary, Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating Development Limited
in September 2023. Mr. CHEN Hongye has worked as a manager in
the sewage treatment plant of Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating
Development Limited from November 2008 to December 2009. He has
worked as R&D project manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste
Disposal Company Limited from January 2010 to May 2011. Mr. CHEN
Hongye was appointed as the general manager of Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid
Waste Disposal Limited* from May 2011 to March 2014. Mr. CHEN
Hongye obtained a Master’'s postgraduate certificate specialised in
business administration from the Guizhou University, China, in July 2016.
He was conferred the intermediate engineering technology professional
qualification of engineer in Zhenjiang, China in June 2010.

* For identification purpose only
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(a)
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The emoluments of the above-mentioned members of senior  (a)

tsREEERE (EERIN 2B

management, other than Directors, fell within the following bands: T4 R
2023 2022
—E-=F —F—-—
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) e 4R (BT
Nil to HK$500,000 T T E500,000/8 70 = 1
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 T2 1,000,000 7T 4 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7C£ 1,500,000/ 7T = 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7C%2,000,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 722,500,000/ 7T =
5 5

(b)  The equity-settled share-based compensations of the above-mentioned  (b)
5 members of senior management, other than Directors, were set out as
follows:

Granted on
18 January 2022
and vested on

Granted on
15 January 2021
and vested on

EatstrmREREK B (EEHRIN) ABRA
amat BB OEERS N ZMe#ymT

Granted on
15 January 2020
and vested on

18 May 2023 26 August 2022 7 May 2021

P — RZZE-—F RZZE_TF

—A+NBEF —At+HEAEFY —At+HAERT

ERZZZ=F ERZZT__ ER-T-—%

AA+N\BHEBE NAZ+ HEEB HEAtRES

The total share options (the SR 2 36 AR

“Options"”) granted and vested EEERKE Unexercised and

to 3 of the above-mentioned BERKEEZERE lapsed

5 members of senior management 48 % ([BEAZAE]) 7,814,000 4,745,000 RETERD KM

(i) The Options granted represent the number of shares to be issued () BETHBEREEREETERER

upon exercise in full of the Options granted which is subject to
adjustment according to the vesting conditions specified in each
particular offer letters.
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(if)

(iii)

The Options granted on 15 January 2020 are exercisable at an
exercise price of HK$0.25 per share from the date of vesting to
the earlier of (i) the date on which the Options lapse in accordance
with the terms of the share option scheme; or (ii) the 30th
business day after the date of publication of the annual results
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022, of which
the vested options remain unexercised and have lapsed on 11 May
2023.

The Options granted on 15 January 2021 are exercisable at an
exercise price of HK$0.272 per share. The Options vested are
exercisable from the date of publication of the annual results of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “2023
Results Date”) to the earlier of (i) the date on which such Options
lapses in accordance with the terms of the share option scheme; or
(i) the 90th business day after the 2023 Results Date.

The Options granted on 18 January 2022 are exercisable at an
exercise price of HK$0.308 per share. Subject to the Options
having been vested, the Options vested are exercisable from the
date of publication of the annual results of the Company for the
year ending 31 December 2024 (the “2024 Results Date”) to the
earlier of (i) the date on which such Options lapses in accordance
with the terms of the share option scheme; or (ii) the 90th
business day after the 2024 Results Date.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of New Universe

Environmental Group Limited (the

“Company” together with its

subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”) are pleased to present

the corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

A. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(a)

(@)

The Board and the management are committed to upholding
good corporate governance practices and business ethics.
The Company believes that maintenance of high standard of
business ethics and good corporate governance is essential for
effective management, healthy business growth and fostering
a contemporary corporate culture, which drives the Group
to growing sustainably and safeguarding the interests of the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)").

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
has applied the principles of and complied with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Part
2 of Appendix C1 (“CG Code”) to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”),
but save for the code provision C.2.1, the Directors confirmed
that they were not aware of any other deviation from the CG
Code for the year then ended.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. With effect
from 16 October 2018, Mr. XI Yu (“Mr. XI”
Board (“Chairman”)) has assumed the role of both Chairman
and chief executive officer ("CEQ") of the Company. As
such, starting from 16 October 2018, the assumption of the
dual role of both Chairman and CEO by Mr. XI constitutes a
deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

, chairman of the
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%/‘\

RARZHE—

A Yarax N =+
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B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Composition of the Board

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine
members, consisting of five executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xl Yu (Chairman and CEO)

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling

Ms. JIANG Qian

Ms. LIU Yu Jie

Mr. HON Wa Fai (Financial Controller and Company Secretary)

Non-executive Director
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

Mr. YANG Harry (Note)

Note:

Mr. YANG Harry was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2023.

Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong did not re-elect as independent
non-executive Director and retired at the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 18 May 2023.

Operation of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management
and operations of the Group to the senior management of the
Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs,
the Board has established four Board committees including the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the executive
committee (the “Executive Committee”) (collectively referred
to as the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated
to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.
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(c)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

X ERA®RS

Composition of the Board Committees (c0 EEZEEMAK
The Company established four Board Committees. The table AANFRANBEEEZESZ - T X
below provides membership information of these committees REtHz2 T _=F+_A=1+—
on which each Board member served for the year ended 31 HEFEEEEEXEMRBH L
December 2023 as follows: EZEgCgEERNT :
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Executive
Committee Committee Committee Committee
EREES REZES FHEES BITZEES
Mr. XI Yu ER%AE C
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling =3 M
Ms. JIANG Qian BERL M
Ms. LIU Yu Jie BEALL M
Mr. HON Wa Fai BEBEE M
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong "t PR 2B 1 L i) C* M* M*
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael Br&lar s 4 M C M
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred fﬂ%@%& M M C
Mr. YANG Harry (ot 15 IR (8 55 H ) C** M** M**
Notes: Btaz
C: Chairman of the relevant Board committee C: EHEEZEE LR

C*/M*: Chairman and member of the Audit Committee and
member of the relevant Board committee up to the
conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 18
May 2023

C**: Chairman of the Audit Committee after the conclusion
of the annual general meeting held on 18 May 2023

M: Member of the relevant Board committee
M**: Member of the relevant Board committee with effect
from 1 January 2023

CIM* : BEBZEZEEETREKE
u&ﬁ@é%iAEWAZ
BEZE =FHEA+N
EZ%%@&X@%%%

Cx*: HIE-ZZHFRATN\BZ
h%ﬁité%%&ﬁ&%
“EEgE

M : ﬁ@§$§AEZ%;

M**: BT _=F—H - H#£E
TEBRE=ZZEGZKE
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(d) Directors’ attendance to board meetings and d EFERNEEFZeZMIRE
shareholders’ meeting(s) FHHFEBR
The following table shows the attendance record of each TRBERSEFEKENARRE
Board member for the board meetings and Shareholders’ 2+ -A=+—HItF
meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31 ERBH2ESS2EAREARE
December 2023: 2 O

Number of meetings attended/held

HEBIT2ERIK
Directors’
meeting
Regular Non-regular pursuant to Annual
Board Board CG Code general
meeting meeting C.2.7 meeting
RELE
&<t Al
EC.2.7M1%
EHESE IETEH #qiT2 RFRBF
Board member EEERE B EZS2g8E EZ883 g
Executive Director BITES
Mr. XI Yu EREE 4/4 5/5 11 1/1
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling SRR R E 4/4 5/5 - 1/1
Ms. JIANG Qian BBzt 4/4 3/5 - 0/1
Ms. LIU Yu Jie BIEANRKE 4/4 4/5 - 0/1
Mr. HON Wa Fai BEELL 4/4 5/5 - 11
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica ZYiit 4/4 5/5 - 0/1
Independent non-executive  BIFEHITES
Director
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong ete ) BRAEE L wEn 1/1 1/1 - 1/1
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael BT 4T %5 £ 4/4 5/5 1/1 1/1
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred Al RS & 4/4 4/5 11 1/1
Mr. YANG Harry Mete2 N = 4/4 5/5 Al 171
Notes: Wi
1. Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong not re-elected and retired as 1. BREBLITRARAFTARZ-E
independent non-executive Director at the conclusion of the Z=FRA+T N \BEHMRRBESF
annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 May AREAEERRERERAESE
2023. UIERHITEREZR -
2. Mr. YANG Harry was appointed as independent 2. BEREREEZERBMLIFEH
non-executive Director with effect from 1 January 2023. TEE B_ZE_=F—8—
A4 -
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(e) Directors’ attendance to the meetings of Board ) EENEEZECTETEN
Committees HE BN
(i) Meetings of Audit Committee () HEZLEe2E

(i)

(iii)

The following was an attendance record of the Audit
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31

December 2023:

Committee member

WTFAHEE T =41+
AZ+—BULFERITHE
REECEEMEFERR:

Number of meetings
attended/held

ZEEHE HE BT8R
Mr. YANG Harry BRERE
(current chairman of committee) (REZEE2FE) 4/4
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong RAEE T
(ex-chairman of committee) (FIZE&+/E) 11
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael B I8 50 4 4/4
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred ¥R & 4/4
Meetings of Nomination Committee (i) IEEZEE ‘
The following was an attendance record of the LWTABEZT_=F+=

Nomination Committee meetings held during the year

ended 31 December 2023:

Committee member

B=+— B FRERTHIE
AEBRRENHER

Number of meetings
attended/held

ZEERE HEBITZEERE
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael Rl ek (Z58F/F)

(chairman of committee) 1/1
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong RREH L 11
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred ¥R & 11
Mr. YANG Harry BRERE 1/1

Meetings of Remuneration Committee

The following was an attendance record of the
Remuneration Committee meetings held during the year

ended 31 December 2023:

Committee member

(i) #HINZEE &S5
WTABE-_Z_=F+=
BA=+—BIFER|1T0F
MEBeeRMLFILE:

Number of meetings
attended/held

ZE8E8/KE HEBITZEERE
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred R EE (ZEESFE)

(chairman of committee) 2/2
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong fRAEH L 1/1
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael e 4T 45 A 2/2
Mr. YANG Harry BRERE 2/2

CECCEER HFRAREBEBRAT
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(iv) Meetings of Executive Committee (iv) BiTZEESE%
The following was an attendance record of the Executive LWTARBZE-ZE-_=F+=
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 A=+—HLEFEZTHH
December 2023: nEEEEEMEFERE

Number of meetings

Committee member attended/held
ZEEHE HEBITZEERE
Mr. XI Yu (chairman of committee) XXkhA%E (ZE52FFE) 1/1
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RANBR L 11
Ms. JIANG Qian BfEzt 0/1
Ms. LIU Yu Jie FERLZ LT 0/1
Mr. HON Wa Fai RIS 4 171

54 New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Responsibilities, accountabilities and
contributions of Board and management

Every Director on Board knows his/her responsibilities as a
Director and its conduct, business activities and development.
Independent non-executive Directors have the same duties of
care and skill and fiduciary duties as executive Directors.

The Directors, collectively and individually, are aware of their
responsibilities to shareholders of the Company, for the
manner in which the affairs of the Company and the Group
are managed and operated. In the appropriate circumstances
and as and when necessary, Directors will seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense, ensuring the
board procedures, all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed.

The Board has overall responsibility for the stewardship of the
Group and gives clear directions as to the power delegated
to the management of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the management and administration functions of the
Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management of the Company and its subsidiaries should
report back in a timely manner to the Board and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering
into any commitments on behalf of the Group or in the name
of any member of the Group. The Board will review those
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Matters requiring the Board’s approval include, among others,
(i) review of overall policies and objectives for corporate
capital contributions, (ii) corporate budgets, (iii) corporate
plans of the Company and its subsidiaries, and any significant
changes thereto, (iv) investment plans involving significant
commitments of financial, technological and human
resources, or involving significant risks for the Company, (v)
major sales, transfers, or other dispositions of properties or
assets of the Group, (vi) significant changes in the Board's
policies, (vii) major organisational changes, (viii) financial
statements of the Group, including annual report, semi-annual
and quarterly financial reports and monthly operating
results, (ix) borrowing and financial arrangement, and (x)
other matters relating to the Group’s business which in the
judgement of the Chairman and/or the CEO of the Company
are of such significance to merit the Board’s consideration,
and adoption of such policies or such actions taken as the
Board considers to be in the best interests of the Company.

X ERA®RS

EEgNEEENBE
RV

EFTNELEFHANERERE
ENBERKDANEETR - ¥
BEDREE -BUEATESE
AENTEFHERNZERERM
FEA R E AR T F OB AT -

EEARARENANEREREER
BERRAIRAEEEBH A Y
AARIBERAZENET RNEER
ATERRBERER EFHRAES
KBEBUEXEER MERALRAG
AECEREESREF MAER
BRAIN RO EEST -

EFQHASENEE2EAR
THERTFARRLEMBRARE
BEENBNGLAKREEERITR
B BHIE R  LERE  BEA
RAEAIREMBRREREERERRF
BEEEEBRMEHARERRERA
SEIUREFBEFMKERRANS
BRI VEMAENEESFENES
STHEMEBR - EF SR E BB
ZEZY  NHERREDERRA

RENFE -

EREZGRENZTHEBRE (HF
BRE)(WVEMLEERNRANER
BRRBRZ  (DEERE : (i)AR
ANEMB AR EERE REE
MERES : (VFREAPH &K
MEANEREEHFEARRNE
FREBREABNKEE - (WAS
EMEREENTEHE HEX
HMEE  VIEFEBRRNEAE
B (viDEBEABES  (viiDAEE
ZHBHER (BEFHR FFER
FTEHBHRERTALEES) (X
fEERBERYE  REBAKE
EBOEMEER MARAEER
/AT IR AR EL O H B 40 1t B K DA ER
ESEFESFELER  REMAHK
REZEAR/TEARAKENZ
MABRBBRKITE °

CECCZEER FFRREBEBRAF

55



56

COR

1

P

ORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

e
=
=]

" wE

In order to ensure that the Board can obtain effective,
diversified and independent views and opinions, the Company
has established an evaluation and review mechanism to

enhance the accountability of Directors and provide valuable

feedback information that can help improve the effectiveness
of the Board, give full play to its advantages, and point out
areas for further development.

The operation of such mechanism is summarised as follows:

(a)

the Board may conduct internal evaluations (led by
independent non-executive directors) and solicit
opinions from Directors on the performance of the
Board in the form of questionnaires and/or interviews;

the Board may also invite senior executives and key
stakeholders to provide useful opinions. Appropriate
improvements can be made in each assessment,
focusing on the progress in solving the main issues
raised in the previous assessment. The evaluation report
will be submitted to the Board to discuss the results and
action plans for improvement;

after the Board's evaluation, the Company will disclose
the results of the Board’s evaluation in the corporate
governance report to achieve accountability and
transparency. In addition to disclosing the results of
the Board’ evaluation, the Company will also set out
(i) the purpose and scope of the Board’s evaluation; (ii)
the method of evaluation; (iii) the criteria used for the
evaluation; and (iv) the action plan to be taken (such as
Directors’ training); and

the Board may also hire independent professional
companies or persons to evaluate the Board, as an
auxiliary method in addition to the evaluation of the
Board by internal leaders.
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All executive Directors and non-executive Directors bring in a
variety of experience and expertise to the Company with their
respective responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions

set out as follows:

(i) Function of Executive Directors

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

X ERA®RS

MEBERTESTRIFATESF/AR
AEREZERLRER HEXE
ZBE HMEREB#SIET

() BTTEFA)BEE

Name Position Current Function
i34 Br BRNEE
Mr. XI Yu Chairman, CEO and Leading the Board

executive Director

ERRE IR HERR
ynEs

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling Executive Director

RPRRT WIES

Ms. JIANG Qian Executive Director
BEnt HIES

Ms. LIU Yu Jie Executive Director

YO e 0183

Mr. HON Wa Fai Executive Director, financial

controller, and company
secretary
BERELE B7EE MHEER
DANE

Developing vision and strategies of the Group

Developing long term mission of the Group

Ensuring good corporate governance functions and practices
Formulating strategic planning and direction

Developing corporate goals, targets and objectives of the Group
Investors relations

BLEZE

HET RSB MES RKR

HAARENR SR

BRRFCRERBELER

BRREREIRA R

HEAASEREER  BORTE

REEBE

Implementing corporate governance practices

Implementing procedures to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations

Administration of head office

Human resources management of the Group

Overseeing daily operations of the Group through delegations
HOLXERER
HITRFNBRRNQERER - R KRG
ERERMTHER

FEENANERER

EREIEZALERRSE

Advising on PRC compliance and corporate finance of the Company

Advising on merger and acquisition and investment opportunities for the Group
RAAAETPEER R ERERMER
HAEENBRRARERHER

Advising on PRC compliance and corporate finance of the Company

Advising on merger and acquisition and investment opportunities for the Group
RERTBTREERRERRERMER
HAEEMBRARERHER

Overseeing financial reporting, accounting, treasury, financial control, and
compliance functions of the Company

Formulating merger and acquisition exercises

Investors relations
ERRRANMBERS gt Bl MBEERERDE
REGEEY

REEBE
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(i) Function of non-executive Directors (i) FEBTTEFE B EE
Name Independence Current Function
i3S By B OB AY
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica X - Advising on corporate governance practices
- Advising on procedures to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations
EXREL X - HAREERERRMER

- AEREFNAERLR RELEMREE

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael v/ - Advising on auditing, taxation, compliance and financial matters

- Monitoring risk management and internal control functions of the Group

- Bringing in independent judgement on issues of policy, performances, accountancy,

taxation, key appointments and standards of conduct

- Serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees

- Scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives

- Possessing with professional accounting qualification and financial experience
Busler s 4 / - HER WA ARRMBEERMER

- BERAKEMEREERANEAYY

- BB RB 8RB FRRERGARNFEELBUAE

- EBRER %M&%%?é

- BEARAERAAARRFENRR

. %ﬁiﬁaﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred / - Advising on auditing, taxation, compliance and financial matters

- Monitoring risk management and internal control functions of the Group

- Bringing in independent judgement on issues of policy, performances, accountancy,

taxation, key appointments and standards of conduct

- Serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees

- Scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives

- Possessing with professional accounting qualification and financial experience
L / - HER WA SRRMBEERMEER

- ERAKEMEREERANEADY

- BEE - RB g BB FERAROARNZEELBUHE

- [EBRER FMRiELZES

- BEALAERAFESRFENER

- BRERXEERRABER

Mr. YANG Harry / - Monitoring corporate government practices, risk management and internal control
functions of the Group
- Bringing in independent judgement on issues of corporate strategies, policy,
performances, key appointments, standards of conduct, and ESG commitment
- Serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees
- Scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives
BRERE / - ERASENAREATRER BREERABLAT
- HOEER BE AR TERM TRER RRE HEREROEGELET
i
- ERRER ”M&&%iéﬁ
- BBARAERLAARRFEMER

M
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Board meetings and procedures

The Board conducts regular board meetings at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular board
meetings of the Company shall involve active participation
and presence of a majority of Directors entitled to be present,
in person or through interactive electronic meeting or hybrid
meeting. Ad-hoc Board meetings are convened when a
board-level decision on a particular matter is required which
include obtaining Board consent through circulating written
resolutions or through interactive electronic meeting or
hybrid meeting. Board meetings are structured to allow open
discussion. All Directors have participated in discussing the
strategy, operational and financial performance, and risk
management and internal control of the Group.

The Chairman of the Board is primarily responsible for drawing
up and approving the agenda for each Board meeting. He
takes into account, where appropriate to ensure, any matter
proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda
for regular Board meetings. The Chairman delegates this
responsibility to the company secretary of the Company
appointed under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules (the “Company
Secretary”).

Notice of at least 14 days has been given for all regular Board
meetings of the Company. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notices have been given.

The Company Secretary shall be the secretary to the Board and
the ex-official secretary to all committees who is responsible
for keeping minutes of all Board meetings and meetings of
Board Committees. Minutes of all meetings are open for
inspection at reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

Minutes of all Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees have recorded in sufficient details the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and
final versions of the Board minutes have been sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively, within a
reasonable time after the board meeting is held.

Any Director may request the Board in writing to seek for
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the expense of the Company. The Board shall resolve to
provide separate independent professional advice to the
Directors to assist them to discharge their duties to the
Company.
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If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interests in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter shall be
dealt with by a Board meeting with all Directors be present
in person rather than a written resolution. The independent
non-executive Directors, who and whose associates have
no material interest in the transaction shall be present at
the Board meeting to deal with the matter. Other than the
exceptional situation under the Listing Rules, any Director who
or whose associates have any material interest in any proposed
Board resolutions shall not be counted as a quorum in the
relevant Board meeting or shall be abstained from voting for
the Board resolutions. All Board Committees adopted the
same principles and procedures used in the Board meetings.

Supply of and access to information
For regular board meetings, and as far as practicable in all

other cases, an agenda and accompanying board papers will
be sent, in full, to all Directors in a timely manner and at
least 3 days before the intended date of a Board or Board
committee meeting, and for other ad hoc or urgency meetings
at other agreed period.

The senior management of the Group is obliged to supply the
Board and its committees of the Company with appropriate
and adequate information through financial reports, business
and operational reports and budget statements in a timely
manner to keep the Board members informed of the latest
development of the Group. The Board members have the
right to access to the Group's information, board papers and
related materials from either the Chairman or the Company
Secretary. Where any Director requires more information
than is volunteered by the senior management, he/she
makes further enquiries where necessary and shall separate
and independent access to the senior management of the
Company.

Independence of independent non-executive

Directors
The Listing Rules stipulates that every listed issuer to have at

least three independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the Board, and at least one of whom must
have the appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise. For the year ended
31 December 2023, two of the independent non-executive
Directors have the appropriate professional qualifications of
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors have been expressly
identified as such in all corporate communications that
disclose the names of the Directors.
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Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has given an annual confirmation of his independence to
the Company, and the Company considers them to be
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Based on the annual written confirmation given by each of
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael, Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred
and Mr. YANG Harry to meet the criteria set out in the
independence guideline in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the undertaking in writing given by each of
them as to their continuing independence, the Board believes
that each of Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael, Mr. HO Yau Hong,
Alfred and Mr. YANG Harry is independent.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among members
of the Board, it is the policy of the Company to consider a
wide range of criteria when deciding on appointments to the
Board and the continuation of those appointments. The Board
considers gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service to be relevant to the Company’s business.
Both Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong,
Alfred are certified public accountants in Hong Kong. Mr. HO
Yau Hong, Alfred is also a fellow of the Taxation Institution of
Hong Kong. Mr. YANG Harry is experienced in the petroleum
and agricultural chemical industry. Each of Mr. YUEN Kim
Hung, Michael, Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred and Mr. YANG
Harry brings to the Board via their professional qualifications,
experience and expertise in financial matters, management
vision and other technical skill set. The professional
qualification, skills, knowledge, experience as well as length of
service of each of Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael, Mr. HO Yau
Hong, Alfred and Mr. YANG Harry provides the Board with a
range of perspectives, insights and challenge that enable the
Board to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively,
support good decision making in view of the core businesses
and strategy of the Group, and support succession planning
and development of the Board.

Relationship between Board members
Each of Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling, being executive

Directors, is also a director and shareholder of the Company's
substantial shareholder, New Universe Enterprises Limited
("NUEL"), which holds approximately 36.54% (2022:
36.54%) of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2023.
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Both Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are directors of Sun
Ngai International Investment Limited (“Sun Ngai”), which
is the landlord of the office premises leased by the Group as

head office in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Both Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are directors of
China (HK) Chemical and Plastics Company Limited (“China
(HK) Chemical”) which is principally engaged in trading of
plastic resins in Hong Kong and China.

Both Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are directors of New
Universe Holdings Limited (“NUHL"”). NUHL is an investment
holding company that interested in 97% of the issued share
capital of China (HK) Chemical and 100% of the issued share
capital of Sun Ngai.

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica is the daughter of Mr. XI Yu.

To the best knowledge of the Company, save as disclosed
herein, there is no other financial, business and family
relationship among members of the Board and/or between
the Chairman and the CEO of the Company. All of the Board
members are free to exercise their independent judgment.

Continuous professional development of

Directors
Code provision C.1.4 stipulates that all Directors should

participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company should be responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill
and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group.
Every newly appointed Director shall receive a formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction to ensure that he or she
has a proper understanding of the business and operations of
the Group and that he or she is fully aware of his or her duties
and responsibilities as a director under applicable statutory
and regulatory rules and requirements.

The Chairman encourages all Directors and senior executives
to enroll professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance/Companies
Law and Act, corporate governance practices and other
laws and regulations organised by professional bodies or
in-house trainings provided by the Company so that they
can continuously update and further improve their relevant
knowledge and skills.
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Corporate governance/
updates on laws,
rules and regulations
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Accounting/finance/
management or other
professional knowledge

EER EE - RAR a5t B EER
RO E S HE AR
Attend Attend
Reading seminar or Reading seminar or
materials briefing materials briefing
e SmmE
Board member EEEgRE B S| AR EAGE: B E AR EALE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. XI Yu ZE%SE v 4 v v
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling R/NR I v/ v/ v v
Ms. JJANG Qian BELt v v v v/
Ms. LIU Yu Jie ZEAL T v v v v
Mr. HON Wa Fai FRIEB A v v v v/
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica ES¢ iz e v v v v/
Independent non-executive BIFHITESE
Director
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong* REEL* v - v/ -
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael EJE»'JH%I%E v v v/ v/
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred At RS v/ v/ v v
Mr. YANG Harry BRERE v/ v/ v v
*Not re-elected and retiredon  *R-_Z-_=FHA/+/\HEXF

18 May 2023 BIRWIRE o

C. CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(a)

The identity of the Chairman and chief executive
Mr. XI Yu was appointed as the Chairman of the Board since
11 April 2016 and he was also appointed as the CEO of the
Company since 16 October 2018.

Deviation from the code provision C.2.1

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the CEO of the
Company should be carried out by different individuals which
have been clearly defined.

Since 16 October 2018, Mr. XI Yu has performed both of
the roles as the Chairman and the CEO of the Company.
This deviates from code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 of the
Listing Rules, which requires that the roles of Chairman and
the CEO of the Company should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual.

After evaluation of the current situation of the Group and
taking into account of the experience and past performance
of Mr. Xl Yu, the Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate
and in the best interest of the Company at the present stage
to vest the roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the Company
on the same person as it helps to facilitate the execution of the
Group's business strategies and maximises the effectiveness of
its operation.
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In addition, the Board also considers that: (i) the Company has
sufficient internal controls to provide checks and balances on
the functions of the Chairman and the CEO of the Company;
(ii) Mr. XI Yu as the Chairman and CEO is fully accountable
to the shareholders of the Company and contributes to the
Board and the Group on all top level and strategic decisions
and is responsible for ensuring that all Directors act in the best
interests of the Shareholders; and (iii) this structure will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company. The Board believes
that vesting of the roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the
Company on the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and will enable the
Company to make and implement decisions in a timely and
efficient manner. However, the Board will continue to review
and consider splitting the role of chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer of the Company at a time when it is
appropriate.

Mr. XI Yu, as the Chairman of the Company, provides
leadership and strategic direction for the Board. The Chairman
ensures that the Board works effectively and performs its
responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for ensuring that
good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established. He encourages all Directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead
to ensure that it acts in the best interests of the Company.
The Chairman encourages any Director with different views
to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for discussion
of issues and ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
consensus.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Chairman has held
a meeting once with the independent non-executive Directors
without presence of all executive Directors to discuss on risk
management and sustainable growth of the Company.

The Chairman ensures appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with the shareholders of the
Company that their views are communicated to the Board
as a whole. The Chairman promotes a culture of openness
and debate by facilitating the effective contribution of
non-executive Directors in particular and ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive Directors.

Mr. XI Yu, as the CEO of the Company, is responsible for
strategic planning and implementation, sourcing, meeting
with potential business partners, exploring for business
opportunities for the Group, client development, recruiting
senior management, staff development, collaboration across
the affiliated company network, enhancing best practices, and
timely reporting to the Board regarding the Group’s overall
progress.
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D. NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS D. EHMITES

(a) The terms of appointment of non-executive @) FFRTESEEFH
Directors
Each of the two independent non-executive Directors, MM B IERITEZ RIS A K
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred, MERAESBEHARARNTEE —
has signed a renewed letter of appointment with the Company NERMEEE FHE T ==F
for a tenure of two years commenced on 1 February 2023. ZA—HR%B REIMF -
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong has signed a letter of appointment as RREETE R EABIIENTE
an independent non-executive director for a tenure of two ERITEEE FHE T -—F
years commenced on 1 April 2021, who has not re-elected MA—BR® REME  BRZ
and retired at the conclusion of the annual general meeting of T=FRA+TNBOREBEFERX
the Company held on 18 May 2023. ERESERNASHERKRE -
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica has signed a renewed letter of XYM+ EBRITEEZABRIE
appointment with the Company for a tenure of two years WITEER  BARAIR—DE
commenced on 30 June 2022 upon her re-designation from MEEE EHBE_ZE-__F7XA
executive director to non-executive director. =+ A% BEWE -
Mr. YANG Harry has signed a letter of appointment as an HBREEEEREEBLIFNITE
independent non-executive director for a tenure of two years EFRIEZAE THE=ZZE==F
commenced on 1 January 2023. —A—BH% REMEF -
The letter of appointment signed by each of the non-executive FRMTEETZEHEERRAEIINE
Directors with the Company is subject to the termination by FETREP-—FELTIDR=1F
either party giving not less than three months prior written AOEXEEBA T ALKLE - A
notice and subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in BERARANEEXHRERTIR
accordance with the Company’s constitutional documents. A fEEE T -

(b) Further appointment of independent (b) BYIERITES 2B
non-executive Directors
Code provision B.2.3 requires that serving more than 9 years SFAME X EB.2. 3G R EEE T I
could be relevant to the determination of a non-executive PITEEMBILME  [ETES
director’s independence. Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael HBBIF I RMMER—EZERAR -
and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred have been independent Fraldl e RAIEELEEDRIE =
non-executive Directors since 24 April 2002, and 30 EE_FEA T HARZZTEN
September 2004 respectively. Each of Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, FANA=ZTHREEBLIEHNIT
Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred has served as the BEZ -l EERAEREES
Company’s independent non-executive Director for more than BETARRBIIERTESTAN
9 years, further appointment for each of them shall be subject F E—STEERSEEEEFALAR
to a separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders of ARERAARRRBAFKAE Lt
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company. KR FAEE - BEM AR E—
The papers to shareholders accompanying that resolution RBEERRO TR BEHEES
would include the reasons why the Board believes each of CEAMNRBERESATNBEEILA
them is still independent and should be re-elected. TREESENRRA -
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E. BOARD COMMITTEES

(a)

The Executive Committee

(i)

(if)

(i)

The Role and function

The Company has established Executive Committee
with written terms of reference, pursuant to which the
Board delegates its powers and authorities to the Board
Committee(s) and management to manage the business
of the Group, and to make investment and business
decisions for the Group within its authority and to take all
actions to give effect to such decisions.

The composition
The Executive Committee comprises of all executive
Directors:

. XI'Yu (chairman of the committee)
. CHEUNG Siu Ling

. JIJANG Qian

. LIU Yu Jie

. HON Wa Fai

Summary of works during the year

(1

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
principal works performed by the Executive
Committee were mainly for the consideration
and approval of authorised transactions within
the terms of reference of the committee, and
the execution of resolutions and directions of
the Board. All decisions made by the Executive
Committee during the year have been reviewed,
confirmed and adopted by the Board.

Provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance and financial position to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.

Reported to the Board at the next scheduled regular
meeting of the Board in which discussion would
be carried out for any decision or commitment
(made within its authority for ordinary course of
business of the Group) approved by the Executive
Committee and entered into on behalf of the
Group.

Ensured all the relevant management personnel of
the Group and the Company Secretary would be
provided with all deeds, documents or contracts
entered into on behalf of the Group pursuant to
the approval of the Executive Committee (within its
authority) for record keeping.
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(b)
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The Nomination Committee

(i)

The Role and function

The Company has established Nomination Committee
with written terms of reference adopted in compliance
with paragraph B.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee assists the Board in making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors under
the Nomination Policy adopted which provides the
key selection criteria and principles of the Nomination
Committee in making any such recommendations.

(1)  Selection Criteria:

When making recommendations regarding the
appointment of any proposed candidate to
the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall consider a variety of factors
including without limitation to the following
in assessing the suitability of the proposed
candidate:

° Reputation for integrity;
o Relevant skills and experience in the

environmental protection industry and other
relevant sectors;

. Commitment in respect of sufficient time,
interest and attention to the Company’s
business;

o Diversity in all aspects, including but

not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge;

o Compliance with the criteria of
independence as prescribed under Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules for the appointment of
an independent non-executive Director; and

o Any other relevant factors as may be
determined by the Nomination Committee
or the Board from time to time.

(2)  The appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board shall be made in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association and other applicable rules and
regulations.
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Nomination Procedures:

o The Secretary of the Nomination Committee
shall convene a meeting, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board
members (if any), for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee may also nominate candidates
for its consideration.

o In the context of appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such
individual and make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval.

o In the context of re-appointment of
any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election
at a general meeting.

The Nomination Committee shall refer to
the “Procedures for shareholders to propose
candidates for election as Directors” of the
Company in relation to the nomination of any
shareholder of any proposed candidate for
election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall review and
monitor the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board on an
annual basis and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy.

The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to recommendation of candidates
to stand for election at a general meeting.

Review of the Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the
Nomination Policy periodically in line with the
Company’s strategy and recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval.
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(8) Review of the Board Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy on an annual basis.

The composition

The Nomination Committee comprises of three (from
1 January 2023 to 18 May 2023: four) independent
non-executive Directors:

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael
(chairman of the committee)

Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong
(retired on 18 May 2023)

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

Mr. YANG Harry
(with effect from 1 January 2023)

Summary of works during the year
(1) Reviewed the composition of the Board,;

(2) Reviewed and advised on the re-election of the
existing Directors and the appointment of a new
executive Director to the Board in accordance with
the Nomination Policy of the Company;

(3) Discussed, reviewed and made recommendations
pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy of the
Company; and

(4) Assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors proposed for re-election
at the annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee
The Role and function

The Company has established the Remuneration
Committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with paragraph

E.1 of the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee assists the Board
in making recommendations to the Board on the
determination of policy for the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Company as
follows:

(1) approval of the remuneration and compensation
of the Directors and key senior management of the
Group and assessment of their performance;

(2)  making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the implementation of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration;
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(3) ensuring no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration;

(4)  advising Shareholders on how to vote with respect
to any service contracts of directors that requires
shareholders’ approval,;

(5)  making such alterations, additions or vesting
determination in relation to option scheme rules,
as do not require Shareholders’ consent, as the
remuneration committee considers necessary or
desirable subject to the limits set out in such rules;
and

(6) consideration and resolving upon all grants
of options under the Company’s share option
schemes.

(i) Directors’ remuneration policy

The Remuneration Committee has made
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all directors
and senior management, such that the remuneration
packages offered by the Company can be competitive,
adequate (but not excessive) and in line with current
market practice to attract, retain, motivate and reward
the Directors and senior management, thereby having
sufficient, experienced and competent manpower
to achieve the Company’s corporate goals and
objectives. With the policy, the Company endeavours
to attain internal and external equity and long-term
value creation for the Shareholders. The Directors’
Remuneration Policy has been developed and adopted
by the Board based on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee which is set out as follows:

(1) Applicability
The Directors’ Remuneration Policy is applicable to
all executive directors and non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of
the Company.

(2) Remuneration structure
The remuneration package comprises mainly
fixed component and variable component will
be considered to ensuring an appropriate and
balanced package that links shareholders’ interests
with those of the directors.

(i) Fixed component

Basic salary and/or director’s fee (as the
case may be) is determined on the basis
of factors, including the expectation of
the respective director, job nature of the
position, (including responsibilities and time
commitment), the remuneration package
offered by comparable companies and
employment conditions under the existing
group structure.
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(i) Variable components, if applicable (i) A EE G (mE
)

. Performance-based remuneration . eI RO)
includes a performance bonus which G
is awarded on a discretionary basis to & REX
motivate and reward high performers & B A E A
decided by reference to both the K 5% 38 M &
Group’s and individual performance; BERT M
and B AN 4% B)

KELHEH
BT &k

. Incentive scheme that includes share . B 15 B IR A
options as an incentive to motivate, BT R ®
recognise, reward and retain key and B E R &
high performers. ABLE - R

A 22 AN

BT A 4 AN

SEEMAE ©

(i) Other benefits for Executive Directors, if (i) BMITEFMEM
applicable 75 (208 )

e The contributions made under the . R H% 58 i 1
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme; NE T E
and B H & fit

7ok

e Fringe benefits include medical . Bt o042 A 2
insurance, business travel insurance. B ER

TIRER -

(ivy Non-Executive Directors (Including (iv) HHTEZE (B
Independent Non-Executive Directors) BUHNTEE)
. Non-executive directors receive a fixed . FERITES

director’s fee. Their remuneration is I B OE E

reviewed annually, with reference to ExMe -

companies of comparable business 1, 1P9 &9 7 BA

and scale, by the Remuneration & F B

Committee and approved by the ZEg2=E

Board; and BB
AR R
N REITR
o WHRE
EN
&

. Any non-executive directors are o FAATIEBTT
eligible to be granted the share BEEHEE
options determined by the Company BERERD
to reward for their contributions and A P EE S B
continuing efforts. BB A

B 3 H 1
CORCN WSS
BES o

TECCFFER HFREEEARLQA 71
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(3)

(4)

(5)

e s

Benchmarking

The Company endeavours to obtain up-to-date
information of the prevailing market remuneration
environment. The remuneration packages
of comparable companies will be used as a
benchmark to ensure that the remuneration
packages offered to the Directors remain
appropriate and competitive.

Annual remuneration review

(i) The Company will conduct a review of its
remuneration structure annually. Using
benchmark information prepared by senior
management, the Remuneration Committee
will consider and make informed decisions
or make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual
directors.

(i) In all cases, no director or any of his/her
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
should be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

Review of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
The Company, through the Remuneration
Committee, will review the Directors’
Remuneration Policy at least annually and, if
necessary, from time to time, as appropriate, to
ensure that it is in line with the current market
practices and requirements of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules. Any amendment to the policy should
be submitted to the Board for approval.

Options granted during the year
During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no
Options granted.

For further details of the Options granted and
outstanding as at 31 December 2023, please refer to
pages 101 to 108 of this annual report.
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(iv)

(v)
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The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the terms
of the grant of such Options (including (i) the vesting
period for such Options, which is not less than 12
months from the date of grant of the Options; (ii) the
vesting conditions specified in the offer letter of each
respective grantee of the Options, which comprises
certain performance targets; and (iii) the cancellation of
unvested Options as specified in the offer letter of each
respective grantee of the Options if certain performance
targets are not achieved).

Taking into account that the grant of such Options
was to encourage the grantees of the Options to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and
the Shares for the benefit of the Company and the
Shareholders and to allow such grantees to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company, the Remuneration
Committee was of the view that the grant of the Options
aligns with the purpose of the Share Option Scheme,
allowing such grantees to benefit while aligning their
interests with those of the Company. In view of the
above, the Remuneration Committee considered
that the grant of such Options was appropriate and
accordingly gave its approval to such grant.

The composition

The Remuneration Committee comprises of three (from
1 January 2023 to 18 May 2023: four) independent
non-executive Directors:

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred (chairman of the committee)
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong (retired on 18 May 2023)

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael
Mr. YANG Harry (with effect from 1 January 2023)

Summary of works during the year

(1) Approved and made recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration of the newly
appointed executive Directors;

(2) Reviewed and approved the remunerations of
the Directors and key senior management for the
year ended 31 December 2022, the 6 months
ended 30 June 2023, and for the year ended 31
December 2023;

(3) Approved and assessed on the compensation to
all Board members in commensurate with their
responsibility and performance; and

(4)  Consideration and determination of vesting rights
to be conferred to the grantees in relation to
the options granted under the Company’s share
option scheme.
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(d) The Audit Committee d) BEZLESE
() The Role and function ()  BEREE

(1) The Company has established the Audit (1) ARFREBRELETRE
Committee with written terms of reference F321 R EE AT
adopted in alignment with the Rule 3.21 of Listing Al 2 =r Bl & X %D .3R&
Rules and the code provision D.3 of CG Code. KRUYBZRLZEE  WH

MEmMBESE -

(2) The Audit Committee is to serve as a focal point (2) BERZECNRFBR
for communication among other Directors, the HitbpsR  ZEEZ
external auditor, and the management in relation & B S IR NN ah BE
to functions of financial and other reporting, Ricige  BEHME
statutory audits, risk management and internal F MR A K E R
control systems; and to assist the Board in fulfilling [BERsEEERE I
its responsibilities by providing an independent FRREHVERRE
review of financial reporting, by satisfying B BB RIENRAT
themselves as to the effectiveness of the risk BB E IR K BT R
management and internal control systems and FHEREARE L E
as to the efficiency of independent audits of the BRREBEESE
Company. THEME -

(3) The Audit Committee has a monitoring function (3) BERZTECTEAERE
to work with the executive Board members and e EHITEFTEKE
to ensure the whole Board is able to determine AE HEREEESS
the appropriate corporate governance practices REETEARN AR T
applicable to the Company’s operations and to EEZHRECEERT
ensure processes and procedures are in place to HoURBRTEAB MR
achieve the Company’s corporate governance LR LAEIR ARG
objectives and to discharge the duties of the Board JEEERBENRET
in performing its corporate governance functions EZgRBAEEAT
under the CG Code include: AlexiE H BRI

TS B
. to develop and review the Company’s o G N - S NE/N
policies and practices on corporate AW EE B
governance and make recommendations; BRER IR
M
e to review and monitor the training and . W REREAR
continuous professional development of REERERE
Directors and senior management of the BEZIEI REF
Company; BEEER:
. to review and monitor the Company’s . M RERAEAR
policies and practices on compliance with AT EERE
legal and regulatory requirements; BEERNBE R
B
. to develop, review and monitor the code of . # T A KBS
conduct and compliance policies applicable RiE AR AR A
to employees and Directors of the Company; BENMNEEZEMNTT
=7 kEa R
%
. to monitor and mitigate any adverse impact . R REE M
arisen from any deviation from the CG Code REEDEERT
to the Company s policies and practices on 2l NN B R
corporate governance; and XERBELE
REEBNEMRT
e &k
. to review the Company’s compliance with . B ARNA AR
the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate BT EETARST
Governance Report. B &1 %AW
EZHBEER-
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(4) The Audit Committee takes the advisory role to
ensure the Board to continuously review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance with the CG Code.

(5)  The Audit Committee takes the monitoring role to
ensure the Company complies with the Disclosure
Policy:

The Company adopted a written Disclosure
Policy with aims to provide a general guide to
the Directors, officers*, senior management
and relevant employees* of the Company in
the handling of confidential information and/or
monitoring of information disclosure pursuant to
the applicable laws and regulations whereas:

# “Officer” as defined in the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") includes
a director, manager or secretary of, any
person involved in the management of the
Company.

* “Relevant employees” includes employees
of the Company and directors/employees
of the Company’s subsidiary or holding
company who, because of their office or
employment, are likely to possess Inside
Information (as referred to in Part XIVA of
the SFO).

(6) The Audit Committee takes the monitoring role
to ensure the Company to purchase adequate
insurance cover in respect of legal action against
the Directors pursuant to code provision C.1.8 of
the CG Code.

The composition

The Audit Committee comprises of three (from 1
January 2023 to 18 May 2023: four) independent
non-executive Directors:

Mr. YANG Harry (became member with effect from
1 January 2023 and became chairman of the
committee with effect from 18 May 2023)

Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong (ex-chairman of the committee)
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred
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Summary of works during the year

M

(2)

Reviewed the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2022;

Reviewed the Dividend Policy adopted by the
Company pursuant to code provision F.1.1
before the Board recommending the payment of
dividends;

Discussed and reviewed with the independent
auditor, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited on the interim
results of the Company for the 6 months ended 30
June 2023, of which Crowe (HK) CPA Limited has
carried out independent review;

Discussed and reviewed with the Board on the
quarterly unaudited results for 3 months ended 31
March 2023 and 9 months ended 30 September
2023 respectively;

Reviewed semi-annually on the independent
valuation reports prepared by the independent
professional valuer engaged by the Company in
relation to the fair value of the equity investments,
impairment testing on the goodwill arisen on the
business combination of environmental waste
treatment operation acquired in 2007, and the
fair value of the 30% equity investment in of an
associate acquired through a business combination
in 2017,

Reviewed the independent valuation report and
terms and conditions for the disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in the subsidiary engaged
in environmental equipment construction and
installation services as announced on 31 July
2023.

Discussed and reviewed with the independent
professional advisers, SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited, engaged by the Company on the
continuous effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group;

Reviewed the renewal of the directors and
officers liability insurance cover with appropriate
indemnity limits in respect of legal action against
the Directors; and

Discussed with the independent auditor the nature
and scope of the audit, reporting obligations, and
the potential impact to audit works in relation to
the annual audit for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.
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Established the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") Committee on 18 May 2023
with terms of reference of the committee adopted
pursuant to Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules which
empowered the committee to organise necessary
personnel within the Group to work on the ESG
Report ("ESG Committee”), and the chairman of
the ESG Committee should be any independent
non-executive director with Mr. YANG Harry
being appointed as the first chairman and other
independent non-executive directors became the
ex-officio members. The main duties of the ESG
Committee include:

developing ESG-related strategies, including
identifying, evaluating and monitoring ESG
issues that could affect the Group’s business
activities, performance, sustainable growth
and reputation;

identifying ESG-related opportunities and risks
that are important for the Group and makes
recommendations to the Board;

improving the Group's awareness and
knowledge of ESG issues;

monitoring training and continuing
professional development of the directors and
executives of the Company in relation to the
ESG issues;

overseeing the integration of strategically
significant ESG policies into the business
operations and strategy;

facilitating communications with employees,
investors, and other stakeholders with respect
to ESG issues;

assessing ESG risks, and advising on those of
strategic significance to the Company and
providing anticipatory and mitigation plans;
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reviewing material interests of the Group's key
stakeholders and reporting their point of views
on material issues to the Company in order to
secure correct long term strategic direction;

reviewing and reporting the Group’s
sustainability performance, including but
not limited to key performance indexes
("KPIs"”) and achievement to target, relative to
comparable peers/historical records or other
benchmarked to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring policies and
practices of the Group in respect of
compliance with the law and regulatory
requirements;

formulating, reviewing and monitoring the
relevant code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) of employees of the Group and
the directors of the Company in relation to
ESG issues; and

reviewing and advising the Board on the
preparation of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (“ESG Report”) of the
Company annually with regard to the Group'’s
performance on sustainability and compliance
to the requirements and KPIs set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (Appendix C2 of the Listing
Rules), and confirm and approve the ESG
Report of the Company before submitting it to
the Board for final endorsement.
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F. COMPANY SECRETARY

(a)

The Company has its current Company Secretary appointed
since 6 October 2004. The Company Secretary, Mr. HON Wa
Fai is an executive Director and employed as the financial
controller of the Company, who is a member of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute and a certified public
accountant (as defined in the Professional Accountants
Ordinance, Cap. 50, Laws of Hong Kong).

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. HON Wa Fai has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in The Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (the
"Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.

With specific enquiries having been made of all the Directors,
all Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

H. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, based on the review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems being conducted, the Board considered the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company
were effective and adequate. No significant areas of concern
that might affect the financial, operational, compliance
controls, and risk management functions of the Group were
identified. The scope of review covered the adequacy of
resources, qualification/experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
and budget.
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It is the responsibility of the Board for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board undertakes for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems. Since January
2019, the Company has established a project management
team in the Mainland China headed by experienced staff of
the Group to closely monitoring the environmental compliance
and daily operations of the key operations of the Group in
the Mainland China, and report periodically to the Board. The
Board oversees management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems, and the management would provide confirmation to
the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

The senior management of the Group, including but not
limited to, the Directors and executive officers of the
Company, the directors of the subsidiaries, and the general
managers and deputy general managers of the Company and
of the Group, maintains, monitors and implements the risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing
basis.

The risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are designed to meet the Group’s particular needs and
risks to be exposed, and only to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve the
Group'’s business objectives.

The Group adopts a risk management system to identify,
evaluate and manage significant risks associated with its
business and operations comprised of the following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks

and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.
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The Company adopts an internal control system with a
framework enabling the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of
financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations comprised of the following components:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives
to mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are
carried out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the
information needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each components of internal control
is present and functioning.

The Company adopts and implements an inside information
policy and procedures in order to enhance the Group's system
of handling inside information, and to ensure the truthfulness,
accuracy, completeness and timeliness of its public disclosure.
Certain reasonable measures have been taken from time
to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

o The access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve
confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

o The executive Directors are designated persons who
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.
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The Company has not established its own internal audit
function pursuant to the code provision D.2.5 of the CG
Code, though the Board has reviewed the need for one on
an annual basis. The Directors consider that it would be more
appropriate to set up a multifunctional project management
team delegated with responsibilities of internal audit on
environmental governance, cash management and financial
reporting functions for the existing operations of the Group.

In order to ensure the existing risk management and
internal control systems work effectively, the Company has
engaged with independent professional party to review on
the Group’s compliance with the CG Code, and review on
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group on an ongoing basis. For the two years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, the Company has continued to
engage with SHINEWING Risk Services Limited, adopting
the internal control model set down by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the U.S. Treadway Commission
for internal controls, to carry out independent review on
the risk management and internal control systems of the
key operations of the Group and the corporate governance
functions of the Company on revolving basis. Based on the
independent review reports, the Board has impartial reference
on the assessment, the implementation and the continuous
improvement toward more effective risk management
function and internal control system for the key operations of
the Company, and resolving material internal control defects,
if any.

The Company has established a project controlling team
nominated by the Board comprising the deputy general
manager and vice-presidents of the Company, the project
assistants, and the supervisors nominated by the Company
to take up the responsibilities of monitoring the day-to-day
operational management, risk management function, and
internal control systems of all operating units of Group,
especially for the subsidiaries in the Mainland China,
integrating with the systems of monthly and annual planning
and budgeting process, counter-approval and implementation
and control process, identifying any risk or possible failure of
the operating units, and reporting and making suggestions on
how each operating unit to achieve the objectives and goals
set. The project controlling team meets regularly with the
executive Directors and report on matters to be updated to the
Board timely.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of and the Listing
Rules and discloses inside information to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong). Before the
information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures
the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached,
the Group would immediately disclose the information to the
public. The Group is committed to ensuring that information
contained in announcements is not false or misleading as to a
material fact, nor false or misleading through the omission of
a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and
balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive
and negative facts.
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X ERA®RS

BEE 2 E R EZE
Eh +H B & 18

I. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION AND l.
AUDITOR RELATED MATTER

(a) Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and (@) mHBENFTIRHEZ NIERE
non-audit services provided by the auditor Z R 7% 2 B 0 A7

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the HE_T-=FR-FT__F+=

remuneration paid/payable to the independent auditor of the AZ+—RAILLFEE BN/ BEE

Company in respect of their audit and non-audit services was UEZHMAERSE 2 ERRIEER

as follows: R M&mT

2023 2022
—Es-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBxT FER
Audit services EZIRG 1,350 1,350
Review on financial results VB ES 210 210
(b) Accountability and audit (b) MENEZ .

(1) Crowe (HK) CPA Limited acknowledge their reporting (1) EEE(BE)GHME
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report to BRHERADMBERSHAE
the consolidated financial statements of the Company RABE_T_=F+=H4
for the year ended 31 December 2023. T HEFESEaMBER

RABRBIZBMBEANZ
BEREE -

(2) It is the responsibility of the external auditor to form () INEEZE A EREEEFN
an independent opinion, based on their audit, on those BERIERARFNZEY
financial statements of the Company and to report BREEBBUER WE
their opinion solely to the Company, as a body, and AANFRERERENE
for no other purpose. The independent auditor does R i EEAE A - B
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to BUED 54 BUOAS 2 ) AR 9 98 S
any other person for the contents of the independent REMBENANAE BT Y
auditor’s report to the shareholders of the Company. Al E A A T EAEFEHE -

(3) The Directors acknowledge their responsibility of B EFHAWRTAERAUES
preparing the accounts and presenting a balanced, EE2HARRDEERSR AR R
clear and comprehensive assessment for the Company's A2 6 F 7 B R 2@ AT
performance, position and prospects. The Directors H-BEFEUTANETAMA
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to B ARNFEEZ T EL
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt BEELEZH B RNE BN
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going EH R EMEKRTH
concern. BAR % -

(4)  The Audit Committee has reviewed with the Board on (4) BEZZESCLHEZTZEH
the Company’s financial statements for the year ended ARBEBE-_T_=F1+=
31 December 2023. §E+—E¢¢J§E’\Jﬂﬂ%$&

(5) Management of the Company has provided all members (5) ARAEEEESAMES
of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced SEREEFER - H
and understandable assessment of the performance, BREAQARALEZ KB -
position and prospects of the Company and the Group FHBRARMBORER S
in sufficient detail to enable the board as a whole and RIEBOTE AARNUE
each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 EEE1T LM AE3.080%
and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules. REFT=ZEMHRENBE -

(6) The Company deviates from the Recommended Best (6) ARERBELEEATAZ
Practices under code provision D.1.6 of the CG Code STAMEXEDAGKREAT 22
not to announce and publish quarterly financial results BEREFHR CKERBHEZF
within 45 days after the end of the relevant quarter, B % RIRASK M 1 b K T 2%
because the Board considers the current half-yearly FTEMBEE FRASES
financial reporting mode would be more appropriate ERBEMFFEMBRE
and relevant to reflect the results performance of the EARRRAEBEFEEA
business model and existing operations of the Group. EREXB 2 XERRME

B REE R -
TECE=EER HFFEREEBBRAFT 83
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DIVERSITY

(a)

Board diversity
The Company adopted a written board diversity policy and has

made necessary revision according to the CG Code with aims
to endorse the principle that the Board should have a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the Company’s business.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the policy, the Board will consider gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of
service and the legitimate interests of the Company’s
principal Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to
the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
has kept reviewing and assessing the composition of
the Board and made recommendations to the Board
on appointment of new Director and change of board
member, and re-election of Directors having regard to
the merit of candidates in accordance with the board
diversity policy.

In reviewing Board composition, the Nomination
Committee considered that the diversity of the existing
Board members is able to maintain an appropriate
balance of age and professional experience and diversity
of cultural and educational background on the Board.

The composition of the Board as at 31 December 2023
has been reviewed by the Nomination Committee. As
at 31 December 2023, the Board was composed of 4
females and 5 males (2022: 4 females and 5 males)
having an average age of 55.8 (2022: 55.8), 6 out of 9
members possess post-graduate academic background,
5 out of 9 members possess professional qualification(s)
recognised in different countries. The composition is
considered able to meet the objective of the Board
Diversity Policy to enable the effective management
of the Board on the key operations of Group currently
mainly located in the Mainland China.
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The Board considers that it has achieved gender diversity with
the composition of the Board currently composed of 4 females
and 5 males as at 31 December 2023. In order to maintain
the gender diversity of the Board and in order to ensure
compliance with the gender diversity requirements under
the Listing Rules, the Board will maintain its gender diversity
and ensure that the composition of the Board will not be
entirely composed of a single gender. The Board will monitor
its gender composition and diversity on an ongoing basis and
identify potential successors of the appropriate gender should
the need arise.

Workforce diversity

The gender ratio of the Group's workforce (including senior
management) for the two years ended 31 December 2023 is
as follows:

X ERA®RS

EEERRESTENEKEERT
MRl RZFE=Z=F+=A
=+—HIE EEZ2HRAMMULK
MRS BHEEK - B THBES
SMMRIZ T RERET ETHR
BIIETEHMRZTEMETE &S
HEEFEMERNZIT(L  WHRRE
E2l e xTEmE—MHIMEK =
S RFHEEEEENBNNZ T
b WEREHEEAEE NG E
FEIRTAE -

BTER%Z Tt

Bz =F+-_A=+—81t
WE REBEIBK (BRES K
EEAE)MMERLFOT

As at 31 December

R+=ZBA=+—H
2023 2022
—E_= —EC-CF
Male: female (ratio) B M (EER) 4:1 4:1

The Company considers that it has achieved gender diversity
in the Group’s workforce (including senior management of
the Group) and aims to continue to maintain a consistent
gender ratio in its workforce roughly in-line with the ratios
recorded in its previous financial years. Owing to the nature of
the handling of hazardous waste and in view of the services
provided by the Group, the Company considers that it is not
unusual for the gender ratio of its workforce to be composed
of more males than females. Save as disclosed, the Company
is not aware of any mitigating factors or circumstances
which make achieving gender diversity across the workforce
(including senior management of the Group) more challenging
or less relevant and the Company will monitor its workforce’s
gender composition on an ongoing basis in order to maintain
a consistent gender ratio.
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K. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(a)

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has adopted its Shareholders Communication
Policy to promote and facilitate effective communication with
Shareholders of the Company. The Board encourages the
participation of the Shareholders to the general meetings of
the Company, and the Chairman of the Board shall attend the
annual general meeting of the Company.

The Chairman invites the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to
attend, or failing their presence, their duly appointed delegate
to attend and be available to answer questions at annual
general meeting. The chairman of the independent board
committee (if any) is available to answer questions at the
general meeting to approve a connected transaction or any
other transaction that requires independent shareholders’
approval.

The Board ensures the external auditor attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

For each substantially separate issue at the general meetings,
a separate resolution is to be proposed by the chairman of
that meeting. The Company shall avoid “bundling” resolutions
unless they are interdependent and linked forming one
significant proposal. Where the resolutions are “bundled”, the
Company shall explain the reasons and material implications
in the notice of the general meetings. The chairman of the
general meetings shall ensure that an explanation is provided
of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answer
any questions from Shareholders on voting by poll.

The Company shall arrange for the notice to the Shareholders
to be sent in the case of for annual general meeting not less
than 21 clear days before the meeting and to be sent not less
than 14 clear days in the case for all other general meetings.
Any notice to be given by the Company shall be in writing. The
Company shall send notices to all Shareholders whether or not
their registered address is in Hong Kong. The Company shall
ensure that notice of the general meetings is published on the
websites of the Company at www.nuigl.com and the Stock
Exchange.
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Shareholders who are unable to attend a general meeting
may complete and return to the branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company (the “Share Registrar”) in Hong
Kong the proxy form enclosed with the notice of meeting to
give proxy to their representatives, another shareholder or
chairman of the meetings.

The poll voting procedures are included in the Company’s
circular convening a general meeting. The results of the voting
by poll are declared at the meeting and published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively
thereafter the meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
considers that it has effectively implemented its Shareholders
Communication Policy by, among others, (i) the attendance
by the Chairman and the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees at the annual general meeting of
the Company in order to answer questions at such meeting;
and (ii) the timely notices to the Shareholders clearly outlining
the relevant issues and resolutions to be proposed at each
general meeting of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a

general meeting
According to the Memorandum and Articles of Association

of the Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call
extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition.

Upon receipt of the requisition, the Company shall request
the Share Registrar to verify and confirm on the particular
of the requisitionist(s), and arrange the Board to consider
the proposal and convene a general meeting by serving
sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders. If any
particular of the requisitionist(s) is verified as not in order,
the requisitionist(s) will be advised accordingly, and a general
meeting may not be convened as requested.

If within 21 days of such deposit of the requisition the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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An annual general meeting must be called by notice of not less
than 21 clear days and all other general meetings (including
an extraordinary general meeting) must be called by notice of
not less than 14 clear days but if permitted by the rules of the
Stock Exchange, a general meeting may be called by shorter
notice, subject to the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, if
it is so agreed by members entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting.

Procedures for nominating a person for election
as a director in general meeting

The Company has adopted the Procedures for Shareholders
to Propose a Person for Election as a Director. Save for
the procedures adopted, no person, other than a retiring
Director shall, unless recommended by the Board for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting according to the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company, and relevant laws
and regulations applicable to the Company. Pursuant to the
procedure adopted, only Shareholder(s) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the general meeting shall propose a person
for election as a director in general meeting.

If a Shareholder who is duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting wishes to propose a person other than
a Director for election as a director, the following documents
shall be lodged at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 2110-2112, Telford House,
16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong for
the Board to recommend that person for election to the office
of Director at any general meeting:

(1) a notice signed by the Shareholder of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and the
notice shall set out the contact details of the proposing
shareholder, including correspondence address, contact
phone number; and

(2) a notice signed by that person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected as a Director; and the duly
completed checklist attach to these procedures.

The minimum length of the period during which the
above-mentioned notices are given shall be at least 10
business days and that the period for lodgment of such notices
shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end not later than 14 business days prior to the date of
such general meeting.
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If the Company receives the notice as required after
publication of the notice of meeting, the Company shall
publish an announcement or issue a supplementary circular
upon receipt of such a notice. Full particulars of the proposed
director as required under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
must be included in the announcement or supplementary
circular. However, if the Company receives insufficient
information for the purposes of publishing an announcement
or issuing a supplementary circular, the Company shall contact
the proposing shareholder and/or the proposed director for
further information.

In the event that the Company is not able to publish an
announcement or issue a supplementary circular on a day,
which is at least 10 business days prior to the general meeting
of the Company, the said nomination of shareholder will be
presented at the next following general meeting.

Dividend policy

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board
recommended the payment of final dividend on 22 March
2024 out of the retained earnings, and the recommendation
of dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to the code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code,
the Company adopted a policy on payment of dividends
(the "Dividend Policy”) which is to allow Shareholders to
participate in the Company’s profits and performance results
whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Company’s future
growth. The Board shall consider the following factors before
declaring or recommending dividends:

o the Company’s actual and expected financial
performance;

o the Group’s working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

o the Group’s liquidity and debt gearing position, and the
relevant financial covenants;

o the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the member companies of the
Group;

o general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group's operation and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business, financial
performance and position of the Company; and

. other factors that the Board deems relevant and
appropriate.

TEETARS

WARABIRBRRERNS @S T EE
EARERmBE  AIARRBRE
EEBBSRTIZEAMRE LT
B ETRBIEI3 51T
i%ﬁ%i%%A%ﬁ% %ﬁﬁ
z NG R AN i AR
T%%%éﬂﬁﬂ*“%&%ﬁ
WARBHME TR - BIARQ A
BIRHEZORRER REENE
FOLEBE—FSER -

AR BEER AR B BRERAE A
EDI0EEXEBATERMKE L

FE3B K Bl E il k?k%hFT—
KRR E FIRE

A BUBUR
mREE—_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—H

LFEER EFEaR T _MF=

AZ+ - AEEMRE SN PR
FEBRE REEHRTRERRAE

NREREBFRRAGHEFEE -

RIBECEERTUNTAKE
F1UE ARAIEHEMH —BIRMK
EMBCR ([REHEK])  8HEER
BROZARAEMEREKSE - F
HREZABEUREARRMNER
RIBR -EEGREIRNKEZRIRA
& ERIEE B TAE

. RRARNERREPHY B
I

. AEENEEELER H
AREBERRARBERE S

° $§.Eﬁmu§j}§\/i>&1§f%ﬁé
BRI - AR B BB 15 s

s ARARAKEEKE QA
BV R EE B K R D IR

s —REREMRR KAEEEZE
MEBBERARTREAR
AR - BRI KRR
EEFENEMAILINB
ESE-Sd

s EZCRRABREEMNH
R E -

TECCZEER FFRAEEBRA

89



90

CORP
g

ORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\—l-\—\\ =
s A W H

Any distribution of dividends shall be in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company and the distribution
shall achieve continuity, stability and sustainability. The
recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration
of final dividend will be subject to the approval of the
Shareholders. The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time
to time and there is no assurance that a dividend will be
proposed or declared in any specific periods.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders shall direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Share Registrar. Shareholders and the
investment community may at any time make a request for
the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Shareholders or investors could enquire by putting their
proposals with the Company through the following means:

(852) 2435 6811
(852) 2435 3220

Telephone number
Facsimile number

E-mail comsec@nuegl.com
Correspondence Rooms 2110-2112, 21/F.,
address Telford House,

16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

For the attention of The Chairman

L. INVESTOR RELATIONS

(a)

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2023.

On 22 March 2024, the board of directors of the Company
announced the proposal to make certain amendments (the
"Proposed Amendments”) to the Articles in order to (i) bring
the Articles in line with the relevant requirements of the
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the Listing Rules
for the implementation of the paperless listing regime; and (ii)
incorporate certain housekeeping amendments. The Proposed
Amendments and the proposal to adopt an amended
articles of association of the Company incorporating the
Proposed Amendments will be subject to the approval of the
Shareholders passing a special resolution at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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(d)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining high degree of
transparency to ensure the investors and the Shareholders
are receiving accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely
information of the Group via the publication of annual reports,
interim reports, public announcements and releases, and
update on key information of the Group are available on the
Company’s website at www.nuigl.com.

The Company has engaged with PRChina Limited as its public
relation consultant to enhance media and investor relations
of the Group. The Board continues to maintain regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
informed the Group's strategy, operations, management and
plans. Media or potential investors could make necessary
enquiry with the public relation consultant through the
following means:

(852) 2522 1838

(852) 2521 9955

E-mail © newuniverse@prchina.com.hk
Public relation

Telephone number
Facsimile number

consultant PRChina Limited

(o]
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERG

The directors (the “Directors”) of New Universe Environmental Group
Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and has its principal place of business at Rooms
2110-2112, Telford House, 16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management to the group members.

The activities of the principal subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

(@) provision of environmental treatment and disposal services for
industrial and medical wastes;

(b)  provision of environmental plating sewage treatment and provision
of related facilities, utilities and management services in an
eco-plating specialised zone; and

(c) investments in plastic materials dyeing business.

The Company has disposed of and discontinued the group’s operation of
providing environmental equipment construction and installation services
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business and financial review of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2023, including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group's business, as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 6 to 35 of this annual report, which forms part of this
directors’ report.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

MTFRFEEEERAR (A A &EE(T#E
E)MAREBEE-_ZE-_=F+=-A=+—H
LFEZETEREREERGRAMBERSR -

FEEEME
ARRARHASHEAMR Iz EREREBRA
Al EEFEEEMBNNEBNENEERRA
E165REEAE2110-2112F °

ARBB—RREZEBRAR  U/AEEZK
BRARHERER -

TEMBARZEBELNT -

() RERRTIERBEEEYVEENEERY:

b) RERREFZFEREHRERRETEISKE
ENREHABREEEE R ERRS
I3

(0 ZBHRAEXBEHRE -

BHE_Z-_=ZF+_A=+—HULEFE AR
AEHETRIIEERERRIERERTE
AR 7S B S 75 o

X EE

BB RBRBIM RSN EZARA REKNE
AEl (BB AEEDBEE-_T_=F+_A
ST BUEFEZEBRMBEE  BRASK
EEmsTE2ER R TABERON®  ARK
SEEXBARARAELERNET  ERAFEHS
6EEFAZI[EREENMENN] —& - H
BRAEESHEN 8B -



ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2023" of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 would be available on the
Company’s website at www.nuigl.com.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s key business
operations has made continuous effort and investment in managing
and monitoring environmental parameters, upgraded existing facilities
to meet regulatory environmental requirements and national standards,
and provided training relevant to the industry that is necessary for the
sustained development of the Group. Save for the disclosure made
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2023 and in this
annual report, there was no other significant environmental exceedances
recorded nor any material non-compliance in relation to environmental,
social or governance aspects. For the current year, engagement with
stakeholders has resulted in raised concerns on most material issues,
which include: occupational health and safety, environmental protection
measures, product/service quality, customer services and waste and
effluent. The Group will continue to identify areas of improvement for the
concerned aspects and keep close communication with its stakeholders for
advancing management on environmental, social and governance.

The Company has engaged with an independent consultant firm, Ascent
Partners Advisory Service Limited, to review the Company’s overall
environmental, social and governance performance of the key business
operations of the Group for the preparation of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023 with reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the principal corporate practices of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023 and significant subsequent events, if any,
up to the date of this report is set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 49 to 91 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
state of the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 126 to 272 of this annual report.
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DIVIDENDS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The dividend of HK$0.0038 per share totally amounted to approximately
HK$11,536,000 paid on 31 July 2023 was made for the year ended
31 December 2022.

On 22 March 2024, the Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.0016 per share out of the retained profits of the
Company as at 31 December 2023 for the year then ended amounting
to approximately HK$4,857,000 which is subject to approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting:

Annual general meeting date Friday, 24 May 2024

Book close date for final
dividend

Tuesday, 4 June 2024 to
Friday, 7 June 2024

Record date for final dividend Friday, 7 June 2024

Final dividend payment date Wednesday, 31 July 2024

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December
2023, as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 36 to 38 of this annual
report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the group’s performance for the year by operating segments
of the Group is set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2023.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the securities
of the Company.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 130 of this
annual report.

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Company during the year
are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$637,629,000 (2022: HK$645,911,000) which was
calculated according to Article 134 of the Articles of Association of the
Company that dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company, realised or unrealised, or from any reserve set aside from
profits which the Directors determine is no longer needed. With the
sanction of an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with the Companies Act,
Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group and the Company as at 31
December 2023 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not capitalise any
interest during the year (2022: Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Information on the Group's sales and purchases (exclusive of the
discontinued operation) attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the year is set out as follows:

FEERRIEER

AEBRAFEADEETRZEP MRS
ZHEBEEMRE (TRECRIELEER) F
BEIINT -

Percentage of the Group’s total

HREBAEZADLL
Sales Purchases
SHER 24201
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E=HF Tz —ET=HF T
The largest customer SN 7.0% 5.8%
Five largest customers in aggregate ~ i AR F 4258 25.0% 18.0%
The largest supplier BREERE 6.0% 6.5%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARHERE B 26.9% 25.7%
At no time during the two years ended 31 December 2023 did a Director, T %X BBF 7 ZBHRHBMEANLARAQTRE (e

a close associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's five largest
customers or suppliers.

At no time during the two years ended 31 December 2023 have the
Directors, their respective close associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major customers
and suppliers of the Group.

The percentage of revenue from the five largest customers in aggregate
was less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue respectively for the two
years ended 31 December 2023. The percentage of purchases from the
five largest suppliers in aggregate was less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were as
follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. XI'Yu

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling
Ms. JJANG Qian

Ms. LIU Yu lJie

Mr. HON Wa Fai

Non-Executive Director:
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong (not re-elected and retired on 18 May 2023)

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred
Mr. YANG Harry (appointed on 1 January 2023)

Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong did not re-elect at the annual general meeting held
on 18 May 2023 and retired as independent non-executive Director at the
conclusion of that meeting.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. XI Yu, Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling and Ms. LIU Yu Jie will retire from the
board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES MEBARIZES

The directors of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings during the year RAEERREEABEABIERAATHRER
and up to the date of this report were as follows: RIZESMT

Director(s) of the subsidiary

Name of subsidiary [l RNGIEZE MEBLARZES
Ever Champ (China) Limited B (HE) BRAA A B
Fair International Investment Enterprise EERBEBRERENEER AR A B
Limited
Fair Industry Waste Recyclables Limited ERTXBEYBLENBERAR A B
Fair Time International Limited FEEREEERAF A B
Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies L& # FRRERTAR A 7 A
Limited*
New Sinotech Investments Limited MEMEBRAR B
New Universe (China) Investment Limited FF(RE)REGRAF B
New Universe (China) Limited FF(RE)BERQA A B
New Universe Environmental Protection TFRFEREBRAG B
Investment Limited
New Universe Environmental Technologies #FHERE CI#) AR A A A B
(Jiang Su) Limited
New Universe International Ecology Limited % BIFS 4 BE A R A Al B
New Universe International Group Limited ¥ FEBRE% (£E) R A7 A B
New Universe International Holdings Limited 5 BIES 1 iR A R A 7 B
New Universe Recyclable Investments HFEARBEREBERAA B
Limited
New Universe Recyclables Limited HFARBENAAERRAA A B
Smartech International Group Limited ERBEREERR QA B
Smartech Manufacturing Limited ERRERLDF A B
Smartech Plastic Moulding Limited ERZBRRBRAT A B
Smartech Services Limited ERERARLDA A B
Sugian New Universe Solid Waste Disposal EEBFHEEENEREAR AT A
Company Limited*
Xiangshui New Universe Environmental ERAFRERTER AT A B C G H
Technology Limited
Yancheng New Universe Solid Waste HRTFHEEENEESRAR A
Disposal Company Limited
Yancheng NUHF Environmental Technology B3 $1 18 LB R R B R A 7 A B C G H
Limited*
Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste EIFFREEBENEERRAR A C D E F
Disposal Company Limited
Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-Electroplating HEITENAERSERREREGRAT A
Development Limited
*  For identification purpose only * (EHEEZ
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Name of the directors of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings:

Mr. XI Yu

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling
Ms. LIU Yuan

. YIN Yong Xiang
Mr. SUN Jia Qing

Mr. LIU Lai Gen

Mr. JI Zi Hua

Mr. SUN Yong Liang

IoTMmoON®y
<

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company that is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in writing his annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 39 to 48 of this annual report.
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CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report,
there were changes in Directors’ information as follows:

(@  Mr. YANG Harry was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2023, and appointed as the
chairman of the Audit Committee and ESG Committee, and member
of Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee with effect
from 18 May 2023.

(b)  Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong has not standed for re-election and retired as
an independent non-executive Director and as the chairman of the
Audit Committee and member of other committees with effect from
the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 18 May 2023.

Save as disclosed therein, there is no other significant change in details of
the Directors’ information since the date of the last annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed therein, there is no other information to be disclosed
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 13.51(2) of Listing Rules.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report,
there was changes in the information of the key management team
members of the Company as follows:

(@ Mr. CHEN Hong Ye has been formally nominated as the general
manager of the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary in the PRC,
Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating Development Limited with
effect from September 2023.

(b)  Mr. HE Ling Yun ceased to be a senior management of the Company
and the Group upon the completion on 3 August 2023 of the
disposal of the entire equity of Jiangsu Yu Xin Environmental
Engineering Management Company Limited* to the purchaser
under his control.

Save as disclosed therein, there is no other significant change in details of
the key management team members’ information since the date of the last
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the chief executives and
of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out respectively in
notes 10 and 11 to the financial statements.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Board has adopted an emolument policy for the employees of the
Company which is governed by the remuneration committee of the
Company on the basis the relevant skills, experience, merit, qualifications
and competence of the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for all employees
in Hong Kong. Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the
Group are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme on 5 May 2015 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in
accordance with the provisions set out in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years ending on 4 May 2025, after which no further options will be
granted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide participants
(“Participant”, and each a “Participant”) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares (the
“Shares”) for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders (the
“Shareholders”) as a whole.

A Participant is any person belonging to any of the following classes:

(@) any eligible employee of or any person who has accepted an offer
of employment from (whether full time or part time employee,
including any executive Directors but not any non-executive
Director) the Company, its subsidiaries and any entity in which the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”);

(b) any non-executive Director (including independent non-executive
Directors), any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
(c)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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(e) any person or entity acting in their capacities as advisers or
consultants to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(f)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity from time to time determined by the Directors
having contributed or may contribute to the development and
growth of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The total number of Shares which might be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of the Company’s Shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme by the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting on 5 May 2015 (the “Scheme Mandate Limit")
unless the Company obtains an approval by its Shareholders at its general
meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit. Further, the maximum
number of Shares which might be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and options which may be granted and yet to be exercised under any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of
the total number of the Company’s Shares in issue from time to time.
Based on the issued share capital of 2,955,697,018 Shares as at 5 May
2015, the Scheme Mandate Limit was 295,569,701 Shares, representing
approximately 9.74% of the total issued Shares as at the date of this
report.

The maximum number of Shares issuable under the share options to each
Participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant is limited to 1% of the Shares in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates under
the Share Option Scheme are subject to prior approval of the independent
non-executive Directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive Director, or to
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in issue
at any time and having an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from
the date of offer, upon payment of a remittance of HK$10 in favour of
the Company by the grantee. The exercise period of share options granted
is determinable by the Board, save that such exercise period shall not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant of such share options.
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The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board, but may
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant which must be a day
(“Trading Day"”) on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
Trading Days immediately preceding the date of the grant; or (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

As at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023, the number of share
options (“Options”) available for grant under the Scheme Mandate Limit
was both 260,109,701 (31 December 2022: 260,109,701).

The total number of Shares of the Company available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 275,765,701 Shares as at 31 December 2023
(2022: 279,528,701 Shares), representing approximately 9.08% (2022:
9.21%) of the 3,035,697,018 ordinary Shares of the Company in issue as
of the dates of this report and the annual report 2022.

There was no Options granted under the Share Option Scheme of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023. As such, the total
number of shares of the Company that may be issued in respect of the
Options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended
31 December 2023 divided by the weighted average number of ordinary
Shares of the Company in issue for the year ended 31 December 2023 is 0.

Details of Options granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme are set out as follows:

Date of grant:
RIEBEH:

18 January 2022
—E-F-At+tNH

15 January 2021
—E-_—%—-A+RH —E*
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15 January 2020
TE—-HATHA

Date of acceptance:
EWAE:

16 February 2022
Sy s AN
Valid grantees: 7 employees of the Group,

and none of the grantees is

a Director, chief executive

or substantial shareholder of

the Company or any of their
respective associate(s) (as
defined in the Listing Rules).
REETEREE  BEARAR
ARAER  TREZHIEER
REABESBZEMHBEACE
EREWRAD -

BRARA
REWER

12 February 2021
—E-—%-A+H —F%

6 employees of the Group,
and none of the grantees is
a Director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their
respective associate(s) (as
defined in the Listing Rules).
REEHER
RRAREER  THREHKEER
B 2 A B
ER MR o

12 February 2020
TE_HA+-H

4 employees of the Group,

and none of the grantees is

a Director, chief executive

or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their
respective associate(s) (as
defined in the Listing Rules).
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Date of grant:
BEBH:

18 January 2022
e R A=

15 January 2021
—E_—%—-AtHhH

15 January 2020
—ZE-F%—-A+HH

Closing price of the Shares
immediately before the date
of grant

ZERE Bz RO RTE

Exercise price of the Options
granted:
PR BB i 2 1718 1B -

Total number of Shares to be
issued upon exercise in full of
the Options granted:
RABEITRE AT L B R
1T EITRRG 2 8

Options granted to the five
highest paid individuals of the
Group during the financial
year

HK$0.305 per Share

F0%0.305/%5 7T
HK$0.308 per Share
FA%0.308% 7T

13,080,000 Shares

13,080,0004%

Out of the Options granted on
18 January 2022, Options for
7,900,000 Shares in aggregate
were granted to 2 employees

HK$0.270 per Share

FH20.2708 7T
HK$0.272 per Share
027278 T

11,380,000 Shares

11,380,0008%

Out of the Options granted on
15 January 2021, Options for
9,290,000 Shares in aggregate
were granted to 4 employees

HK$0.250 per Share

Fh%0.2505 7T
HK$0.250 per Share
FH%0.2507 T

11,000,000 Shares

11,000,0008%

Out of the Options granted on
15 January 2020, Options for
9,650,000 Shares in aggregate
were granted to 4 employees

who were among the 5 highest
paid individuals of the Group
during the financial year ended
31 December 2022.

who were among the 5 highest
paid individuals of the Group
during the financial year ended
31 December 2021.

who were among the 5 highest
paid individuals of the Group
during the financial year ended
31 December 2020.

REBFEARTALER KRZZE-_ZF-ATN\BRLz RZZE-—F—-A+HBERHLz RZZE-ZEF-A+HBERHZ
RS EHMA L 2 BRE BERR M - £57,900,00017 8  BEMRMES - £759,290,00010 8  EEARES - £59,650,00017
BEDET2EEES  FENRE BREDETILZEES  GSNE BEDNETILZEE  GENE

GREEHE-_T-_—_F+_A
- HULHRERSNSESH
AL 2% e

FARGEEEE_T_—F1+_A
=t HLEMBFESIRSH
AL

GAREEHE_T-_TF+_A
Tt HUEVBFES RS H
AL 25

3,763,000 Shares (due to
unfulfilled vesting conditions)

5,041,000 Shares (due to
unfulfilled vesting conditions)

1,360,000 Shares (due to
termination of the employment

Options cancelled up to
31 December 2023:

104

BE-T-=5t-A=1-

3,763,000 (A & B &R

5,041,0000% (A 53 B KR

of a grantee)

1,360,000% (AR 1E— IR A

B EHUE 2 B A ERK) =359 #1E M)

Options lapsed up to Nil Nil 9,640,000 Shares (unexercised
31 December 2023: and lapsed on expiry)
BE-Z=ZFft-"HA=1t— & i 9,640,000 (AR 771 30 7 21 4
AIEE R B N

Options vested up to 31 9,317,000 Shares 6,339,000 Shares Nil

December 2023:

BE-Z-=F+-A=+— 9,317,000l 6,339,000 =

RIECRE 2z EARE -
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Date of grant:
BB

18 January 2022
e R A=
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15 January 2021
—E_—%—-AtHhH

ESgWmE

15 January 2020
—ZE-F%—-A+HH

Vesting period of the
Options:

BREzEBH

Validity period of the
Options:

B A -

The Options granted shall be
vested upon achievement of
certain vesting conditions as
specified in the offer letter of
each respective grantee. If the
vesting conditions applicable

to the relevant grantee are not
achieved, the unvested Options
granted to such grantee shall

be cancelled as specified in the
offer letter. The Options shall
vest in the proportions to be
determined according to each
particular offer letter on the date
the vesting conditions applicable
to the relevant grantee are
achieved.

FT % o B A 1 1 5 AR B AR A
R Z A K1 ARTBROE T 57 8 15
AR BR 8 o 38 P A AE K
RANBBIGHEREEN BT
BRARANKEBERERER
BN RRTE TIAZH o Bk
BERRAEAR NER 5B G
ERARRERERNNEERN
HOISE -

The Options vested are
exercisable from the date of
publication of the annual results
of the Company for the year
ending 31 December 2024

(the “2024 Results Date”) to
the earlier of (i) the date on
which such Options lapses in
accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme; or (i) the
90th business day after the 2024
Results Date.
EEREEREAMRHBERRR
HE-_Z-_NF+-A=+—H
LEENEFXERR([ZF
“WERERMS] RITR BEE
UTBHUAREERE): (VBB
IR AR BB AR B B M IR Rk
MHBH () =T _MFEE
AR FEIOEE XA -

The Options granted shall be
vested upon achievement of
certain vesting conditions as
specified in the offer letter of
each respective grantee. If the
vesting conditions applicable

to the relevant grantee are not
achieved, the unvested Options
granted to such grantee shall

be cancelled as specified in the
offer letter. The Options shall
vest in the proportions to be
determined according to each
particular offer letter on the date
the vesting conditions applicable
to the relevant grantee are
achieved.

P o B A A 5 10 5 AR B AR A
) Z A K 1 ARTBIRO S T 5 8 15
HHEKERE - 8 AR AR A
RAMBBIGHEREEN BT
AREABRANKERERIEREZ
BRIHA R RTE TIAZH o B
BERRAEAR NER BB G
ENARREEEEORETEN
LPISE -

The Options vested are
exercisable from the date of
publication of the annual results
of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2023

(the “2023 Results Date”) to
the earlier of (i) the date on
which such Options lapses in
accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme; or (i) the
90th business day after the 2023
Results Date.
EEBERENNTELRAT
BE-Z_=f+-R=+—H
HFERN2FEERAR(T=ZE
CEFEEAB]RITE - EE
AT BHUAREEE%E) : ()5
B R IR AR BB IR A AT B MV IR K
BEOBE: KT =F%E
BB F0MEER -

The Options granted shall be
vested upon achievement of
certain performance targets as
specified in the offer letter of
each respective grantee. If the
vesting conditions applicable

to the relevant grantee are not
achieved, the unvested Options
granted to such grantee shall

be cancelled as specified in

the offer letter. Subject to the
vesting conditions applicable

to the relevant grantee having
been achieved, the Options shall
vest in the proportions to be
determined according to each
particular offer letter on the
30th business day after the date
of publication of the annual
results of the Company for the
year ending 31 December 2020.
P BB RE IS NS AR A
B EL R EARETANETRRE
TEKEER o 8RR BEA
RAMGBGEREER KT
BRHARANREBBRERR
ZRHARRTE TIATH - 78
R EB AR AR BB G EX
% BRESATERLIRE
—E-TF+-_A=F+—BLItF
EHFEXERRRE=TEE
EHRZETEBNORET LA

RIE -

Lapsed on 11 May 2023

RZZE-_=FR/F+—HBKRH

TECCFFER HFEFRAEEARAF 105



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

N ey =
% = ¥ 5
(@)  The Options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme during the  (a) R¥REH > BiIEZT2 M ARITE 2B
reporting period are as follows: MR
2023 2022
—EBZ=H —E2-
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Numbers of
price Options price Options
mEFEH miEFH
TEE EBREZE 1710 1(E EiREHE
HK$ '000 HK$ '000
BT T BT R
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BERETE 0.281 29,059 0.262 21,020
Granted during the year FREH - - 0.308 13,080
Exercised during the year FRITEE - - - -
Lapsed during the year FRRH 0.250 9,640? - -
Cancelled during the year FRW B 0.308 3,7630 0.272 5,041@
Outstanding at 31 December KW+—RA=+—H
AT 0.293 15,656 0.281 29,059
Vested during the year FREB 0.308 9,317© 0.272 6,339
Exercisable at 31 December AR+TZA=1+—HfIE 0.293 15,656 0.259 15,979
Notes: B
(1) Of the 29,059,000 Options outstanding as at 1 January 2023, (Y MZZE_=F—HF—H  HkE
22,845,000 Options in aggregate were those granted to 3 f# 229,059,000 FE A - £ H
employees who were among the 5 highest paid individuals of the 22,845,000/ B IETI R T3HES
Group during the financial year ended 31 December 2023. BENEEAEEHRE_E=_=F
T A=+ BUEMBEENES
AL 2T
(2)  The exercise price of such 9,640,000 Options lapsed was HK$0.25 (2)  #%9,640,000 B LMz B EZ
per Share. Of the 9,640,000 Options lapsed during the year T EEASRO2SE L -HE-Z
ended 31 December 2023, 8,290,000 Options in aggregate were —=F+ZA=t+t—HILEFEZE
those granted to 3 employees who were among the 5 highest S‘Exﬁl 29,640,000 B EH - HKHF
paid individuals of the Group during the financial year ended 31 8,290 OOO{*%H&%E&%S%EE\ ’
December 2023. BENEEAERMEE_T_=F
+ AR=+—BLEMBFEMI &S
FATZT e
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The exercise price of such 3,763,000 Options cancelled was
HK$0.308 per Share. Of the 3,763,000 Options cancelled during
the year ended 31 December 2023, 1,996,000 Options in
aggregate were those granted to 3 employees who were among
the 5 highest paid individuals of the Group during the financial
year ended 31 December 2023.

The exercise price of such 5,041,000 Options cancelled was
HK$0.272 per Share

The number of Shares of the Company that may be issued in
respect of such 15,656,000 (2022: 29,059,000) outstanding
Options is 15,656,000 (2022: 29,059,000) Shares, representing
approximately 0.52% (2022: 0.96%) of the ordinary Shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2023. Of the 15,656,000
Options outstanding as at 31 December 2023, 12,559,000
Options in aggregate were those granted to 3 employees who
were among the 5 highest paid individuals of the Group during
the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

Such 9,317,000 Options (which were part of the Options granted
on 18 January 2022) were vested on 18 May 2023. The closing
price of the shares of the Company immediately before such date
of vesting was HK$0.083 per Share. Of the 9,317,000 Options
vested during the year ended 31 December 2023, 7,814,000
Options in aggregate were those granted to 3 employees who
were among the 5 highest paid individuals of the Group during
the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

Such 6,339,000 Options (which were part of the Options granted
on 15 January 2021) were vested on 26 August 2022. The closing
price of the Shares of the Company immediately before such date
of vesting was HK$0.183 per Share.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESgWmE

743,763,000 B # & iH 2 BB R iE 2
TEEARETRO3ET HE_-T
TZE+ A=+ BLEFEZHEH
B4 23,763,000 B S - H A
1,996,000 FE & 1 Ty % F3%E B -
BENESAEEARE-_T=_=F
+-— A=+ HLEHRFENES
FALTZT

#%5,041,00017 B 1 BUH 79 88 IR &
TEEASR0.272E T -

3% %15,656,0001) (ZE = =
29,059,00017 ) & &K % 7 {F 2 B IR
A AARAREEITZRMDE
B 515,656,000 (=& = — 4 :
29,059,000/%) * AME AR EEH ==
E_=F+-_A=+—HILtDET
LB AR D B90.52% (Z T = — 4 -
0.96%) R E-_=F+-_A=+—
H %M A %77 215,656,000
B4 - £7812,559,00017 BE A% 4 J5
BT3%EE BENESAEEE
EE_=F+-A=1+—HIEHK
FESfImEFALTZI -

9,317,000 R E (W Z T ==
F—A+)\BABRHEREZ I
DR _E-_=ZFHA+N\HEE-
EZEBABAIARRIRG 2 WH
BAFIROIBITL - ZEEREE
TR =ZF+AZ=Z+—BLFE
558 29,317,000 B e - £ A
7,814,00017 B R #E T 1% F3% BB -
BENESAEEAHRE T =_=-F
T AZt+—RALEBFEESNES
HEALZT -

6,339,000 R (L =T = —
FE—A+HABMEBEHEREZ —BD)
RZEBE_—_FNAZ+BEEBE -
BEuEBERYARTRG 2B HE
BEFAK0.183B T ©

CECCZEER FFRREBEBRAF
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E

(b)

=

The fair value of the Options granted on 18 January 2022, 15
January 2021 and 15 January 2020 at their respective date of grant
was approximately HK$1,092,000, HK$578,000 and HK$836,000
respectively, of which the Group has recognised total share option
expense of approximately HK$489,000 (2022: HK$475,000)
charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has released
approximately HK$733,000 from the Share Option reserve in the
equity directly back to the retained earnings, of which the amount
representing the fair value of services received and having charged
to profit and loss in previous years in return for the Options
granted on 15 January 2020 that remained unexercised and being
automatically lapsed upon expiry on 11 May 2023.

The fair value of services received in return for Options granted is
measured with reference to the fair value of Options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of Options has been measured based
on binomial option pricing model by the independent firm of
professional valuer, Colliers International, taking into account the
terms and condition upon which the Options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

RZEZZF—A+NB -ZZT=—F
—A+EBRER-_ZE-_EF-A+EHAE
HHEREASERLEBEHOATES
A #7 £1,092,0007% Jt + 578,000/ T &
836,000 7L AR AKEERBE_-Z
T+ A=+ BLFEHRBR
RIS A 5H49489,0008 L (Z T ==

475,000/870) - WEEEBZP MG -

BE_ZE-_=—#+-_A=+—RIEE "
KRARERRAERTNBRERER
ZEEORE & 4733,0008 7T 2L 5
R T _ZEZF—-A+RAARTER
EAREREZ A FEEL RN EFEE T
ABHE ZEAETEZERER T
TZERA+—BIHEEE KW -

RMREHBRENERRE 22 FE
D2EZERLEBREZATEFE B
Bz A FEZEFIABLEXMGE
fim D BERRE —BA R EERAG
B UERBIRT AR -
TRINETAERANRANEAE :

Date of grant

®E B

18 January 15 January
2022 2021

—Eq-— —Eq-—
—A+NH —ATHhH
Fair value at grant date RO BHOATE HK$0.101/# 7T  HK$0.0847% 7T
Share price at grant date BB HR D ES HK$0.305/% 7T  HK$0.2707% 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$0.308/ 7L  HK$0.2727 T
Expected volatility T8 HA % B 51.845% 51.135%
Expected life of Options TE & BAAE S HA 3.54 years®F 3.55 yearstF
Expected dividend paid TEEIR B X 2.36% 2.64%
Risk-free interest rate B ) 2R 1.18% 0.22%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted by any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the Option granted.
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T8 HA R 0 DA R S2 R R A A 2E (IRAR B A
ZIMEFHRBFERFE)  XREEA
NFAERZENESBRILE ZEM
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR

ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which are required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix C3 (“Model
Code") of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

The Company

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
E 5 g HRG

EERITETHRAERAL
] 8 A 2 8 4E 17 $5 BR £ % 5
BB EEZRY  HE
B REEREPZESER
Bk

R-ZE-_=F+-"FA=+—H EE=KARQRH
ZEZBTBHABRARARREBELE (BX
REHFRBEKD ([EHRBEEG ) EXVEE)
5 RERDREEETFHEEREES X
HEEOEXVIBETRESH PAEMNESARA K
BRIz EmRAR (BEREREES XY
EOIBEE T A ES R IERE 2 msk
KB - HIREBES M E KA EIS2EEL A
ZlER v B R ERRAE BB LT
BAM B3 EMBETAESETELAZ ZNIZ
MESFRI([MZESFAD) MBS AR R KRB RFT
CHEBRKRWOT

ZA/NG]
RAR ARG RIGHERE B

Number of Shares

KRB EE

Approximate
percentage
of total Shares
in issue
Capacity in which Shares Number of HEe BT
Name of Director were held Shares held BipEE =z
EEHSR BERONESR FERGEE BHABEDE
Mr. XI Yu (note) Interests of a controlled corporation 1,109,303,201 36.54

EER & (HFF) 3z NGIE - £
Ms. LIU Yu Jie Beneficial owner 202,400,000 6.67

B ERLZ L EmEAA

TE_EEER HFERREBERAA
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Associated corporation ik 97N
Long positions in ordinary shares of NUEL RNUEL Z 82 4f &

Number of ordinary shares of USD1.00 each of NUEL
FREE1.00% T ZNUELE B R ¥ B

Approximate

percentage
of total shares
Capacity in Number of in issue
which ordinary ordinary HEe &7
Name of Director shares were held shares held I nECE -l
BEEnR BEZERNEH RS EREE BRBEDL
Mr. XI Yu (note) Beneficial owner 16,732 83.66
EER & (M) EmlEA A
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling (note) Beneficial owner and Interests of
spouse 2,428 12.14
st (KT EE) Enfa AR BER
Note: New Universe Enterprises Limited (“NUEL") is beneficially interested ~ f/i# : New Universe Enterprises Limited
in 1,109,303,201 Shares, representing approximately 36.54% of the (INUELJ) BE% % H1,109,303,201%
issued share capital of the Company. NUEL is directly owned as to B HERAAAZE BHITERALY
83.66% by Mr. XI Yu. Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are also 36.54% - NUELREZE F S HEHEA
directors of NUEL. 83.66% - X RS ANKNELZETIEA
NUELZZE % »

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors B EXFIHEEEII RZT_=F+= A
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positionsin =1+ —H - BIBEFHARFAZ T ETHAER
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its KRR A sk R EM B EEE (F& RES R
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which & & Bl EXVER) 2 B {7 - 8 BE Bx 1) S (B 4 &
were entered in the register referred to therein as required pursuant to A REE 7 M EIE & HI 535215 A2 A #Z 1§
section 352 of the SFO or required, to be notified to the Company and the ~ #2il 2 Bt 2 a8k & - AREIT 2T R
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. MAMGARAT KRBz ERIOKE -
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INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
E 5 g HRG

FTEREREMALTRAER
Al RERRMFZHESR
R/HRA

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of those persons,
other than the Directors or the chief executives of the Company whose
interests has been disclosed therein above, in the Shares which has to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and or underlying shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO are as

follows:

SRR

8

7=

RZB-=F+_A=+—H BAQXTESE
REZBTRABE (BE2HZR EXHEE) N2
ZEATRBROFEEREES NBERIE
XVEBE2R3D FARM AR R E BN ERIAR
K,/ s AE BB 0 B B AR 8RR AN R R R IR 3%

HZRMEGRIIEIHRATFEZELM 2 EE

Long Positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

7

REATDRGREERGNEFR
Approximate
percentage
of total shares
in issue
Capacity in which ordinary Number of HE#T
Name of shareholder shares were held shares held R EE
RER & B FEZERNEH RO EE BMRBDE
Mr. XI Yu @ Interests of a controlled corporation 1,109,303,201 36.54
EEHEO ZPEHIN E S
NUEL @ Beneficial owner 1,109,303,201 36.54
EmEAA
China Minsheng Investment Group Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
Corporation Ltd
(FERARERMDBRRQF)
("RR®ZT)®
FEREREROBRAA SPEH QRS
(MR
FRECNEEEREGRAF Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIG-Asia”™) @
PREDNEEEEER QA ek NS b
(TR ER&ZZM])®
CMI Financial Holding Corporation Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIF-BVI™) @
CMI Financial Holding Corporation SR NS b
([HEBERZEBCMIF])®
CMIG International Capital Limited Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIG-Hong Kong™) @
FREBERERFRAA ek NS b
([FERRE]®
CM International Capital Limited Beneficial owner 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIC-Cayman™) @
CM International Capital Limited EmEA A
(TRZCMIC])®
Ms. LIU Yu Jie @ Beneficial owner 202,400,000 6.67
B A A £ ExnEAA

CECCEER HFRAREBEBRAT
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(i) NUEL is directly owned as to 83.66% by Mr. XI Yu. The interest disclosed
by Mr. XI as a Shareholder deemed interested in the 1,109,303,201
Shares is the same interest as disclosed by him being a Director.

(i) CMIC-Cayman is 100 % directly owned by CMIG-Hong Kong.
CMIG-Hong Kong is 31.5% directly owned by # & 3% and 68.5%
directly owned by CMIF-BVI. CMIF-BVI is 100% directly owned by
CMIG-Asia. CMIG-Asia is 100% directly owned by 1 R#%. CMIG-Hong
Kong, CMIF-BVI, CMIG-Asia and 1 R#% are all deemed interested in the
800,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by CMIC-Cayman.

(i)  The interest disclosed by Ms. LIU Yu Jie as a Shareholder is the same
interest as disclosed by her being a Director.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, so far as is known to
the Directors, the Company has not been notified of any other interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares which had been
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning for the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/
or Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares, and Debenture of the
Company or Any Specified Undertaking of the Company or Any Other
Associated Corporation”, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or the Company’s
subsidiary or holding company of a subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.
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() NUELHE R LA EEHEES3.66% - Zickt
ERREATH BT 2 KR A11,109,303,201 %
BHPMESAFIEREEMBEE AR
MR o

iy FECMICTIAESHTREI00%EEZES -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 31 July 2023, Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies Limited*
(as the "Vendor”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company),
Nanjing Yu Xin Environmental Company Limited* (as the “Purchaser”, a
limited liability company established in the PRC and is owned as to 97%
and 3% by Mr. HE Ling Yun and Ms. SHI Zhao Xia respectively) and Jiangsu
Yu Xin Environmental Engineering Management Company Limited* (as
the "Target Company”, a wholly owned domestic enterprise established
in the PRC and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into an agreement in relation to the sale and purchase of the
100% of the equity interest in the Target Company (the “Sale Equity”),
pursuant to which the Vendor has agreed to sell, and the Purchaser has
agreed to acquire, the Sale Equity at a consideration of RMB12,000,000
(approximately HK$13,074,000) (the “Disposal”). Upon completion of the
Disposal, (i) the Group ceases to hold any interest in the Target Company;
(i) the Target Company ceases to be a subsidiary of the Group; and (iii)
the Target Company’s financial results would no longer be consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements of the Group. As the Disposal
constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company, the Disposal is
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, as the Target Company is an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the Purchaser is owned
as to 97% and 3% by Mr. HE Ling Yun, an executive director and a
general manager of the Target Company and Ms. SHI Zhao Xia, a vice
general manager of the Target Company, respectively. Mr. HE Ling Yun is
a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level according to
Rule 14A.06(9) of the Listing Rules and the Purchaser is an associate of a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level according to Rule
14A.12 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Disposal also constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. By virtue of Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules, since (i) Mr. HE
Ling Yun is a connected person at the subsidiary level, (ii) the Board has
approved the Disposal; and (iii) the independent non-executive Directors
have confirmed that the terms of the Disposal are fair and reasonable
and the Disposal is on normal commercial terms or better and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole, the Disposal
is only subject to the reporting and announcement requirements, and is
exempt from the circular, independent financial advice and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the Disposal are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 July 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other connected transactions
(defined under the Listing Rules) which were discloseable in the reporting
period or any time during the year.
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PROVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND
GUARANTEES TO AN AFFILIATED COMPANY

On 25 September 2020, the Company and the joint venturer, as the
joint guarantors, entered into the guarantee agreement with a bank in
the PRC to jointly guarantee the repayment obligations of Liuzhou Xinyu
Rongkai Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited* (“Xinyu Rongkai” a
65% indirectly owned joint venture of the Company and being accounted
for using equity method) in relation to the bank loan facilities in a total
amount of RMB120,000,000 (approximately HK$132,000,000) and
the guarantee is effective until 31 December 2027, for the purpose of
financing the construction of the integrated hazardous waste treatment
project undertook by Xinyu Rongkai at Liuzhou, Guangxi Province, the
PRC.

On 7 December 2022, the Company as a guarantor, entered into a
guarantee agreement with another bank in the PRC to guarantee the
repayment obligations amounted to RMB5,850,000 (approximately
HK$6,435,000) based on 65% equity interest in Xinyu Rongkai for
a short-term banking facilities in a total amount of RMB9,000,000
(approximately HK$9,900,000) and the guarantee has been extended to 4
December 2027, for general working capital purpose of Xinyu Rongkai.

The banking facilities of Xinyu Rongkai guaranteed by the
Company amounting to 65% of RMB129,000,000, (approximately
HK$141,900,000) (2022: RMB129,000,000, approximately
HK$145,770,000) of which RMB125,100,000 (approximately
HK$137,610,000) (2022: RMB125,100,000, approximately
HK$141,363,000) was utilised, and loans of approximately
RMB63,148,000 (approximately HK$69,462,000) (2022: RMB93,173,000,
approximately HK$105,285,000) were outstanding as at 31 December
2023 of which approximately RMB55,148,000 is repayable on 21 June
2025 and bearing interest at fixed rate of 4.35% (2022: 4.55%) per
annum and RMB8,000,000 is repayable on 4 December 2024 and bearing
interest at fixed rate of 6.00% (2022: 3.65%) per annum.

On 19 June 2023, New Universe International Group Limited (a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company which directly holds 65% equity
interest in Xinyu Rongkai) as Lender A, the joint venturer, (Guangxi
Rongkai Huayuan Electroplating Industrial Park Investment Company
Limited*, which directly holds 35% equity interest in Xinyu Rongkai) as
Lender B, and Xinyu Rongkai as the borrower have jointly entered into a
loan agreement (the “JV Loan Agreement”) for a loan of RMB15,500,000
(approximately HK$17,050,000) which is unsecured, bearing interest at
4.05% per annum and repayable on 20 June 2025. Pursuant to the JV
Loan Agreement, in proportion to the respective shareholdings, Lender
A agreed to lend RMB10,075,000 (approximately HK$11,083,000) and
Lender B agreed to lend RMB5,425,000 (approximately HK$5,967,000)
to Xinyu Rongkai respectively. The loan has been drawn down by Xinyu
Rongkai on 20 June 2023 and used for the repayment of bank loan
instalment and interest due on 21 June 2023. As at 31 December 2023,
the loan to Xinyu Rongkai pursuant to the JV Loan Agreement from the
Group was RMB10,075,000 (approximately HK$11,083,000) (2022: Nil).

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

E—RBEBLRIRUMBTE
By R iE IR

A—E-ZFTERF-+HE ARQFREALSH
(EBEBEERA) EhE—RIB/TTLER
Wi AWHEBEERUINFTFLIEEENEE
ER2R ([FFLI]  AARMEHEBSY
AELE RKAEZZIZE) RALBEAA
R #120,000,0007T (#7132,000,000/8 7t) < R
TERME ZERBRE_ZT_tF+_A
—t+—H BNAMBETFRINRERMUAF
HEAENMNZ EREYGRESEERMEIREE

R-ZZ-—F+-A+tB ARAEABER
ANEFRES —RFITBRERBE AFTF
Kl —H B A AR9,000,0005T (4
9,900,000/ ) M HASR TR B B R ETF IR
65% M A IR (R EE A R #5,850,0007T
(#76,435,0008 70) * ZERBERXPEZ=-F
—tEF+-AMNHE - BEFFERINZ —REE

ANRABFTEREPES%ESBHH FLIRIT
& A AR #129,000,0007T (49141,900,000
Bm) (ZE2 =4 : AR®129,000,0007T *
#49145,770,0008 L) " EFEHHAARE
125,100,0007T (49137,610,0005 7T) (Z & = —
F }\Eﬁﬁ%us 100,0007T ~ 47141,363,000/%
L) RZEZ=F+=ZRA=+—H ' KEE
BR i@ AR #63,148,0007T (4969,462,000/%
) (ZZFZZF : AR¥93,173,0007T * &
105,285,0005 7T ) H /1 49 A R #55,148,0007T 78
RZE_RAFNAZ+—HBE WRETF
FFEL35% (B - —4F :455%) 18 RAR
#8,000,0007c R —Z —NF+ = ANBEE -
A 1% & F F F26.00% (ZF = =4 : 3.65%) &
H o

RZZE-_=ZFXATILBE #HTEBREX(E
I)EFE A(RRARZEMB AR - E%%ﬁﬁ
T RIS DB IERHBIFR  6ET (B
AR EREERTIXAREARAR > HER
B TR %EE)ERHET L RFF
'”'fIH’EBE?A’EJ%IE‘ETI%%M%E%(fJVE?\A’

Wakl) B4 A ARY15,500,0007T (%)
17,050,000/ 7t) @ | A - IZF F E4.05%
e WER-_ZE-_AFEANA-THEE-

REBZIVERB# PEFFREEELARE
10,075,0007T (#711,083,000 1) « Hi{&H 2
B EEHARYS,4250007 (45,967,000
L) REERELLIN AT FLEINER - ZE

REHFTFLIN _ZE_=ZFA-_1+HBIE
RAREBEEZZEZ=F A=+ —HIHKN
BITERSBNREFE RZTEZ=F+=
A=+—8 XEERBIVER B FTREHE

a%ﬁiﬁﬂzgﬁﬁ'ﬁ)\iﬁ%mon0007‘5(,%’9
11,083,000 L) (ZE=-_—_F : &)



During the year ended 31 December 2023, Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental
Technologies Limited* (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
has made advances to Xinyu Rongai, for its general operating purpose,
which are unsecured, bearing interest at fixed rates ranging from 3.55%
to 4.05% per annum and with no fixed terms of repayment. As at 31
December 2023, such advances due from Xinyu Rongkai to the Group was
approximately HK$13,435,000 (2022: Nil).

The following table summarised the financial information relating to the
Group’s joint venture at the end of the reporting period:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
E 5 g HRG

REBE-_E-_=F+_A=+—BHIFE I
FFRERNEBERAR (KRB Z2ENE
AR MHFFEIREDFTANE —BEER
B® o RRIEAEER - REEFNENTF3.55%

By
12

4.05% B RNEBEETERHAR HN=2F
=F+-B=1+—H #HFELIRAEED
2N TR#913,435,00008 7 (Z T - —F M) o

=113

TERFIAMARES B ERREBRZ M
BEREE -

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Gross amounts of the joint venture’s CELECHSE
Non-current assets EMENEE 160,707 181,330
Current assets MENEE 778 3,848
Current liabilities mE A& (87.316) (64,473)
Non-current liabilities B EN=R (39,399) (62,317)
Equity [N 34,770 58,388
The Group’s attributable interest in BEAKERGELEXZ
the joint venture ERZHE
Gross amount of net assets of the joint venture AZNEELEEFECELLHE 34,770 58,388
The Group's share of net assets of the joint KEBDEEELECEEFE
venture 22,600 37,952
The Group's share of shareholders' loan KEBDERRER 11,083 -
Unrealised profit on inter-company transaction RiR&HEREIREQFEISIH
eliminated on consolidation RER & T = (2,739)
Carrying amount of net assets of the joint EECEFEEREE
venture 33,683 35,213
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT
CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2023 and any time during the year, transactions,
arrangements, or contracts subsisted, of which certain Directors had
interests that were deemed significant to the business of the Group are set
out as follows:

(@ Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling, the executive Directors, are
also the directors of the landlord, Sun Ngai International Investment
Limited (“Sun Ngai”) to the tenancy agreement dated 25 July 2022
that was entered into by Smartech Services Limited (“Smartech
Services”), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
as tenant to lease three office units at Rooms 2109 to 2111, Telford
House, 16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong (the “Office
Premises”) for the period from 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 at a
monthly rental of HK$80,000.

(b) A renewed tenancy agreement dated 21 July 2023 was entered into
between Sun Ngai as landlord and Smartech Services as tenant for
leasing the Office Premises for the period from 1 August 2023 to 31
July 2024 at a monthly rental of HK$80,000.

() For the year ended 31 December 2023, total rentals paid
by Smartech Services to Sun Ngai were HK$960,000 (2022:
HK$960,000).

The above transactions were conducted on terms no less favourable
than terms available from independent third parties which were in the
ordinary course of business of the Group. The afore-mentioned tenancy
agreements entered into between the wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, Smartech Services and Sun Ngai were de minimis transactions
exempted under rule 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed therein, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company, any of its holding company,
subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the reporting period or any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Ms. LIU Yu Jie was appointed executive Director with effect from 9 June
2015, who has investments in four companies engaging in the operation
of hazardous waste projects in four cities in the Mainland China, of which
she has a controlling stake in one of the four said companies. As the
permission licence to operate hazardous wastes in each of the four said
cities is exclusive, and the Group does not have any such operations in
those cities, the Board considers that the said investments of Ms. LIU Yu Jie
do not compete with the interests of the Group.

Save as disclosed therein, during the year and up to the date of this report,
the Directors were not aware of any business or interest of the Directors or
any substantial Shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) and their
respective associates that had competed or might compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests which any such person had or might have with the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) for the
benefit of the Directors of the Company is currently in force and has
been in force throughout this year in accordance with Article 164 of the
Company'’s Articles of Association.

Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, losses, damages and
expenses which any of them shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty
or supposed duty in their respective offices. The Company has taken out
insurance against the liability and costs associated with defending any
proceedings which may be brought against Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors during the year and up to the date of
this annual report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Significant subsequent events occurred after the reporting period are set
out in note 47 to the financial statements.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group pays high regards to legal and regulatory requirements in
formulating its policies and practices. The Company has engaged with
financial advisers to advice on the compliance with the Listing Rules.
Legal advisers have also been engaged to ensure the Group operates
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations for major corporate
events of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group was not aware of
material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. YANG Harry (Chairman of Audit Committee), Mr. YUEN
Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred, has reviewed with the
management the consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company and the Group for the three
years ended 31 December 2023 were audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
("Crowe (HK)"). Crowe (HK) retires and, being eligible, offers itself for
re-appointment and a resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe (HK)
as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
REESS

oL/

\"‘-_

XI Yu
S

Chairman

FRE

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
B —E-_NF=R=-+=H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

A\ Crowe

To the shareholders of
New Universe Environmental Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Universe
Environmental Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 126 to 272, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

B M % BUAD RS

EELEE (§8) GHMSHERERAR
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
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B M B A RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BRELREHR

(@) Impairment of trade and bills receivables
(including lease receivables)
(refer to notes 23 and 44(c) to the consolidated
financial statements)

As at 31 December 2023, trade and bills receivables
(including lease receivables) of the Group were
approximately HK$92,617,000 (net of provision for
lifetime expected credit losses). Lifetime expected
credit losses of trade and bills receivables (including
lease receivables) are based on management’s estimate
of the lifetime expected credit losses to be incurred,
which is estimated by taking into account the credit
loss experience, ageing of overdue trade receivables,
customers’ repayment history and customers’ financial
position and an assessment of both the current
and forecast of future economic conditions, all of
which involve a significant degree of management
judgement.

(a) EWRILEE (BFEEREE) ZRE
(FBA2MSR AU IEREM 5E23%44(c)

RZZEZ=F+ZA=+—HB  EXKEZEEEIRR
ER (BERKIEE) £/592,617,0008 7T (B k% 2
BHEEBERE)  RUEERLRER (BREEKES)
ZEHEREEBEEFAEREHBELZ 2 M
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FHEEZER(E)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERREE T

Our audit procedures on this area included:

- Assessing and testing the Group’s processes and
key controls relating to the monitoring of trade and
bills receivables (including lease receivables) and the
granting of credit terms and contract terms relating to
billing milestones;

- Testing the accuracy of ageing analyses and obtaining
direct confirmations for samples of debtor balances;

- Evaluating the adequacy of the Group’s provision
for lifetime expected credit losses of trade and bills
receivables (including lease receivables) by reference
to the Group’s historical default data, the historical
bad debt loss rates as adjusted based on the current
economic condition during the year ended and as at 31
December 2023 and forward-looking information such
as the published forecast of GDP in the PRC; and

- Reviewing the settlements of the Group’s customers
during the year and up to the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements.

We also considered the adequacy of the disclosures, in
particular those included in notes 23 and 44(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BRERER

(b)

(b)

Impairment assessment of interest in an associate
(refer to notes 3(a)(vi) and 19(b) to the consolidated
financial statements)

At 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the
Group's 30% equity interest in FR/LETEREXF
EfERE YR B AR A A “Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal Co., Ltd” (“NCIP")
was approximately HK$112,259,000 and the Group's
share of loss of NCIP for the year was approximately
HK$10,072,000.

The recoverable amount of the Group’s 30% equity
interest in NCIP is the higher of value-in-use and fair
value less costs of disposal. At 31 December 2023,
impairment assessment on the carrying amount of the
Group’s 30% equity interest in NCIP was performed
by management by reference to the valuation of NCIP,
as an identified cash-generating unit, conducted by an
independent professional valuer with experience and
qualification in valuing similar assets.

The impairment assessment on the carrying value of
the Group's equity interest in NCIP at the reporting
period end involves significant judgements made by
management of the Group and estimation uncertainty.

— RN RS AR ER b
(F2 &S I MR M E3(@)vi) & 19(b)

R-TE-_=F+-_fA=+—H  EE£ERAERLET
¥EARFEEEVREARAR ([MRATF])30%MHK
AAERMEEELA112,259,0008 7 S£ER
AEERGERRKFEEL 10,072,000 7T °

BB B R RT30%M A =/ A W 0 £ 582 (E
BEEEAFERHERAMENKSE R _F_=
FH-_A=+t—H EEE2ZAFRUEEMER
BEERNBLEEMHERRT (EREHMREE

EBM)ETNBEY BEEERNERRTI0%RAE
@ M AR E (B 1T E R ©

RIBEHRYE SEEERERRTRAE @ REED
BAER YK BEREEIEENEAHE MG T
EREZE -
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B M % BUAD RS

FEEZER (B

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERREE T

Our audit procedures on this area included:

Performing a review on the financial statements of
NCIP for the two years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022;

Assessing the independent professional valuer’s
independence , competence , capabilities and
objectivity;

Evaluating the appropriateness for the valuation
methodologies used at reporting period end;

Checking the projection of cash flows of NCIP
in the valuation models to the detailed forecasts
prepared by management of NCIP and evaluating the
reasonableness of key assumptions underlying the cash
flow projection;

Assessing the reasonableness of the discount rate and
long-term growth rate in the valuation models not
exceeding the industry data at public domains; and

Challenging and evaluating the key assumptions in the
valuation model made by management of NCIP and the
independent valuer.

We also considered the adequacy of disclosures, in particular
those included in notes 3(a)(vi) and 19(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

AZHMELTANEZERF S
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FERRERARERNEETEZRETEE
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B H A IR
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W= ks G

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

B M % BUAD RS
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
BIEXE (58 StMSEMERATR
Certified Public Accountants

L ES-

Liu Mok Lan, Cliny

BAR
Practising Certificate Number: P07270

HERRIRSRS : PO7270

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
BB —TWUF=ZA=+=H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
G5B & %

@ls: For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2023 2022
—EZ= —EF-—
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHT FHT
(Restated)
(E5))
Continuing operations BERSEXR
Revenue Wi 4(a) 405,612 516,141
Cost of sales & P A 9 (340,195) (397,313)
Gross profit EY 65,417 118,828
Other revenue Hdras 6 3,945 4,249
Other income H A N 7 6,781 11,203
Gain on disposal of interest in a subsidiary HE—RMBARER 2 Wam  18(0) - 27,303
Distribution costs 2 $HPK AR (19,263) (22,090)
Administrative expenses THHX (49,771) (58,572)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment loss)  FEY 3% 2 Rl B 5 1B 0 &/
on trade receivables, net OREEE)  F58 44(c) 15,672 (2,185)
Other operating expenses Hingems 9 (21,506) (20,909)
Operating profit "R 1,275 57,827
Finance income BE WA 8 5,469 5,420
Finance costs A& KA 8 (3,780) (5,683)
Finance income/(costs) — net BEWA S (KAR) — F5E 8 1,689 (263)
Share of results of associates DIEBERNR 2 XE 19 (9,416) (7,250)
Share of results of a joint venture DE—REBRELER 20 (11,726) (13,044)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB (BR) &R 9 (18,178) 37,270
Income tax Frigat 12 (13,053) (20,033)
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations RERELLEK 2
(B#8) &# (31,231) 17,237
Discontinued operation CRIEEEER
Loss from discontinued operation RECRLREER BB 5 (4,536) (12,673)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB B (35,767) 4,564
Attributable to: BFALREL:
Owners of the Company ViN/NIEFEDN (33,118) 7,273
Non-controlling interests FEIE R = (2,649) (2,709)
(35,767) 4,564
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the A2 B #H A FE{L
Company: . (B#R) aF
— From continuing operations —RERECEER (28,582) 19,946
— From discontinued operation —RADKIEE =% (4,536) (12,673)
(33,118) 7,273
(Loss)/earnings per share Sk (EE) BF 14
From continuing and discontinued operations 78 B #4842 IF I8 4 ¥ 7% .
Basic and diluted BERRE HK cents(1.09)% 1l HK cents 0.2471ll
From continuing operations REFELEER .
Basic and diluted HAR#E HK cents(0.94)%& 1l HK cents 0.667%& 1l

The notes on pages 133 to 272 are an integral part of these financial ~$133BER272H ZMEBRARHRE T
statements. AI SR 2 R -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS A

=] = M2
N ’%E N

D OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Hfh 2 m W=

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZTZ

3 R

=FtZRA=1— EIJL@F

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 TER FHEIT
(Restated)
(gE7)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BRB) #H (35,767) 4,564
Other comprehensive income: Hih2HEWKH :
Items that may be reclassified BB HET S EEEm 2
subsequently to profit or loss: HE -
Exchange differences MEHZR
— on translation of financial statements —BREFINNE AR Z
of overseas subsidiaries B 1 Rk (16,778) (67,024)
- on translation of financial statements —RE BN ENF 2
of overseas associates B 75 S 2% 19 (3.931) (12,597)
— on translation of financial statements —BE-RBINEGEREZ
of an overseas joint venture B Rk 20 (887) (3,316)
Release of translation reserve RBRIREEE
— upon disposal of interest in —EHEEMNTER
an overseas subsidiary s 18(c) - (2,591)
— upon disposal of discontinued —AHEERIEEEER
operation 18(c) 352 -
Items that will not be reclassified BB P EE B s
subsequently to profit or loss: EH -
Fair value changes on equity investments &8 H ith 2 E U 512 A F1E
at fair value through other ABRZBAEE 2 NFEE
comprehensive ey (T rdeE)
income (non-recycling) 21 11,200 (10,500)
Deferred tax effect relating to changes B AIEE RN FEEEF
in fair value of equity investments B IEER G2 34(b) (2,170) (580)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEHh2mKa -
net of income tax MRS (12,214) (96,608)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE2XHEEEAE (47,981) (92,044)
Attributable to: THALEN:
Owners of the Company KARERA (42,379) (79,738)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A = (5.602) (12,306)
(47,981) (92,044)
Total comprehensive loss for the EAREENEEEREZE
year attributable to owners of EBIRAEKE
the Company arises from:
Continuing operations BHEKEER (38,195) (66,292)
Discontinued operation BRI EEB (4,184) (13,446)
(42,379) (79,738)

The notes on pages 133 to 272 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE B R R

@l As at 31 December 2023 RZZE_=F+=ZA=+—H

2023 2022
—EB-=F —_EF-—
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 F#E T FAET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B E RRE 15 578,436 651,164
Right-of-use assets HERAEEE 16 98,547 103,159
Goodwill EES 17 33,000 33,000
Interests in associates REEE RN A 2w 19 138,899 153,450
Interest in a joint venture R—REELEZESR 20 33,683 35,213
Equity investments at fair value through  FBEM 2 E W HIEZ A FEAR
other comprehensive income ZRARE 21 81,500 70,300
Deferred tax assets RIETHIBE = 34(b) 5,846 10,229
969,911 1,056,515
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 4,936 7,037
Trade and bills receivables FEUBR 7k S ZE IR 23 92,617 106,499
Prepayments, deposits and BRRIE - Ze Rk
other receivables H th i SRR 24 32,497 21,081
Contract assets BHEE 25 - 32,652
Restricted bank deposits SRl HSR1TIF K 26 731 5,225
Cash and cash equivalents ReLERIBEEER 26 186,365 270,279
317,146 442,773
Assets classified as held for sale DEEBFEELHEZEE 27 14,367 14,758
331,513 457,531
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 28 44,000 97,959
Trade and bills payables FENERLREZE 29 59,392 69,739
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEEH B E R E b fE 2IE 30 137,374 218,612
Lease liabilities HERE 31 332 326
Contract liabilities eEHBaE 32 4,272 3,190
Deferred government grants i 3E R AT 48 B 33 1,881 1,935
Income tax payable FERTPT1S L 34(a) 2,729 5,575
249,980 397,336
Net current assets RBEEFHE 81,533 60,195
Total assets wEE 1,301,424 1,514,046
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 1,051,444 1,116,710

New Universe Environmental Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mAE BB IR R R

As at 31 December 2023 R-ZE-_=F+-_A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=F —_F-=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P THET FAET
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Lease liabilities HEARE 31 = 341
Deferred government grants IR AT BUAT 485 Bb 33 8,360 10,462
Deferred tax liabilities REBIEEE 34(b) 29,725 30,400
38,085 41,203
Total liabilities weF 288,065 438,539
Net assets EEFE 1,013,359 1,075,507
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital &N 35 30,357 30,357
Reserves 1 36 877,894 931,320
Equity attributable to owners of the KABEAA
Company JEAG 7R 908,251 961,677
Non-controlling interests eI IR A 18(b) 105,108 113,830
Total equity R4 EE 1,013,359 1,075,507

The notes on pages 133 to 272 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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e EE S

[ @lls: For the year ended 31 December 2023 BEZZTZ

B *x

=F+-A=1T—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LT LN

CPNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

4=4

moimn

Investment Share Non-
Share Share  Translation revaluation  Capitl ~ option  Statutory  Retained controlling
cpital  premium  reserve &r;;%ng reseve  reseve  resene  profits Total  interests Total equity
Bt BOEE EXRE BE BIRE BRERE %ERE  REW 8 FRREE  RAAE
HESO0D  HKS000  HK000  HKSO00  HKFOOD  HKFOOD  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKS00  HK§'00
thn  TEn A A TR TEr T TR TR Thr TR
(note (note (note (note (note [note
Mote3s) 36l ) 3600 36 36 J( ) 36
( Wﬂ; /W nI L%ﬂ? 1// /TE (1)) u WLT
a5 ) W s s ) )
At 1 January 2022 RZEZ2E-F-H 0357 dedss 443 1529 511 0 9% %23 105779 130031 1182810
Profit for the year EEEH - - - - - - - 128 AL} (2709 4564
Other compr henswe income Ebdagz
Bichange diferences Eizg
-ontrnston o fncl statementsof - ABANKEAT 28RS
Overseas subsidiaries - - 4 - - - - - B4 (9597 (67,004
- on ranslaton of financil statements of -BERNBENTZHRRR
OVersegs associates - - (1259 - - - - - (1259 - (1259
- ontranslaton of financial statements of an -~ -~ BE-FENAEAF 2B
OVersess Jointventure - - (3310) - - - - - (3316) - (3316)
- releaseof translafion resene wpon diposl of - B E-FENHBATRER
an overses subsidary (note 18(0) HERE W90 - - 2591) - - - - - 2591) - 259)
Fair value changes on equity investments, net of - A% 8 2 AT ESE (MBETHE
eferred tan k58 - - - (1080) - - - ] ]
Totalcompreensive o or the year ERREEEEE - - B (11,080 - - - T8 (1230 (00m)
Transfr o statutory reserve ?‘;ﬂﬁ ATER - - - - - - B 3,054 - - -
Equity-settled share-hased transactions TERSERRNERR 23
(note 40) 4)) - - - - - R - - e - 7
Dividend elating to 2021 —2--ERE - - - - - - - g (11839 - (183
Dividend pad and patle tonon-onralling (B F AR AR RS
inerests of subsiiaries RERRE - - - - - - - - - B B8
At31 December 022 and 1 January 03 R-FZZETZR=1-8R
“§TE-3-8 037 456465 (29,508) 4149 511 1381 %330 %731 %16 113830 1,075,507
Lossfor the year EREE - - - - - - SBNY By ey 3567
Other compiehensiv income 2p2Eks
Bichange differences E%%éﬁ
- on translation of finandal statements of
Overseas subsidiaries - - (B38Y) - - - - - (138 %3 (16778)
- on translation of financial statements of
0Verseas associates - - (3931) - - - - - 3931) - 3931)
- 0n translation of financial statements of an
Oversezs jointventure - - (887) - - - - - (887) - (887)
- teease oftranslation reserve pon disposel of
discontinued operation (note 16/c) - - 3H - - - - - 1 - 3H
Falr vlue changes on equity investments, netof A E
Qeferred tax 3 - - - 9030 - - - - 9,030 - 9,030
Total comprehensiv loss for the year - - (1829 9,030 - - - BNy w3 (5600 (47981)
Transfer o statutory reserve - - - - - - 2039 20%9 - - -
Equity-sttled share-based transactions
(note 40) - - - - - 189 - - 489 - 489
Lapse of share options - - - - - (133 - 33 - - -
Dividend relsting to 2022 ZE ﬂxu - - - - - - - M3 (1153%) - (153)
Dividend paid and payable to non-controling WWE Az ERRER R
interestsof subsidartes REfRE - - - - - - - - - Bl B0
At 31 December 2023 RIEZZETIAZT-A 0357 645 (477%9) 13179 511 1137 94891 354849 908251 105108 1013359

FI13BEEFE2NEZKHF IR AT EHRET
Al sk Bk 2 B e

The notes on pages 133 to 272 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FEBHRITMNE X

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HE-T-=F+-A=+—HItFE

2023 2022
—B-=5F —EF-—
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FHET
(Restated)
(seE7))
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEK
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(EBE) w55 (35,767) 4,564
Adjustments for: HATSIEELHFE
Interest income F B U A 8 (4,993) (3,086)
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIEEZF B 8 3,756 5,641
Interest on lease liabilities HEBREZME 8 24 42
Dividends from equity investments KERAIRE Z IR E 6 (3,945) (4,249)
Share of results of associates DR E N R EE 19 9,416 7,250
Share of results of a joint venture PME—REeEEZER 20 11,726 13,044
Unrealised profit on transaction RiFA R EIFERE K
with a joint venture eliminated on EERNAIRFH
consolidation KBRS F 20 - 474
Depreciation of property, plant YE - BB MEE
and equipment e 15 72,428 75,593
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREEEITE 16 3,278 3,362
Equity-settled share-based payment IARR AN s 5t B 1R AR 0 1
expenses EWRTARAX 40 489 475
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BEMEREZERE
and equipment ik 9 1,301 308
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment  EBWIRF 2 CREEIE
loss on trade receivables, net BI#),/FEEISE F38 44(c) (15,672) 2,185
Gain on disposal of interest in a subsidiary HE—RMBARERS 2 Wz 18(c) = (27,303)
Release of deferred government grants I JE B ST 4 BL R 33 (2,017) (2,026)
Loss from discontinued operation REBKRIEEEER ZEE 5 4,536 12,673
Income tax expenses R E R 13,053 20,033
Operating cash flows before EEESEHAIZ
movements in working capital REBRERE 57,613 108,980
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, () 2,101 (319)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables JRE K BR T R R RO 261 26,836
Increase in prepayments, deposits and B RIE - ke R E A ER
other receivables FRIEIE N (8,294) (4,179)
Decrease in trade and bills payables FERTBR R R RIER (117) (13,013)
Decrease in accrued liabilities and other  FE&H & & [ H i & 1< 718
payables B (27,343) (4,827)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities sHaEEmn CRd) 2,948 (14,095)
Cash generated from operations REEEZES 27,169 99,383
Income tax paid [RENRIECE 34(a) (12,364) (19,887)
Income tax refunded FRS BRI 34(a) 62 409
Dividend withholding tax paid 2R E B 34(b) (2,059) (3,455)
Interest received BB 8 4,993 3,086

The notes on pages 133 to 272 are an integral part of these financial 1338 E 52728 2 W T Jh# ik A< 81 % 2 = 1~
statements. RISl R Z B D o

TECCHEFER MFERREEERAF 131



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FEBHRITMNE X

@ls: For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
(Restated)
(&&E5))
Net cash generated from operating REEREE RS TE
activities 17,801 79,536
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXE®
Dividends received from an associate BER—REE QB ZRE 19 1,204 2,538
Dividends received from equity BRBEATEZ
investments i & 3,945 4,849
Cash outflow arising on disposal of HEBKRIEEEEY
discontinued operation FrEERRSRE 18(c) (1,978) -
Cash inflow arising on disposal of interest HE—RMB A E=
in a subsidiary FrEAHRERA 18(c) - 48,176
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE BMENMKREZ
and equipment FriS 8 176 231
Payment for purchase of property, plant iﬁ,ﬁﬁ,\%% B R
and equipment B (17,874) (32,336)
Capital contribution to a joint venture M—RXEEEETE 20 - (57)
Loan to a joint venture BERT—REeEE 20 (11,083) -
Receipt of government grants HKEXBUT%%EE 33 165 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from REELW (A FE£2
investing activities ReFE (25,445) 23,401
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETE
Dividends paid to shareholders of the ERAVNEIT
Company AT AR B 13 (11,536) (11,839)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [ B /&8 & &) JE 1% AR i 25
of subsidiaries A A% B (5.847) (3,505)
Proceeds from bank borrowings WITEEMRGSHIEA 26(b) 106,601 139,268
Repayment of bank borrowings ERRITEE 26(b) (158,995) (233,425)
Interest paid 21 F 8 26(b) (3,833) (5,758)
Interest element of lease payments HENE Zﬂ v 26(b) (24) (42)
Capital element of lease payments HMERF Z§$*W‘ 26(b) (321) (322)
Placement of restricted bank deposits FAZREIRITER (614) (21,748)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits B Bl 52 R &l R 177 3K - 21,631
Net cash used in financing activities RMETHFFAZREFHE (74,569) (115,740)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH REREFRESER 2
EQUIVALENTS Do REPER (82,213) (12,803)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—A—BzZBEK
1 JANUARY ZEAEL£EAE 270,279 302,074
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERBE) s & (1,701) (18,992)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R+-ZA=+—BzHER
31 DECEMBER ZEABELER 186,365 270,279

The notes on pages 133 to 272 are an integral part of these financial 51338 252728 7 W R AN EHEN
statements. A Sk iR 2 BB 17 o
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1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

(a)

(o]

(d)

New Universe Environmental Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 November
1999 as an exempt company with limited liability under the
Companies Act, Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands. The registered
office of the Company is at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The principal place of business of the Company is located at
Rooms 2110-2112, 21/F, Telford House, 16 Wang Hoi Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s issued shares have been initially listed on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 18 May 2000. With effect from 1 August
2016, the listing of the shares of the Company was transferred
from the GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") that is also the functional currency of
the Company while the functional currency of the subsidiaries
in the mainland of The People’s Republic of China (“Mainland
China” or the "PRC") is Renminbi (“RMB"). As the Company’s
shares are listed in Hong Kong where most of its investors are
located, the Directors consider that it is more appropriate to
present the consolidated financial statements in HK$S.

These consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2023 were approved for issuance by
the Board on 22 March 2024.

1.

31 December 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R R MR

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Material accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
and the Group’s interests in associates and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for the
following:

o Equity investments — measured at fair value (note 2(h))

. Assets classified as held for sale — measured at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (note

2(2)(1))

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods. Judgements made by management in
the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on
the financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial statements for
the current accounting year:

° HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

o Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes
in accounting estimates and errors: Definition of
accounting estimates

o Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements, and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Making
materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting
policies

. Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

. Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes, International
tax reform — Pillar two model rules

Except for the below, the application of the above new and
amendments to HKFRSs has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and position for the current
and prior periods and/or disclosures set out in these financial
statements:

o Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement
2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

[ gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The Group has adopted the amendments for the first time in
the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
replace all instance of the term “significant accounting
policies” with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information include in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that are accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, is itself is
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure
material accounting policy information.

Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. The Group has disclosed the material accounting
policy information in note 2 to the financial statements. The
amendments did not have any impact on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group's
financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting year.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered. The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the elements of control.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(h)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or joint venture (see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(1)), unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase price, other costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate or joint
venture that forms part of the Group’s equity investment.
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted to recognise the
Group's post-acquisition share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture
and any impairment loss relating to the investment. Any
acquisition date excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment (after reassessment) is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an
associate or joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with any
other long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture,
after applying the expected credit losses model to such other
long-term interests where applicable.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not re-measured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

140

(continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(h)).

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates and joint ventures are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(l)), unless classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale).

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to
be a business and no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. {REBIEE R EAEEHE
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION REHL(48)
(continued)

(f) Business combinations or asset acquisitions (f) H=BEszlaE (8)

(continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
include an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge,
or experience to perform the related processes or they
significantly contribute to the ability to continue producing
outputs and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability
to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition date is on
or after 1 January 2022, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset and a
liability in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework"”)
except for transactions and events within the scope of HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
("HKAS 37") or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies (“HK(IFRIC)-Int 21"), in
which the Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead
of the Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has
assumed in a business combination. Contingent assets are not
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(f) Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets and
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employees Benefits
respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to the
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date;

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

- lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(f)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

[ gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(f)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that does not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
re-measured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument
would be accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the previously
held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes
of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represents the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored of internal management purposes and
not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or groups of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the
cash-generating unit within the Group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within
the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating units within
a group of cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative values
of the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of
cash-generating units) retained.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

[ gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(h) Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
are as follows.

Investments in equity securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially stated at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised directly
in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see note 43.
These investments are subsequently accounted as follows,
depending on their classification.

0] Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
into one of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principle and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.

- fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) — recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

- fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
(h) Other investments in equity securities

(continued)
(i) Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made
if the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income
remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is
not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit
or loss as other income in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(v)(iii).

(i) Property, plant and equipment
The following items of property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

- interests in leasehold land and buildings where the
Group is the registered owner of the property interest;

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered owner
of the property interest; and

- other items of property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of underlying
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % W& M A

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. iR EERE X EFH
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION KEM (&)
(continued)
(i)  Property, plant and equipment (continued) (i) % WFEK&EE)

148

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residue
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

FETUE  UMEYE BE
M BEE ZKAE  LERER
EREEWT 2 AR A E A HR R
A REREE(NA)

Buildings 20 years BF 20%F
Plant and machinery 3 - 10 years R = K i B8 3Z210F
Computers and equipment 3 -5 years B R EE 3E5F
Furniture and fixtures 5 years R REE 54
Motor vehicles 5 years aE 54

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and is recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

E-EME BEAREEBEZE
M AEB AR ZAER SR IR
B 2 AN 1R & 12 E TR 5 ED )
DB MEBDEEMNTE B
EzAERFHREFGRER
B)eBFETR -

BERABREBESREEKEN
ZFX e

Hifg A AN 7 B 5% TR B R B R 2R
KEMERAEFNANES B
BERI M EZRBERANER
T R AEREENREE X
BRRBUMNEE (WER) - E1F
1B B EMEAERE D 2 REE
RERR IR IERER - PTE E &R
RGERANEEEENRE A
RS R -

WERXBREEZ REESNEMGE
ROl S MZBEEEZKREE
ISR EH AT & 58 -

KEBERLE—ENE B R
Rl 2 NS 1B TR I PR
R 5 O B R (ERD 2 2
B WA R AR A
GEE R



2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

()

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings and structures
under construction, which is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(l)). Cost comprises direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs (see note 2(w))
during the periods of construction. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred
to property, plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use
are complete.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is substantially completed and ready for its
intended use.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with
these leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

@ils: 31 December 2023

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(k)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(k)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any
rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such
cases, the Group has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the change
in consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual payments
that are due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

@ils: 31 December 2023

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(k)

Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with note

2(v)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in note 2(k)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENIS
B #& ¥ 3k MY &
31 December 2023 —ZE-=F+-A=+—H
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. {FEHERE XS HE
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION REH (88)

(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets I EEBBREERE
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets () ZFTHA 2AEEREWK

and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses ("ECL") on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables);

- contract assets an defined in HKFRS 15; and

HEZIZEER
AEER T FENERE
EER(EHREEER] ®
REEEE

- REBKAFTEZER
EE (BERERER
ReBBAREEER
N E Al R RROR)

- BEUBmEENEIS

RAREZENEE
53
- lease receivables. - ElkHEE-
Measurement of ECL EHEEEENE

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate; and

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

In measuring ECL, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECL are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECL: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECL: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease receivables
and contract assets are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL. ECL on trade receivables are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of a debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

B % R & MY 5
31 December 2023 —ZE=_=%+=A=+—H
MAEBEEREXEGFH
KEM (&)

I EEEEREERE (B)

(1)

TMIT A aHNEERENK
HEZEEEE (&)

=E Rk AR A

REHEBRTENEERR
BYBERUNRES KELE
FR AEBESLERKRE
AEI R R Y6 ER B BT
MEeRMTEZFEENNRR -
ELZEHTER  AEH
RA - WOERA KA 8
N5 B 4 R R SR IR IR
B (EE)ETHHERT
MASEEHZNEEFEER
& os(ie m & E D 8 H190
A AlEEENSH -AE
EeZrRisRBuEmEERk
EMEER BERALBRRE
FEFNEHBERALE N
TRV SR ATHE I E R o

HEgms FEEERRA
VR HERARE S K LI
REZEBUATER :

- RERAKNIHBEHX
NASHFE

- ZRIEAIMBHIAILE
ERAFNERR AR
ZR(mE)

- BEBAZEEXEER
g EHEREEE
&

— BB T EERE
ABHMA N XTSRS
B T A BT A
SERTNENEER
TRPE -

CECCEER HFRAREBEBRAT

58



156

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECL are measured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2(v)(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environmental that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amount subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

- construction in progress;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use, (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % & MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. R E R K E X5
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION KA (4&)
(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets I EEEBEREERE (B)

160

(continued)
(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (notes

2(D)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are assets in the form of materials or supplies
which are held for consumption in the rendering of services in
the ordinary course of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those EFEELHR ZSEFEZEREE
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which NERBAKRABREANIER—EHH

the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount for inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(n)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(I)(i) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become unconditional
(see note 2(0)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such case, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction
prices. Trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(p)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with policy set
out in note (2)(1).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value,
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amount.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing
costs.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Defined benefit plan obligations

The Group has a defined benefit plan, representing
long service payment (“LSP”) under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The Group’s net defined benefit
obligation is measured by discounting the estimated
cost to the Group of the benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods, after deducting the negative service cost arising
from the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions that have been vested with employees,
which are deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is
performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. Current service cost, any past service
cost and net interest expense are recognised in profit or
loss. Net interest is determined by using the net defined
benefit obligations and the discount rate determined at
the beginning of the year, and also taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit obligations
during the year resulting from contributions or benefit
payments. Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
plan, which comprise actuarial gains and losses and
the effect of any asset ceiling (excluding interest), are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

31 December 2023

—EZ=F+=ZA=1+—H

WMABEEREXNERH
REM ()

(s)

EE®A (%)

(1)

FEHZamil B EH
AEBERBERZMTEZ
=% MEBRRBEMNET
ZEHRB e (IRHRE
&) AEEFRREZFE
BB HRAKE
B ERNAHRE XA E R
1R AR 75 [ ¥R M & R R &
BET R AETIHRIAGTE
I 78 H1 Bk B A £ B 5 A & it
AMEBREEZRERF
REMESL 2 BERBKA -
ZEXDERELSEBREER

ERXAERBZFAED
MAERBEMEMAETE
3 BROR B HORHETT - B
PR 75 PR AS ~ AE 7] 38 1E AR 75 AKX
AERFEMNBBERYERGF
WHER - FHEDREFA
e FERI A EE
BRFTREUEE  WEE
JB A 3 B 3R AR A ST P
BERFREXmAr BB
EMEL - ERXEEE
EZFEE BEEBER
ARBRAREMEE LR
(TEENB) ZZE B
BI7A E b 2 [ Y 25 1 e A2 o

CECCEER HFRAREBEBRAT

163



164

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

@ils: 31 December 2023

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share option reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year under review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% ¥R & M &=
31 December 2023 —ZE_=F+-A=+—H
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. {RElHE R T A EHHE
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION REH (&)
(continued)
(t) Income tax (t) P

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary difference, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary differences or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, the entity has sufficient
taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, which will result in
taxable amounts against which the unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(t) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are:

- temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes,

- temporary differences arising from the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided that they are not part of
a business combination) and do not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences,

- temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to the extent
that the Group controls the timing of the reversal and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future, and

- temporary differences related to income taxes arising
from tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % ¥R ok M ORE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. B EEREXGTH

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(t) Income tax (continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

° the same taxable entity; or

. different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

[ gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(u)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received from the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts
are measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the net cost of fulfilling
with the contract.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by
others of the Group’s assets under operating leases in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

In determining whether the Group acts as a principal or as an
agent, it considers whether it obtains control of the products
or services before they are transferred to the customers.
Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct the use of and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from the
products or services.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where the
contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. The
Group takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

(i) Revenue from provision of services or goods

Revenue from provision of waste and sewage treatment
and related services or goods are recognised when
control of the services or goods are passed to the
customers.

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the services or goods is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract, control of the
services or goods may be transferred over time or a point
in time. Control of the services or goods is transferred
over time if the Group's performance:

- provides the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

WMABEEREXNERH
REM ()

170

(continued)
(v) Revenue and other income (continued) (v) W EEMIA(E)
(i) Revenue from provision of services or goods (continued) () KEREREN TR W

If control of the services or goods transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation, which is measured
based on direct measurements of the value of individual
services or goods transferred by the Group to the
customer. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the services
or goods.

(a)

(b)

(@]

Revenue from provision of hazardous waste
treatment and landfill services are recognised at
point in time when the services are rendered to the
customers from whom the Group have collected
and disposed the wastes.

Revenue from provision of industrial sewage
treatment services are recognised over time when
the services are rendered to the customers and
measured by using the meters for recording the

(%)

fisd B 75 3% & 4 2 4% 1 #E AR 5B
—BREHER  WAERS
REBEHVHABECE TKED
BECERET MERE
EFEDERAKBERETR
BEZENRERERZE
BEEERFE B WER
EFESRENE miEH#
2 REIFER -

(@) RHEREYREREKXHE
EIRB 2 Was TR A%
BEEmEPKENRE
BEYIALE HARTS RS FERR o

(b) RETFISKEERH
ZWERAET P RHR
505 g B R W 5B - 30 BA
RERARNEEHRRERE

sewage flowing into the central sewage treatment FEIXRARAEERE
plant which is operated by the Group inside its Em S5 KEER

eco-plating industrial zone.

Revenue from provision of utilities (electricity, gas
and water) are recognised over time when the

H)SKEIRET & -

(0 RHL2BEE(E-R
KeoK) 2 Wz 1A A AR £

utilities (electricity, gas and water) are supplied ERREEILERAD
to the customers inside the Group’s eco-plating BEREAREE (F -

industrial zone and measured by the respective
meter recording devices.

Revenue from provision of management services is
recognised over time and on a straight-line basis
over the period of the relevant contract when
the management services are rendered to the
customer inside the eco-plating industrial zone of
the Group.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

31 December 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Revenue from provision of services or goods (continued)

(e)

Equipment construction and installation services:
Revenue from the provision of equipment
construction and installation services is recognised
over time, by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of performance obligation.

The progress towards complete transaction of the
performance obligation in respect of equipment
construction and installation services is measured
based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance obligation, by
reference to the contract costs incurred up to
the end of the reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract. The
likelihood of the Group earning contractual
bonuses for early completion or suffering
contractual penalties for late completion are taken
into account in making these estimates, such that
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur. When the outcome of the contract cannot
be reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are expected to be recovered. If at any time the
costs to complete the contract are estimated to
exceed the remaining amount of the consideration
under the contract, then a provision is recognised
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(u).

Lease income from operating leases

Lease income receivable under operating lease is

recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over

the period covered by the lease term, except where an

alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend

on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the

accounting period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

@ils: 31 December 2023

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

v)

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted equity investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attached to
them. Government grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Government grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred; borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Translation of foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using the currency that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events
and circumstances relevant to that entity (“functional
currency”). The functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries outside Mainland China is Hong Kong
dollar and the functional currency of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China is Renminbi. The financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“presentation
currency”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.

[ @ils: 31 December 2023

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(x)

(y)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(ii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on
which the entity initially recognised such non-monetary
assets and liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to that operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the year in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient

resources and the intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
year in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(z) Non-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operations
(i) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as
held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when
the above criteria of classification as held for sale are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought
up-to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy
so far as the financial statements of the Group and
the Company are concerned are deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets
(other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale,
are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current
asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the
non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

@ils: 31 December 2023

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(z) Non-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operations (continued)

(ii)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group'’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group,
that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held
for sale, and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, is part of a
single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is
a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation also occurs if
the operation is abandoned and the above criteria are
met.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(aa) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

B % ¥R ok M ORE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br & ¥R &k M &

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. {FEHERE XS HE
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION REH (88)

(continued)
(aa) Related parties (continued) (aa) BEEALT (B)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (iy WHNLATEMESHER B
conditions applies: (continued) RERDEASEBBE -
()

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (5 HXERDARAEBELHE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an rEEBE#HECERZ
entity related to the Group. EEZNEME T 2R

N R

(6)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (6) FZE B M sE2(aa)(i)FT

person identified in note 2(aa)(i). Bz KRB AT
Sk AR o

(7) A person identified in note 2 (aa)(i)(1) has (7)  BMtsF2(aa)(i) NPT R 2
significant influence over the entity or is a member EKEATHZERBES
of the key management personnel of the entity (or BEAFENSRZERE
of a parent of the entity). (kZERZERAA) Z

FTEEBEABZKE -

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of which (8)  [AI AN £ [ Bk [m) 7N & [ &}
it is a part, provides key management personnel NARBETEETEAER
services to the Group or the Group’s parent. RSz BEREEAMESE

BEMEFKE AT -
Close members of the family of a person are those family ERALZHREBREKE BREZ
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced ERETRINARERTEZS
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. ATHAEEZEATHEZZE
RIEHK B o
(bb) Segment reporting (bb) 7 & &

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item REF B wE AL 2 & & D E &
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the EOEIEBER 2 NERBEHIE
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most HPIREBETELERFTALAE
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating REBTREB KB BEELE
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's TR BE N = 3R AV Ak 2 B 7% A& R T B
various lines of business and geographical locations. Al o

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated M BmEME ENERZEE
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have DG E  RIEZSEHE
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of BHUCKBERBREUZER R
the nature of products and services, the nature of production fRGHEE AEIFME EPLH
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to Al DHELKERRBEAEAZ
distribute the products or provide the services and the nature FE - ARBRERE o iwa IEER
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments that are BACEENDBEAZERERHN
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a REbth - B EEERNER 2 &
majority of these criteria. DERAIEPEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(@) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(i) Fair value of equity investments

The Company has engaged an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair market value of those equity
investments as disclosed in note 21 to the financial
statements. The Directors of the Company made
a review on the judgement of the independent
professional valuer in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for the financial instruments not quoted in
an active market. Valuation techniques applied by the
independent professional valuer are commonly used by
other market practitioners. The estimation of fair value
of the equity investments which are unlisted equity
instruments includes the adoption of a market approach
with some assumptions supported by observable
market data or parameters deemed compatible to the
operations of those investments.

(i) Classification of Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New
Huamei as equity investments

Note 21 to the financial statements described that
Qingdao Zhongxin Huamei Plastics Co., Limited
("Qingdao Huamei”) and Danyang New Huamei
Plastics Co., Limited (“Danyang New Huamei”) are
categorised as equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income of the Group although
the Group owns 28.67% and 24.50% equity interest
in Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei,
respectively. The Group has no significant influence over
Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei by virtue of
the contractual rights to appoint only one out of the six
directors and one of the seven directors to the board of
directors of Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei,
respectively.

B % ¥R ok M ORE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H
3. EtHIETREE

EEBARENEHBEBRS E
T2 {5 @ A 2R -

() BERASEETHRRNE
5 5t B
EEAAREEHRENBIES
IR B L 0 T R 21 0 ¢

(i) REREZLNFE
ARREEEBLEXRME
BhEP iz ERARE 2R F
1B (A 81 75 3R R M 521 P 4R
B) ARAREEENBELE
ELEMRNERT ST E
BEz2CHMIAREEE
(CRERs NNl -
VEXEMGEMARRZEE
Bt EMTSEEELER
RAEE BRAREBGRIFL
MRATR) 2 AFEZ e
BRERMAMSE BRAF
BRAMBSITEREE S EZ
SEREZEBAELBRZS
B2 BR -

(i) BEEZERNEIEESE
BRARE
MR a1 &
AEBSREESSTHE
EBRARAB([FEEXE])
MG EE BRI AR AR
(G EZE]) 128.67% K&
2450% B AR BB E
ERFNGHEEHEIER
AEBZFREMEEKE
BERAFEAENBREALE -
ERNEUDIEASTEEE
NAEEFH—RARTGH
EXLZEERH—ZMA
HEBESTSNELERN
AEBHEESEERAGH
EEXWEBATES -

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA

A9



180

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

[ @ils: 31 December 2023

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(@) Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

(v)

Functional currency of the Company

The Company is carrying out its operating activities and
making management decisions in Hong Kong dollar,
amongst others, on raising finance in Hong Kong
dollars and has a significant degree of autonomy from
its subsidiaries in the Mainland China in the way its
business is managed. Hong Kong dollar is the currency
of the transactions and events of the Company for which
the Company primarily receives and expends. In the
opinion of the Directors of the Company, its functional
currency is Hong Kong dollar.

Leased assets under operating leases

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group's
property, plant and equipment were certain buildings
ancillary to sewage treatment and the leasehold land
of the eco-plating specialised zone with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$101,667,000
(2022: HK$113,960,000) that are leased to the
customers under operating leases for use in accordance
with the arrangement of the master agreements made
between the Group and these customers. As the
industrial sewage services provided to these customers
are significant to the arrangement as a whole inside the
eco-plating specialised zone which is owned, operated
and managed by the Group, these relevant buildings
and equipment facilities are accounted for and classified
under property, plant and equipment, respectively,
instead of investment property, in the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31 December 2023 and 2022
was HK$33,000,000. Further details are set out in note
17 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

31 December 2023

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(@) Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(vi)

Impairment assessment on interest in an associate

The Group assesses whether or not there are any
indicators of impairment for interest in an associate at
the end of each reporting period. Interest in an associate
is tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of interest
in an associate exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, the Group estimates the present values of
cash flows expected to arise from continuing to hold
the investment and choose suitable discount rates in
order to calculate the present values of those cash
flows. The most significant judgements shall refer to
the impairment assessment of the Group’s 30% equity
interest in Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Tianyu
Solid Waste Disposal Co., Ltd. (“NCIP”). As disclosed
in note 19(b), during the year ended 31 December
2023, NCIP experienced a year-on-year over 36%
(2022: 18%) decline in average unit prices per metric
tonnes on collection of industrial hazardous waste
for environmental incineration under the impact of
changing market demand of the upstream industrial
supply chains, and as a result, incurred a loss of
approximately HK$33,573,000 (2022: HK$31,528,000)
of which the Group shared its loss of approximately
HK$10,072,000 (2022: HK$9,459,000). As at 31
December 2023, the Group's interest in NCIP in the
carrying amount was approximately HK$112,259,000
(2022: HK$125,527,000). The value in use of the
Group's 30% equity interest in NCIP being determined
and based on the discounted cash flow projections
of NCIP has been prepared by the management of
the Group. The key assumptions used include the
discounted rate, growth rate, budget sales and
gross margin of NCIP. The discounted rate applied is
determined by using the Capital Assets Pricing Model
which reflects specific risk of the business of NCIP,
taking into account the applicable borrowing interest
rates immediately before the projection period and
the growth rate applied is determined based on the
expected long-term inflation in the PRC, while other
key assumptions relating to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows are determined by taking into account
the financial budgets approved by NCIP’s directors,
past performance of NCIP and expectations of NCIP’s
management on the market development.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(@) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(vi) Impairment assessment on interest in an associate
(continued)

Determining whether the interest in NCIP is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use on the basis of
data available to the Group.

Based on the impairment assessment, the value in use
of the Group's 30% equity interest in NCIP exceeds its
carrying amount at 31 December 2023 and accordingly,
the Directors of the Company considered that there was
no impairment on the Group’s 30% equity interest in
NCIP.

Should the parameters adopted in the calculations of
the value in use of the interest in NCIP differ materially,
impairment loss may be required to be recognised.

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(i) Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group’s major operating assets represent property,
plant and equipment. Management performs review
for impairment of the property, plant and equipment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts of these assets may not be
recoverable. Management considered there was no
impairment indicator of property, plant and equipment
for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

31 December 2023

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

Management determines the estimated useful lives of
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the actual
useful lives of assets of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of significant
technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to industry cycles. Management will increase
the depreciation charges where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of contract assets, trade and bills receivables
and other receivables

The Group determines the provision for impairment
of contract assets, trade and bills receivable and other
receivable on a forward looking basis. Lifetime ECL on
contract assets, and trade and bills receivables (including
lease receivables) are recognised from initial recognition
of the assets. The provision matrix is determined
based on the Group’s historical observed bad debt
loss rates of the contract assets, and trade and bills
receivables (including lease receivables), at the reporting
period end, with similar credit risk characteristics
and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. Other
receivables are considered for 12-month ECL unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instruments, in which case the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. In
making the judgement, management considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information,
at the reporting period, such as actual or expected
significant changes in operating results and financial
positions of the customers, past payment history of
the customers, and actual or expected adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change in the customers’
ability to settle their trade debts. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical observed bad debt loss
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
economic conditions and estimates are analysed by the
Group’s management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

[ @ils: 31 December 2023

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of contract assets, trade and bills receivables
and other receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
trade and bills receivables was HK$92,617,000 (2022:
HK$106,499,000) which approximated to the present
value of their respective estimated future cash flows.

The appraisals on allowance for expected credit loss
which resulted in a net reversal of impairment loss on
trade and bills receivables of HK$15,672,000 (2022: net
impairment loss of HK$2,185,000) was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential
tax exposures based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will affect the current and
deferred taxation provisions in the financial period in
which such determination is made. Deferred tax assets
relating to certain temporary differences and certain
tax losses are recognised as management considers it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences will affect the
recognition of deferred tax and tax in the periods in
which such estimate is changed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

Income taxes and deferred taxation (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the undistributed profits of
the profitable PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounted
to RMB115,445,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$126,989,000) (2022: RMB144,690,000 (and
equivalent to approximately HK$163,499,000)), which
the Group can control the dividend policies in respect
of the amount and timing of future distributions by
the PRC subsidiaries and accordingly, at 31 December
2023, the Group has made a provision of approximately
HK$8,028,000 (2022: HK$10,376,000) for deferred tax
liabilities in respect of the expected withholding tax on
distributions out of the distributable profits of the PRC
subsidiaries.

Going concern basis assessment

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was
continued drop in the Group's operating performance,
which was resulted from unfavourable fluctuation of
prices in the hazardous waste disposal service industry.

Upon the gradual recovery of economic situation in the
PRC, management has benchmarked to latest price level
in the industry, together with rigorous cost measures
over its operations, to formulate a forecast which will
generate enhanced positive operating cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. Wim K7 & #H &

(a) Revenue (a) Wz
Revenue represents the revenue from hazardous waste W s 48 2K B fa kg BE W 30 g N 3R 12 AR
incineration and landfill services, industrial sewage treatment % TESKEERE MIREHES
services and providing related utilities and management REREERS  ARKBRMEAT
services, and from providing factory facilities. iR 35 1t 2 W & o
An operating segment regarding the environmental RAXRBRERTERENLES
equipment construction and installation services was BE R AREE K I o MY 5E4(b)H PR
discontinued in the current year. The segment information REZHBEALTBIFEDR KL
reported in note 4(b) does not include any amounts for the EEKzEMNEE  HEEFFMLR
discontinued operation, which is described in more details in B 5ES o
note 5.
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue (i) Wz A5
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BEPAEAWEERSER 4
customers by service lines is as follows: W
2023 2022
—EZ=5F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Revenue from contracts with EFEAHANR
customers
Disaggregation by service lines R RIS BT 48 5
- Revenue from hazardous waste —REEREYRER
incineration and landfill services BB RS 2 W HE 272,671 373,494
- Revenue from industrial sewage  — KB T /5/KE&RE R
treatment services and providing RHEBBEEER
related utilities and management EIERRTE
services g 100,481 108,323
373,152 481,817
Revenue from other sources Hi Rz s
— Leasing income from providing —RERHEIREEZ
factory facilities HERA 32,460 34,324
Total revenue from continuing REBELEEE
operations Z B 405,612 516,141
Timing of revenue recognition REEZFEH
in respect of contracts Al
with customers 2 K
— At a point in time — A ZE B 5 B4 272,671 373,494
— Over time —R—EBEEA 100,481 108,323
373,152 481,817

186  New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

31 December 2023

B % ¥R ok M ORE

—F-=Ft-A=t-E

=

4. l‘lﬂz &ﬁ"l}#ﬁﬂ:(.nﬁ)

(continued)
(a) Revenue (continued) (@) Wz (&)
(i) Performance obligations (i) JERIEML
The amounts of transaction prices allocation to the HEz-ZTZ-=+=A
remaining performance obligations as at 31 December =+t—H FHBEHEBD
2023 are as follows: REGBERIMESBOT :
2023 2022
—EZ=4F —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHEIT
Amounts expected to be T8 HA % HE R
recognised as revenue: Wz m e EE
Within one year —F R = 54,802
The amounts of transactions prices allocated to the BN —FEBRABRAD
remaining performance obligations which are expected FIABOETFMOENRS
to be recognised as revenue after one year relate to BERHEHERERERTE
equipment construction and installation services, of R ER HEPRRBEHNEEER
which the performance obligations are to be satisfied R E A RETT
within 2 years.
(b) Segment reporting (b) D EBFRE
The Group manages its business by segments, which are REBEAIHBEREEL  MED
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with EANAEBEEE D - IRBAE A

the way in which information is reported internally to the
Company’s executive Directors, being the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following three reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments:

(i) provision of environmental treatment and disposal
services for industrial and medical wastes;

(i) provision of environmental plating sewage treatment,

management services and provision of related facilities
and utilities in an eco-plating specialised zone; and

(iii)  investments in plastic materials dyeing business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R R MR

@ils: 31 December 2023

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(0)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and

allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most

senior executive management monitors the results, assets

and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Segment assets include all tangible assets, goodwill,
interests in associates and a joint venture, and current
assets with the exception of intercompany receivables
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include current taxation, deferred tax
liabilities, trade payables, lease liabilities, other payables
and accrued expenses attributable to the activities of the
individual segments and borrowings managed directly
by the segments, with the exception of intercompany
payables and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“reportable segment results”. To arrive at “reportable
segment results”, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. Taxation charge is not allocated to
reportable segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
“reportable segment results”, management is provided
with segment information including revenue, interest
income and expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments in
their operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR KR

—EZ=F+=ZA=1+—H

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)
(c) Segment results, assets and liabilities (00 »HHEHE BE;ARE)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=+=ZHA=+-BHLt
FE
Continuing operations FEALE R
Operating segments
g5y
Environmental
sewage
treatment,
management
Environmental services, Unallocated
waste treatment utilities and Plastic dyeing Segment head office
and disposal facilities investments sub-total  and corporate Total
FAERRE
EERE.
ENEREE AREE *AREY
RRE e ZHLERE AR Rt% Eh
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TERL TERL TERL TEn TERL TERL
Revenue from extemal ustomers S HEF Y 22671 132941 = 405,612 - 405,612
Other revenue el - - 3,945 3,945 - 3,045
Reportable segment revenue ~ THESFNE 22,671 132,941 3,945 409,557 = 409,557
Reportable segment results ~ THEFPEE (20,324) 15,776 3,284 (1,264) - (1,264)
Other income AflA 5,138 1,643 - 6,781 - 6,781
Finance income BERA 5112 (219) (283) 4,655 814 5,469
Finance costs BARK (2329) (688) - (3,016) (764) (3.780)
Depreciation and amortisation TERESH (54,097) (21,258) - (75,355) (351) (75,706)
Reversal of impairment loss/ ERER 2 REEE
(impairment loss) on BE/ (AEEE) -
trade receivables, net F8 20,737 (5,065) - 15,672 - 15,672
Reportable segment assets TREFHEE 906,488 290,110 81,881 1,218,479 2,945 1,301,424
Additions to non-current segment  FE FFiEE 7
assets BE 14,152 5,974 - 20,126 b 20,132
Reportable segment liabilities ~ THEAHEE 228,076 51,037 6,321 285,434 2,631 288,065

31 December 2023

4. W R oaRER & (4)
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WH RO IPiRE (45

(continued)
(c) Segment results, assets and liabilities (00 PEFEE - EERBEE)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-_T-—_F+=ZA=+—H1
FE
Continuing operations FEAE AR RS
Operating segments
Environmental
sewage
treatment,
management
Environmental services, Unallocated
waste treatment utilities and Plastic dyeing Segment head office
and disposal facilties investments sub-total and corporate Total
BKEREE
ERRE
BUBRAE AREE Ea
kEE Rikie ZRAERA Air kit &5
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000
TER Thm Thm TEn TEn TER
Revenue from extemal customers — SMIEEN A 373,494 142,647 - 516,141 - 516,141
Other revenue Bl - - 4,249 4,249 - 4,249
Reportable segment revenue ~ THEA Bz 373,494 142,647 4,49 520,390 - 520,390
Reportable segment results ~ THEFPEE 20,629 30,762 3345 54,736 - 54736
Other income A 9,540 1,663 - 11,203 - 11,03
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ~ HER-FHEAT
bEiG 27303 - - 277303 - 27303
Finance income BEWA 3,485 2,269 (474) 5,280 140 5,420
Finance costs BARE (3.257) (931) - (4,188) (1,495) (5,683)
Depreciation and amortisation FERER (56,369) 22.31) - (78,600) (359) (78,955)
Impairment loss on trade EUEH
receivables, net BEEE 38 (2,064) (121) - (2,185) - (2,189)
Reportable segment assets EEESEE 1,019,802 315,499 70,797 1,406,098 29,067 1,435,365
Additions to non-current segment  FEFERES 5
asses BE 21,954 2,959 - 24913 7 24,920
Reportable segment liabilities ~ THEABEE 274,007 69,308 4151 347,466 27,609 375,075
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B % ¥R ok M ORE

—E-=Ft-A=t-H

—=

4. WERTEHHRE (B)

(continued)
(d) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (d) AImESsHYE  Bm &
profit or loss, assets and liabilities ENBEZHE
2023 2022
—B-=5F —F-_—
HK$000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Continuing operations HEKEER
Revenue =
Consolidated revenue AWk 405,612 516,141
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 4y 2B & Uk 25 ¥ £ -
Other revenue H o e 3,945 4,249
Reportable segment revenue Al 3R 4 o 2P R 409,557 520,390
(Loss)/profit from continuing REBELSEEL
operations (E51E) %7
Reportable segment (loss)/profit ARG H I (EE) w5 T (1,264) 54,736
Unallocated head office and Ao Be 48 56 & 1 %
corporate expenses 53 (16,914) (17,466)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before RKEFBBREEEKZ
taxation from continuing operations 4 &K AT (E518) & 7 (18,178) 37,270
Assets &E
Reportable segment assets AIREDIEE 1,278,479 1,406,098
Unallocated head office and corporate & %3 B 48 38 &
assets EEE 22,945 29,267
Assets for discontinued operation BRIEEEER 2 EE - 78,681
Consolidated total assets IREBERE 1,301,424 1,514,046
Liabilities a&
Reportable segment liabilities AmESHEE 285,434 347,466
Unallocated head office and corporate k% Bt 42 &F &%
liabilities EAE 2,631 27,609
Liabilities for discontinued operation B RIFEEEK AR - 63,464
Consolidated total liabilities mEBmaE 288,065 438,539
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4.

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(e) Geographic information
All revenue and non-current assets of the Group are generated
from and located in the PRC, respectively. Accordingly, no
analysis by geographical basis is presented.

(f)  Major customers

There was no customer accounted for 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 3 August 2023, the Group disposed of the entire interest in a
subsidiary, Jiangsu Yu Xin Environmental Engineering Management
Company Limited (“Jiangsu Yu Xin”) at a consideration of
RMB 12,000,000 (equivalent to HK$13,074,000), resulting in a gain
on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$4,945,000. Jiangsu Yu Xin was
principally engaged in the provision of environmental equipment
construction and installation services, accounted for as a separate
operating segment of the Group. Following the disposal of Jiangsu
Yu Xin, the Group ceased to operate its environmental equipment
construction and installation services business. Details of the assets
and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal, are disclosed in note 18(c).

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023

4.

W 5 R 47 AR R (48)

(e) Hblm &R
KEBEZHERGZERIERHEET)
DRIEEXE RMAFRE - Al - I
mEHIZMEE D 2D o

HE-_Z-_=ZFr-_FT-_—F+=
A=Z+—BLEFE TEZFEA
EBEBEWZE10%8 LA F o

BHRIEREER

RZZE-Z=FN\A=H AEBUAER
#£12,000,0007T (#8& 713,074,000 7T )
HEMBRARIG&FNERIEERES
RAasl (T&FM]) Me2aEs  EE
& B B A 7] 2 Uk 254,945,000 T < )T
HRFNIEZNERBRAIEREERS
KR (FARNEBEB LS 25D 7
ReHETIHRTFHE AEETHLE
REREBEEERTERB2ER L&
Fiakz2EERBEFBEREIEER
FFEERMIFE18(HEE -
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Bt %% %R ox M R

—E-=F+-A=+—8H

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 5. BRLERBREXH (&)
(continued)
2023 2022
—E-= S
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
[{hE=3 FTHET FHET
Revenue W 2% 1,803 72,810
Cost of sales $HE R A (5,104) (72,281)
Other income H Al A 61 213
Distribution costs o EH R AN (839) (2,637)
Administrative expenses THHAX (1,049) (453)
Impairment loss on trade receivables, FEUBE R 7 W EEE
net FEE - (1,203)
Other operating expenses Htge M (4,389) (9,838)
Finance income BE WA 42 232
Finance costs L=y 9N - (10)
Loss before tax HAEE (9.475) (13,167)
Income tax Fris i (6) 494
Loss after tax HEEE (9,481) (12,673)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KELQE 2 W 18(c) 4,945 -
Loss for the year from RECKRILEEEEKEN
discontinued operation FEEE (4,536) (12,673)
Loss per share: SREE:
Basic and diluted EAREE HK cents (0.15)7 1l HK cents (0.42)7 1l
2023 2022
—=E2=-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash flows used in operating KEEBEBMAZ
activities Behs (4,962) (2,946)
Cash flows used in investing KREREGEBMAZ
activities BEns (13) (61)
Cash flows used in financing REEFEFAZ
activities Behs (1,703) (334)
Net cash outflow BeREFER (6,678) (3,341)
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6. OTHER REVENUE

6. Hittl &=

Continuing operations REREER
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Dividend income from equity investments at 3 & & i@ H b & B W 1%

fair value through other comprehensive NEEARZBRAEE 2

income g B A 3,945 4,249

7. OTHER INCOME

Continuing operations

7. Hilt

+ 435

W RA A
BT

2023 2022
—E-=F —_ET_-

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 TF#&T FAT
Refund of value-added tax 18 (B TR R (a) 1,482 3,122
Government grants BT 5 B (b) 2,226 3,158

Release of deferred government iR JE BUAT 47 BA
grants B 2,017 2,026
Sundry income FIE T A 1,056 2,897
6,781 11,203

Notes: Hrat -

(a) Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations in the PRC, subsidiaries
of the Group that engage in the environmental operations, comply
with the requirements in the PRC and pay Value-added Tax
("VAT") at 6% (2022: 6%) on invoiced income are entitled to a
refund up to 70% of the net VAT paid. There were no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attached to such tax refunds.
There is no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such
tax refunds in the future.

(b)  There were no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies
attached to the receipt of these grants.
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B AR KR

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

8. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Continuing operations

8. MBWANRBAE

Mk Al 2,

+ /35 L
HERKEEK

2023 2022
—E-=F -
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET
Finance income from: KETHZ2BEBEWA :
Interest income on bank deposits RITFERZ2FBUA 4,993 3,086
Net foreign exchange gain AN U 25 R BB 476 2,334
Total finance income EE= PN -F- 5,469 5,420
Interest expenses on: EBETIZMEFAE
Bank borrowings wITEE (3.756) (5,641)
Lease liabilities HEBE (24) (42)
Total finance costs il g R A 4A KR (3,780) (5,683)
Net finance income/(costs) BMEUWA S (RA) FHE 1,689 (263)

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA
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9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. ¥l (BEHE) i F
(Loss)/profit before taxation from continuing operations was arrived RABECSLEB BB (FEB) %
at after charging: Py T 5 %18

2023 2022
—ZE_-= —E-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#&ET FET

Auditor’s remuneration: ZHERTEN & -
— audit services — EBIZRTE 1,350 1,350
— non-audit services —EEZRTE 210 210
1,560 1,560

Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ % - Bi/5 R & #

equipment e 15 72,428 75,593
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  {FREEERE 16 3,278 3,362

Operating lease charges: minimum &R ER T ¢

lease payments SEBEERNK
—land and buildings in Hong Kong ~ — &#& 2 T REF 1,080 1,080
— landfill in the PRC — B HIE S 112 118
1,192 1,198
Other operating expenses: Hih &
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BERREZ
plant and equipment EE R 1,301 308
Costs on cleanup of development THIEFEE T2
site BH 3,011 -
Costs on litigations and FAREBHRERZ
non-compliance incidents ZH 4,645 3,440
Legal and professional expenses FRREERY 4,523 7,422
Research and development expenses  #f 255 5% 6,055 7,351
Other expenses HEiHEE 1,971 2,388
21,506 20,909
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31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
(continued)

0. BFEE (BE) &R (&)

2023 2022
—EB-=F —_=E-
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mo aE FExT FET
Staff costs: BT :
— Directors’ emoluments —EEHe 10 4,107 4,043
- salaries, wages and other benefits —1BE (EEKRIN) 2
of employees other than He IER
directors H th 72 A 72,147 83,397
— contributions to retirement —RR@FETE
benefits schemes R 39(a) 12,529 13,414
- equity-settled share-based — R EIRRD
payment expenses EEMZ MRAX 40 489 475
Total staff costs 48 TR AR 89,272 101,329
Cost of sales (note) SHE KA (B 7) 340,195 397,313
Note: Wi -

Included in cost of sales were raw materials in the amount of
HK$46,825,000 (2022: HK$72,487,000), water and electricity in
the amount of HK$40,112,000 (2022: HK$41,661,000), staff costs
of HK$47,136,000 (2022: HK$53,291,000), and depreciation of
HK$70,107,000 (2022: HK$74,318,000), and of which staff costs
and depreciation have already been included in the respective total
amounts disclosed above.

£ & Bk AN B 4E R 1 £146,825,0008 7T (=&
— — 4 : 72,487,000 T) ~ 7K E40,112,000
BT (T - — % :41,661,0008 7T)
8 T Ak A47,136,000 T (Z & = =
53,291,000/ Jt) & #T #70,107,000% 7T (=
T —4F 174,318,000 ) + Hh o BT
ARPFEBFALXHEZ HELSEENR -

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA
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gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 10.EEM &
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIEEE R FEH E383(NE R A A (F
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BEEMEER) ROIE250 R E MK E
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation ZEZEMeWT :
are as follows:
Retirement
Director Salaries and Benefits scheme
fee allowance inkind  contributions Total
e T
E=He HERMM BNA & #R a8
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000
TR TER TER TEL TER
Year ended 31 December 2023  HZ-E-=%£+=f
ST-HLEFE
Executive Directors HiEZE
Mr. Xl Yu ZL%4 3 1,633 - - 1,666
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling FBLL 193 - - - 193
Ms. JIANG Qian BfExt 180 - - - 180
Ms. LIU Yu Jie AEARL 180 - - - 180
Mr. HON Wa Fai BEETE - 1,081 - 18 1,099
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica ZViat 180 - - - 180
Independent non-executive Directors BV #7172 %
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael sl % & 180 - - - 180
Mr. HO Yau Hong; Alfred R E 180 - - - 180
Mr. YANG Harry! BRERE 180 - - - 180
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong"” RAEELTO 69 - - - 69
1,375 2,714 - 18 4,107
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZF--f£+=A#
ST-ALEE
Executive Directors HIEZ
Mr. XI Yu ZE5E 35 1,635 - 11 1,681
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling FPRLL 194 - - - 194
Ms. JIANG Qian B AE 1 £l 91 - - - 91
Mr. ZHENG Zhen® BEf W 90 - - - 90
Ms. LIU Yu Jie AEARL 180 - - - 180
Mr. HON Wa Fai BEELL - 1,069 - 18 1,087
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Ms. X Man Shan Erica® B¢ el 180 - - - 180
Independent non-executive Directors BV #3178 %
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong BZE®T 180 - - - 180
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael Bula ot 4 180 - - - 180
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred hEEE 180 - - - 180
1,310 2,704 - 29 4,083
Notes: Bt -
() Mr. YANG Harry was appointed as an independent non-executive (i) BEREEENR_F_-—"F—H—HHE
Director with effect from 1 January 2023. ZERBIFHITES -
(i)~ Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong retired as an independent non-executive (iy BRRAEBLIR_ZT_=FRHt+/\H
Director at the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on BOZERRBEREHEREGREBL
18 May 2023. FHMITEE 2 -
(i) Ms. JIANG Qian was appointed as an executive Director with effect (i) BELZITR-_ZTE-_—_FA=1H%
from 30 June 2022. ZERNITES -
(iv)  Mr. ZHENG Zhen resigned as an executive Director with effect (v) BEEER-_ZBE-_—_FA=1+HE
from 30 June 2022. EHTES -
(v)  Ms. XI Man Shan Erica was re-designated from an executive v) EXWMLZtR-_ZTE-__—FA=1+H
Director to non-executive Director with effect from 30 June 2022. B ITESATEIENITESE -
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31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10.EEM <& ()
(continued)
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors as an AMEE AEETERAESIAHS
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation ERBEE NBAARSL BN B 2 2ZE) -
for loss of office for both years. None of the Directors has waived FERBBHEE BE_T_=FKk=
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. T F+ AT —HIEFE W&

ExRREaOME -

11.INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST M. EmEFHAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2022: hEmEEHFALTEF WME(ZE==
two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 10. The WE)BES HES B RHE10IHE -
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2022: H =2 (T - —F  =ZZ) ALFR
three) individuals during the year are as follows: ZBe@ENT
2023 2022
—EC-=F —EF-_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 1,851 1,786
Discretionary bonuses BIEIEAT 845 2,281
Contributions to retirement schemes RARAE R F & 340 321
Equity-settled share-based IR A #e s st B AR
payment expenses EEMT AL 368 287
3,404 4,675
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gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

—_— ==
11.INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST M. =5 AT ()
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
The emoluments of the three (2022: three) individuals with the =R (ZEZZE =) BRavx At
highest emoluments fell within the following bands: B & 8 T 5147 :
2023 2022
—Z=-= —F-Z
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) B <48 51 (&)
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z £ 21,000,000/8 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7t £1,500,0007% 7T = 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7t £2,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001%8 70 22,500,000/ 7T =
3 3
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the RAFERN  REBWER L =% (=
above three (2022: three) individuals as an inducement to join, or T _F =) ANTENEEEATEE
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. HMBAREENMNBR 2B ER
BERLAHIE -
12.INCOME TAX 12. i 15 #t
Continuing operations RELEER
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit () rEEmRKRANZHIETRE
or loss represents:
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Current tax B HA B 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax PRI ERMER 9,077 18,446
Under-provision in respect of W FEE R
prior years T 288 491 1,284
PRC Dividend Withholding Tax o B TR 0 2,059 3,455
11,627 23,185
Deferred tax B IE
PRC Dividend Withholding Tax o R B TR0 (2,059) (3,455)
Origination and reversal of TR R 15 8 A
other temporary differences = 3,485 303
13,053 20,033
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12.INCOME TAX (continued)

(a)

(b)

B % ¥R ok M ORE

31 December 2023 —ZE-=4¢+-fF=+—H

=

12.Eh 15 % (48)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) mEBRRNZIIAR -

or loss represents: (continued) (%)

Notes: Hat -

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands () BEFREHSKRIZBRELES
and the British Virgins Islands, the Group is not subject to ZRBI AR - ANEE AT
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgins FENS &EBE TSN
Islands. EIPTIEH -

(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2022: (i) BBEFE %RBZZKEVHJV%
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the years. FEA216.5% (ZE=Z=F :
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as 16.5% ) .ﬁ'ﬁ B A& E R
the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong HE—T—-= E&_T::
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. TZA=E+—RLEFELER

BEFEEREIB N Bt
B RBEBNETHAME -

(iiiy  The Company’s subsidiaries in PRC are subject to a statutory iy ARAZHBENEQREIR
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") at the rate of 25% (2022: 25% (ZT =% 25%) )
25%), except for the subsidiaries which are qualified as the —.—%ﬁ(@xifﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁ BTz
High and New Technology Enterprise in PRC that would BHLD - ERFERBE SR
be entitled to enjoy a preferential CIT at the rate of 15% @ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%ZW% al kR A -
(2022: 15%). Dividend distribution from subsidiaries in ZEMBRAREEZE15% (=
PRC to the holding companies in Hong Kong is subject to a ToTF 15%) ZEBEBERM
reduced withholding tax rate of 5% (2022: 5%), FRME -PEMNBATMSE

BER AR D IRZ KRB EZES%
—E--F :5%)ZBHARE
BB A -
Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) Tﬁ?iﬂ%ﬁ%é B2 B IE R
accounting profit at the applicable rates: X HE g EAME RO T
2023 2022
—E-= S —
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBLAT (B5E) E R (18,178) 37,270
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before BABHER AR ZEA
taxation, calculated at the rates MEFE 2B (BB,
applicable in the tax jurisdiction Az HEBIA
concerned (923) 12,443
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ ] ¥1%: B 3z 7 £ 76 52 2 10,079 3,865
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERBWAZ RIS E (6,657) (3,120)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7k 2% 18 B 18 ~ B 75 o & 8,323 11,632
Under-provision in respect BAFERE
of prior years TRE 491 1,284
Tax effect of temporary differences Eﬁﬁa?%ﬁﬂ—yﬁ%iz
recognised % 5 3,485 303
Effect of income tax preferential o B P 5 fﬂgiﬂlﬁ
policy in PRC B (1,745) (6,374)
Tax expense for the year AFEEREMX 13,053 20,033
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

) l December 2023 —ZE-_=#+—-A=+—H

13.DIVIDENDS
(a)

Dividends payable to owners of the Company
attributable to the year

(a)

13. 18 2

AEERNARAHEEB A

B

2023 2022
—EZ=5F —E-—

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET
Final dividend proposed after the R & BREER

end of the reporting ANERAR B

period of HK$0.0016 & /%0.001678 7T

(2022: HK$0.0038) per share (ZZF == :0.0038% L) 4,857 11,536

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period and is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

RBERREREBRNZFERE
TERNREMRERSAE AA
FARABRRERERRAFAE
EHUER - TRIEE -

F A E KR £ — B
FEERNARAEARRE
Z BB

2023 2022
—=E=-= -2
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Final dividend in respect of the BEBEEARNERENMN F—BK
previous financial year, approved R Y RS

and paid during the year of — - N = _;\_ _
HK$0.0038 (2022: HK$0.0039) G0.0038/87 (=T ==

per share 0.0039% 70) 11,536 11,839
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14.(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2023 —ZE=_=%+=A=+—H

14. 8/ (B1]) BT

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (a)
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on
the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company of
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the

B % ¥R ok M ORE

SREN(BR) B

SREX(BR) / BRHDERARF
A A (B18) H R AR RIE
RERTERBIMET 582 5t H M

Company in issue during the year as follows: N
2023 2022
—E-=HF —ET-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners KATEEE AFEN
of the Company, as used in the (BR),/wFARTE
calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/ G RRE A& & #5% (EE)
earnings per share: an
(Loss)/profit from continuing REFELEER 2
operations (B#8/) &= F (28,582) 19,946
Loss from discontinued operation KEDRIEEEER KR (4,536) (12,673)
(Loss)/profit from continuing REFELEEBR
operations and discontinued ERIEEEEG 2
operation (&8) .= F (33,118) 7,273
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZERMETHIE
2023 2022
—E=-= —ZE=-=

Ordinary shares in issue at R—A—BR+-—A=+—8H
1 January and 31 December ZEBITEER 3,035,697,018  3,035,697,018
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (b) =WKEE (EE) BT

No assumption was made for the exercise of share options
because the exercise price of share option exceeded the
average market price of the Company’s share. Accordingly,
diluted (loss)/earnings per share was the same as basic
(loss)/earnings per share for both years.

—_— —

HRBERENTEESRARF
Bedn #9F B - M B R R B
RETE - At AMFENEK
By (BER) /BNESRER (B
8) /BAER -
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15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% ~ BB RHRE

204

Computers
Construction Plant and and Furniture Motor
Buildings  inprogress  machinery  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total
g% EEIE HERRE EMREE BAR%E AE a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iR TR TiEn Thr iR TiEn ThR
Cost A
At 1 January 2022 R-2-_F-f-A 647,384 5,835 481,981 23973 6,806 15,288 1,181,267
Exchange adjustments EHRE (47,354) (518) (36,108) (1,806) (499) (869) (87,153)
Additions RE 977 14,395 5,981 2,493 315 759 24,920
Disposals e 35) - (2,197) (365) (163) (511) (3.271)
Transfer g 5,888 (12,083) 6,195 - - - -
Transfer to discontinued operation EABRIEEERK - - - 61 - - 61
At 31 December 2022 and R-E-—F+-A=+-HR
1 January 2023 “T--E-f-H 606,360 71,629 455,852 24,356 6,459 14,668 1,115,824
Exchange adjustments E}H% (15,857) (%) (12279) (620) (170) Q%) (9516)
Additions NE 241 10,953 7,198 713 64 93 20,132
Disposals e (2,719 - (1,299 (1,831) (142) (1,224) (7,215)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 18(c) ~ HE-RMERA(HF180) - - - (614) (180) (629) (1,423)
Transfer B 1419 (4,040) 2,621 - - - -
Transfer to discontinued operation ~ EAR & F ¥ - - - 2 - - i
At 31 December 2023 R-E-=F+ZF=1-H 589,944 14,246 452,094 22,025 6,031 13,483 1,097,823
Depreciation and impairment HERAE
At 1 January 2022 R-E--%-f-H 178,19 - 223,184 12,225 3,905 8,210 425,720
Exchange adjustments EXHBE (14,0d6) - (18,228) (958) (316) (495) (34,043)
Charge for the year Ehik 26,126 - 13,544 2,979 1,057 1,887 75,593
Eliminated on disposals REEREH (13) - (1,905) (345) (124) (345) (2,732)
Transfer to discontinued operation EABRREEK - - - 24 - 93 122
At 31 December 2022 and R-E--E+-A=1+-BEk
1 January 2023 “T--E-f-H 190,263 = 246,595 13,925 4522 9,355 464,660
Exchange adjustments B 5% (5,293) - (7,155) (390) (127) (189)  (13,154)
Charge for the year ERk 24,837 - 41,708 3385 759 1,739 72,428
Eliminated on disposals REERGH (114) - (1,100 (1,019 (136) (1.11) (3,480)
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary & —F B A TR 3
(note 18(c) (Hiti80) - - - (551) (180) (407) (1,138)
Transfer to discontinued operation ~ EAR A |F 8 &7 - - - 17 - 54 7
At 31 December 2023 RZ8Z=%#+ZR=t1-H 209,693 - 280,048 15,367 4838 9,441 519,387
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2023 RZB-=5+-R=1-H 380,251 14,246 172,046 6,658 1193 4,02 578,436
At 31 December 2022 RZE--%+-fA=1-H 416,597 7,629 209,257 10,431 1,937 5313 651,164
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The buildings are situated in the PRC with leases held within 50
years.

As at 31 December 2023, certain property, plant and
equipment with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$57,483,000 (2022: HK$89,129,000) had been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 28(c)).

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s property, plant
and equipment there were certain factory buildings ancillary to
industrial sewage treatment erected on the leasehold land in the
eco-plating specialised zone with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$101,667,000 (2022: HK$113,960,000) that
were leased to customers for use in accordance with the contractual
arrangement under the master agreements entered into between
the Group and the customers entering the eco-plating specialised
zone which is owned, operated and managed by the Group. As
the centralised industrial sewage treatment services provided by
the Group to the customers are significant to the arrangement
as a whole inside the eco-plating specialised zone, these relevant
buildings and equipment facilities being leased to the customers are
accounted for and classified under property, plant and equipment in
the consolidated financial statements. At the end of both reporting
periods, no impairment were recognised on the property, plant and
equipment at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Movements of carrying amount of the assets, primarily the buildings,

B % ¥R ok M ORE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

15. % ~ BE R ()
ERPHNFE - L R0E AR
Ao
W-E-=#+-F=+—0 EEE
AN

& £ #957,483,0008 T (T = =
89,129,000 7T) 2 & TH ¥ - WE K&
HETER EARNEBERERRITH
&7 ER(MFE28(0) °

RZZEZ=F+=-A=+—H8 it ARX
EEVE BMELIXEERNRREE
EXEHEE LM EFMEHIRNITES
KEENETIMERS HEREEAEAHS
4 7/4101,667,0008 T (Z & =~ —
113,960,0007& 7T) © B 1R & A~ & @ B2 #
ABRAEEMES Z2EREREZERR
BREXR 2B UZEHZEETS
MR EETZERFPER BRASE
EmEFRERHZERRAIT 5 KEEZR
BHERREFEZXERAZEELHEMmMS
BEX BUESEEBETFEFEZHEBESF
MESRZHEDREE T B REARER
WHERDE BERZBEET - RW
ERERR TEHER_ZT_=FR=
T+ _A=+—RBH2U¥E BE
R EERME -

RELEHEHETEPNEE(ZER

leased out to customers under operating leases are as follows: BF)ZEEAEZHHNT

2023 2022

—=E=-= —E--
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THETT
At 1 January Wn—A—H 113,960 133,280
Depreciation e (9,425) (9,991)
Exchange adjustments [ 5, 38 =& (2,868) (9,329)
At 31 December R+=B=+-—H 101,667 113,960

Leasing income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$32,460,000 (2022: HK$34,324,000).

AEEFANERZEEWA A32,460,000
BT (ZZE =4 : 34,324,000/ 7C) °
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. [ EFHEEE

206

HK$'000
TR
Cost R
At 1 January 2022 R-ZZE-_—_F—A—H 142,393
Exchange adjustments PE N & (5,145)
Release on lease termination 1% F T E AR R (781)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZEBE-_—F#+-_A=+—HRK
“E-=%—A—H 136,467
Exchange adjustments PE N & (1,705)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZBZ=+=ZA=+—H 134,762
Depreciation wE
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—_F—HF—H 31,340
Exchange adjustments ME o % (1,004)
Charge for the year F N
— land use rights — T AR 3,027
- office premises o VNS 726
Release on lease termination KIETRERARRR (781)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZE-_—F+-_A=+—HK
—E-=%—A—H 33,308
Exchange adjustments P& i, 3 & (371)
Charge for the year FAME
— land use rights — T AR 2,960
— office premises g VNS 318
At 31 December 2023 R-ZBZ=ZF+=ZA=+—H 36,215
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2023 R-ZBZ=+=A=+—H 98,547
At 31 December 2022 RZZB__#+-_H=+—H 103,159

As at 31 December 2023, certain land use rights with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$7,692,000 (2022:
HK$26,091,000) had been pledged to secure banking facilities

granted to the Group (note 28(c)).
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16.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

NOTES TO THE

31 December 2023

16.

The analysis of the carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % ¥R ok M ORE

—EZ=F+=ZA=1+—H

FERHESE (8
REBEEBEN P ENGERAEESERE
ERPTMT

2023 2022
—E-=fF —_E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Ownership interests in land use rights held 3F{E@ B & L BENFE
for own use, carried at depreciated cost in  FEREZE - P BRI E KA
PRC with remaining lease terms between  ABE » 82 TN F
30 and 50 years 302504 32,644 34,215
Ownership interests in land use rights HAEHRDETEPO I
held for leasing to customers, carried at  {F B HEAIFT B HERE 25 -
depreciated cost in PRC with remaining ERRBRTERAAR
lease terms between 30 and 50 years #RTI BN F30E50F 57,760 60,064
Ownership interests in land use rights held ¥ B8 A &Y L 30 B H
for own use, carried at depreciated cost P Mz - £ EI%
in PRC with terms to be renewed by WEMRAARR - HHIFRZA
government (note) BRI &R (F52) 7,829 8,235
Office premises leased for own use, carried B AT EH NG AT - £ HIZ
at depreciated cost in PRC, with remaining #T&KAALR - &2 NHE
lease terms of more than 1 year and less  #B3i814F 2 D ASE
than 5 years 314 645
98,547 103,159

Note:

As at 31 December 2023, certain land use rights with carrying amount
of approximately HK$7,829,000 (2022: HK$8,235,000) together
with property, plant and equipment with total carrying amount of
approximately HK$95,540,000 (2022: HK$97,168,000) located at
Xiangshui, Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province, PRC is subject to the
requirement of new incineration facility to be further constructed
thereon in order to comply with the stipulated minimum floor-area
ratio by 23 November 2020. The Group has submitted a development
plan for constructing new incineration facility on the land, which is still
pending governmental approval up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of the Directors of the
Company, once the government approval for the construction of new
additional incineration facility is obtained, the construction work will be
commenced accordingly and there would be no material impact to the
Group's operation and financial position.

At the end of both reporting periods, there were no impairment
recognised on the Group’s land use rights.

=@

—_—=

MRZZE-—=F+_-_A=+—8 URPH
T ERE B 2KEIREE 4 A7,829,000
BT (T = 4 :8,2350008 L) 2&ET
4 Hb {55 A 4 8 (B BR 1 4R (B 49 &95,540,000/%8
TT(=ZF = —4% :97,168,00087T) 2 % -
BMERSE BETEELE-—SPERH
RIBBREZER  WER T _TF+—
AZ+ =AM EMAEZRNAEER-
AEBERSRZ L HERTITIEREDN
BRITE EERELRAMBEHmEAMER
BNBFRITHE - ARREERAE — 82
ESBMHERETNOEINERE &
ZTREESHERF BT2HEAEEN
EERUBERRNEKRERTE -

=

RmERESHR TERAEEZ L E
FAETERIRE °

“EEFER HFERFREEERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

17. GOODWILL 17. &
2023 2022
—E-=F S
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January and R—BA—HBE+ZA=1+—H
31 December ZBREE 33,000 33,000

Goodwill is attributable to the business segment of environmental
integrated waste treatment services that arose from the acquisition
of 82% equity interest of NUET(JS) in 2007. NUET(JS), through its
subsidiaries, is engaged in the provision of environmental waste
integrated treatment and disposal services in the Jiangsu Province,
PRC.

Impairment test assessment

The goodwill, together with related property, plant and equipment
with carrying amount of HK$56,270,000 (2022: HK$63,459,000),
and land use rights with carrying amount of HK$7,841,000 (2022:
HK$8,123,000), are allocated to NUET(JS) Group as an identified
CGU under the operating segment of environmental waste
treatment services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

17.GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 17. 88 (&)
Impairment test assessment (continued) BB S AT (&)
As at 31 December 2023, the assessment on the recoverable R_TE_=ZF+_A=+—8" HK%H
amount of this CGU was determined by Colliers International SELABEMZAINESREET ZAHEH
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Colliers International”) (2022: Colliers BYBEGHEMITS HEERYERER(F
International), an independent firm of professional valuers, on the B)ERAB ([ENBEED(ZE=F
basis of value-in-use calculations which use cash flow projections SOBE) ERNEREARFESE - FH
based on financial budgets approved by management covering BEFEDNTRABRBEEEEHERER
a five-year period, that are discounted to their present values at FHBRZMREEGE 2 RER=TEA
a pre-tax discount rate of 16.12% (2022: 16.61%). Cash flows WA AT IR E16.12% (ZF ==
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an annual growth 16.61%) IREHREBE - AFHRKR 2B
rate of approximately 2.1% (2022: 2.2%) which does not exceed CHREMBHL21% (- "F:22%)
the long-term growth rate for the waste treatment industries. Other CERREEE EUVERBBEVERE
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation relates to the TEZERBBRXR -BHFBESHEAS
estimated cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and MEBEBEzERABEAEZEMEER
gross margin. Such estimation is based the CGU's past performance, BEEMEEZ2HERENE - et
future business plan and management’s expectations for the future DIRBEReEABMBATRE  REE
market development. BEtEI R EBEYARKTISERE 2B
i VE i o
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as CREBENEMEKAZEERRNOT
follows:
2023 2022
—E-=5F —F-—
Gross profit margin FEH = 53.34% 56.96%
Compound annual growth rate in BEREHRAZEAFIERK
the initial five-year period 4.2% 4.5%
Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows FAHETEEHER SRS
beyond the budget period 2R R 2.1% 2.2%
Pre-tax discount rate applied to the ERARESREENZ
cash flow projections AT IR =X 16.12% 16.61%
Since the recoverable amount of the NUET(JS) Group as an identified HREESEEEREBEDE BE R
CGU, to which goodwill and related property, plant and equipment REZNUETUS)EE (BAl A — RS E
are allocated, exceeded the aggregate carrying amount of these AR 2 AT IE € B8 B BNUET(S) 5 &
assets of the NUET(JS) Group as an identified CGU, no impairment (B E—EREEALASBMN) NZSEE
loss on goodwill and the relevant assets were considered necessary ZHEERE Mt R-FT-_=FK—
at 31 December 2023 and 2022. E__F+-_A=1T—HB ®HENIEH

BEWNGSERFELRERBR -

TECCFER HFEFRAESEAR2AF 209
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18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18.

(@) The following list contains the particulars of the principal
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of

the Group as at 31 December 2023:

RHMBRBRZKRE

() EEPEAEER-T-o=F+-
A=+—R%4 EERAEIE
EHELTZHENT :

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERELA
Group's
Place of incorporation Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  a subsidiary Principal activity
BRR A5EL H-%
WEATAR AMRIREELE  EEEEIKX  AREREE ERER mA0ABE WEAEEE TEEH
Ever Champ (China) Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
company
B (E)BRAA (0 ERAE 10,000 % A2k
Fair International Investment Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Enterprise Limited company
ERABRECEERAT B BERAF 10,0008 £ &% RELRK
Fair Industry Waste Recyclables Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited company
ERIZENBENRERAR 0 ERAA 10,000 % REZK
Fair Time International Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 99,327,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
company
EEERERAA B ERAA 99,327,000} &85 RAZK
Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 100% - 100%  Environmental technical
Technologies Limited* owned enterprise  HK$80,000,000 consultancy
THEFFRRIRERAT il NEBELX R4 280,000,000% 7 RREMHH
New Sinotech Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 5,000,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
("NSIL") Hong Kong company of USD1 each
HERREBRRA (INSIL)) iBRAEE/EE  ARLA 5,000,000R BREEIET RELRK
LEER
New Universe (China) Investment British Virgin Islands/  Limited liability 1,800,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company of USD1 each
HF(PE) REARAR ABRAER/EE  BRLA 1,800,000 8 HEEIET REBR
LEBR
New Universe (China) Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
company
HF(PE)BRAT Bk BRAA 1,000,000 & &% RELR
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18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMIB AR ZIE (&)

(continued)

(@) The following list contains the particulars of the principal (a) HEEPEARAERANR_Z_=F+—
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of A=1+—B%4%E BEl8E&2F
the Group as at 31 December 2023: (continued) EWBARIZFHBAOT - (8B)

Proportion of ownership interest
ERERENA
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  a subsidiary Principal activity
BER AEEY B-%

WEAAAR AMRIREELE  RRERIKX  AREAEE EREE mALARE WELAKE IEXR

New Universe Environmental British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 4,000,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Protection Investment Limited Hong Kong company of USD1 each

HFRRREBRAT ABRLES/AE  EROW 4,000000R EREEIZT RELRK

LEER

New Universe Environmental Hong Kong Limited liability 21,640,000 ordinary shares 82% - 82%  Investment holding
Technologies (Jiang Su) Limited company
("NUET(S)")
FERRME (1§ ERART 0 ERAA 21,640,000/ % Bk A2
(TNUET(S))

New Universe International Ecology British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company USD1 each

HFEAREEERAT LBRLEE/AE  BROW 10,000 8 REEIZTL RELR

New Universe International Group Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited company

HFEREZ (28)ERAT B3 ERAF 10,000 5B & RERR

New Universe International Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company USD1 each

FFERARERAT LBRLBEE/EE  BROW 10000R BREAIZ T2 REBR

New Universe Recyclable Investments  British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company USD1 each

NFERBERERRAA ABRAEE/BE  BROW 10,000 5 REEIZTL RELR

New Universe Recyclables Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding

company
FTARBENABRAT (0 ERAA 10,0000 % Bl RAZK
TECEZEFR HFRREEFERA2T 211
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18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

18.

(@) The following list contains the particulars of the principal
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2023: (continued)

R B AR 2R E ()

(a) BEFEAEBR-_ZT_=F+=
A=+—B%#E BEEXBEZE
ZHBERRZFFBOT - (8)

Proportion of ownership interest

RRERGLA
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  a subsidiary Principal activity
BEAR AEEY m-%
WEAAAR AMRIREELE  ERERoKX  AREAEE EREE mALARE WELAKE IEXR
Smartech International Group Limited ~ British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% - Investment holding
Hong Kong company of USD1 each
EREREEERAT ABRLES/AE  EROW 1,000000R BREEIXT RELRK
LEER
Smartech Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 70,380,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Asset holding
company
EMZRERAA B BRAA 70,380,000 &% HERE
Smartech Plastic Moulding Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 100 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Dormant
company
ENEBHRERAT Bk BRAA 1005 B fEex
Smartech Services Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 2 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Provision of
company management services
ERERBRAT Bk BRRA WEER REERRE
Sugian New Universe Environmental ~ PRC Wholly foreign Registered HK$97,010,000 100% - 100%  Environmental
Solid Waste Disposal Limited* owned enterprise ~ and paid-up hazardous waste
HK$97,000,000 treatment and
disposal services
BEFHEEENREARAT h NEBELR 7,010,008 TR RRERENRERR
97,000,000% 70 ERH%
Xiangshui New Universe PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered and paid-up 65% - 65%  Environmental
Environmental Technology Limited equity enterprise ~ HK$50,750,000 hazardous waste
("Xiangshui NU") treatment and
disposal services
SKFFRRHEERRA ilei LRI ¥ R 250,750,000% 7 RRERENRERE
(12x3%) ERH%
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1. RMB AR ZIRE (8)

(continued)

(@) The following list contains the particulars of the principal (a) BEFEAFERZ-_T-_=F+=
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of A=+—B%XE EEXABEZE
the Group as at 31 December 2023: (continued) EWBARIZFHBAOT - (8B)

Proportion of ownership interest
FRERGLA
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  a subsidiary Principal activity
BER AEEY B-%

WEAAAR AMRIREELE  RRERoKX  AREREE EREE mALARE WELAKE IEXR

Yancheng New Universe Solid PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 82% - 100%  Business operation
Waste Disposal Company Limited owned enterprise  USD700,000 ceased
("Yancheng New Universe")

B THEREIREARLT hE NEBELX R R700,000% T BRILEEEH
([E55%])

Yancheng NUHF Environmental PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered and paid-up 65% - 65%  Environmental
Technology Limited* equity enterprise ~ HK$83,000,000 hazardous waste
("Yancheng NUHF") treatment and

disposal services

ERTRLRRIRARD il TRERE a1 R0 7283,000,000% T BRERENRERR
(IEsmTEL)) ERE

Zhenjiang New Universe Solid PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 82% - 100%  Environmental
Waste Disposal Company Limited owned enterprise  USD10,850,000 hazardous waste
("Zhenjiang New Universe") treatment and

disposal services

BINTERENRERRAA hE IEERLE R R i8210,850,0005 ¢ RRERENRERE
(T#IH%)) ERH

Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco- Electroplating ~ PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 100% - 100%  Environmental
Development Limited (“Zhenjiang owned enterprise  USD25,000,000 industrial sewage
Sinotech”) and sludge treatment

and facility provision
Services in an
eco-plating zone

BIERERSEHAERARLA  #H NERELE R 225,000,005 70 BRIZAKRAER
([arzn)) ERRERESRRE

L

* For identification purpose only

EHADZ
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: =1 i (4
18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 1. MM B LR ZHE (&)

(continued)

(b) The following tables summarised the financial information (b) TERHFIAFEBRELEREFEAR
relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material SETYHEREEAREERER ([3E
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) at the end of the reporting TRER]) ZHBARSAZHH
period. The summarised financial information presented below ERBME - THHBERBRED R
represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination. MEEMEERNARMYEERI 2 ®

B o
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_Z-=f+=ZHA=+—-HLt
FE
NUET(JS) Xiangshui Yancheng
Group NU NUHF
NUET(JS)KE fKkFF HEFFEZ
(note)
(Hia)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET THET
NCI percentage FFERESZBA DL 18% 35% 35%
Non-current assets EMEBEE 90,756 106,583 215,898
Current assets WA E 156,952 10,071 29,569
Current liabilities mEAaE (104,642) (75,282) (57,257)
Non-current liabilities ErRBEaE (3,406) - (1,100)
Net assets BEFE 139,660 41,372 187,110
Carrying amount of NCI R R 2 REE 25,139 14,480 65,489
Revenue W= 87,379 22,368 88,179
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEHF, (EE) 13,182 (19,371) 5,024
Total comprehensive cmElE (E1E) 85
income/(loss) 9,412 (20,760) (86)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DEEERER 2
wmA (&) 2,373 (6,780) 1,758
Dividend paid to NC| S F IR RS
BB 1,169 - 1,951

Cash flows (used in)/generated #& & &) (FrA) /E4E

from operating activities ZHReERE (1,930) 2,909 27,773
Cash flows used in investing KREESFIAZ

activities BEamE (2,868) (4,035) (4,688)
Cash flows used in financing MEEHFRZ

activities ReRE (9.320) (1,666) (29,878)
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31 December 2023

—EZ=F+=ZA=1+—H

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(b)

The following tables summarised the financial information
relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material
NCI at the end of the reporting period. The summarised
financial information presented below represents the amounts

before any inter-company elimination. (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

1. MMB AR ZHE (&)

(b) THRFIINBEFREREFEAN
SETIERERIZERER I
BAREBZUBENME - T7
BBERMBMED RNBREMEERRX
REIRMY R 228 - (8)

HE-_Z-_—F+=-_A=+—H1

FE
NUET(JS) Xiangshui Yancheng
Group NU NUHF
NUET(JS)& & BKFTF HEBIFFEE
(note)
(H&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET
NCI percentage FEEREEE DL 18% 35% 35%
Non-current assets ERBEE 99,505 120,942 237,271
Current assets mEEE 149,766 17,128 54,630
Current liabilities RBAE (108,702) (75,938) (97,547)
Non-current liabilities FErnEaE (3,827) - (1,582)
Net assets BEFE 136,742 62,132 192,772
Carrying amount of NC| R ER REE 24,614 21,746 67,470
Revenue W= 114,530 34,658 143,668
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHA, (BE) 30,575 (42,315) 18,850
Total comprehensive 2mEE(E18) BE
income/(loss) 18,482 (48,884) 4,218
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DREEERER 2
wmA, (EE) 5,503 (14,810) 6,598
Dividend paid to NCI ST IR
[#s 3,505 - -
Cash flows generated ST EES (PTA)
from/(used in) operating ZHRERE
activities 39,588 (2,189) 13,115
Cash flows used in investing KEEESFIAZ
activities BEamnE (3,536) (568) (3,884)
Cash flows used in financing MEEHFTAZ
activities RERE (30,963) (1,470) (3,032)
Note: Wi -

NUET(JS) Group comprises NUET(JS) as the holding company and
its subsidiaries, Zhenjiang New Universe, Yancheng New Universe,
and the associate, Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited.

NUET(JS)5 & EENUET(S) (R HERR 2
A REMBARELNT HEHTF

T e B

BRARAK

BB #7 = [E] BE B B AR 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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| l 31 December 2023 —E-=#+—-A=+—H

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
(c) Disposal of interest in a subsidiary () HE—XMEBARI#ER

1. MMB AR ZHE (&)

BE-_ZT_=+=-B=+—-HL
FE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

As referred to in note 5, on 3 August 2023, the Group
completed the disposal of its entire interest in a subsidiary,
Jiangsu Yu Xin. The net assets of Jiangsu Yu Xin at the date of
disposal were as follows:

WS R=F=_=F\A
SR AKEEROEERMER
BUTEFH A 284S T8 TH
REERRFEENT

216

Note HK$'000
B 5 FET

Net assets disposed of FTHEZEETHE

Property, plant and equipment WME - BEKKE 285

Trade and bills receivables FEUER 3R K B IR 29,652

Prepayments, deposits and other TERFRIE - RE R H A

receivables IR 14,582

Contract assets EHEE 16,921

Restricted bank deposits SRR B A RITE R 1,836

Cash and cash equivalents RekEFRRELIER 4,011

Trade and bills payables FEBR R R R IR (5.742)

Accrued liabilities and other payables fEEtEE R H b EAFIE (51,464)

Contract liabilities BEHBE (2,575)

Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE (100)

7,406

Consideration was satisfied EAaEBEZNRE

Cash consideration received BEUEeRE 2,404

Cash consideration receivable FEWGR SR E 24 10,670
Net assets disposed of ez EE SR (7,406)
Costs directly attributable to the disposal EEFBERNHENKAE (371)
Release of translation reserve % PR FE (352)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XWEQ Rz iE 4,945
Net cash flow arising on the disposal HEEEZREREFE

Cash consideration received B2 RS E 2,404

Costs paid directly attributable to EERBERNEEZENEA

the disposal (371)

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FrtErvRe RERRESIESE (4,011)

Net cash outflow ReRHFE (1,978)
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(continued)

(0)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % ¥R ok M ORE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary (continued) (0)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

On 14 April 2022, the Group completed the disposal of its
entire interest in a subsidiary, Taixing Xin Xin Resources
Recycling Company Limited (“Taixing Xin Xin") whose
assets and liabilities were classified as a disposal group held
for sale as at 31 December 2021 for a consideration of
RMB42,100,000 (equivalent to HK$51,760,000).

1. MMB AR ZHE (&)

HE—RKHMB AR (8)

HE-_Z-_—_F+=-_A=+—H1
FE

RZE-_—_FWUA+IAE  AEH
TREEER—RME QA REH
MERBAEMBBERAA ([FHE
M mEERE REAEARK
42,100,0007t (48 & 751,760,000
Br)  EBEHMEERBESRC
E-—F+-_A=+—AHEAEMR
BEEsLEHE -

Note HK$'000
B 5 T

Net assets disposed of:

FEzEERE:

Assets of the disposal group held for sale s rHEdmerE8E 27 23,830

Other receivables H th JE SR IR 348

Cash and cash equivalents Be kZERIEBELER 1,229

Other payables H fth & 1+ 5108 (3)

Deferred tax liabilities EERIEE & (711)

24,693

Fair value of consideration REZAFE 51,760
Net assets disposed of FrHEzEEFH (24,693)
Costs directly attributable to the disposal AEESBEREE ZHNK (2,355)
Release of translation reserve BRI IE B (1S 2,591
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBR A Z WS 27,303
Net cash flow arising on the disposal HEEEZRERERH

Cash consideration received WEz ReRE 51,760

Costs paid directly attributable to the disposal EBEEGBERNHEZENER (2,355)

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FrtE 2B e kER

HEIEE (1,229)

Net cash inflow Ba&mAFE 48,176

CECCEER HFRAREBEBRAT
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19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. 7 B

ERFAZER

VS
zZ

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Share of net assets PEEERE
At 1 January w—A—H 153,450 175,835
Share of results GREES (9.416) (7,250)
Share of other comprehensive income DG E 2w S (3,931) (12,597)
Dividends received B2 U A% 8 (1,204) (2,538)
At 31 December R+=HA=+—H 138,899 153,450
Particulars of the associates are as follows: BEERBIZFHBWT
Proportion of ownership interest
BERERLA
Place of Particulars of Group's Held Held
incorporation  Form of business issued and paid-up  effective by the bya Principal
Name of associate and business  structure capital interest Company  subsidiary  activity
H-X%
EME LR EBER BRIR FEE2 HARR WEAR
BeNRER EENE ZFR HEEARFE BERER BE BE TEZEE
Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste PRC Joint equity Registered 24.60% - 30%  Environmental
Disposal Limited* enterprise and paid-up hazardous
("Zhenjiang Xin Qu") RMB36,000,000 waste landfill
disposal
services
BINREERERND HE RERE HMRERARE RREREYN
ERAA(EIHE]) 36,000,0007T BRRE R
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park PRC Sino foreign joint  Registered and 30% - 30%  Environmental
Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal Co., equity enterprise  paid-up hazardous
Ltd. ("NCIP") HK$93,600,000 waste
treatment
and disposal
services
ARLEI£AXRT e PAEERE AN § BRREREYN
BEENEEBRAA 93,600,000/ 7T RER
(MARXT]) RERH

218
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2023 —ZE=_=%+=A=+—H

19.REERR ZEE ()

19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

The above associates are accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.

(@) Summarised the financial information of the Group’s
associates, adjusted for the differences in accounting policies
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B % ¥R ok M ORE

bt B = R RN AR A M R AR A
AN -

(a)

ARBEEWEATZHGENBE
(EEMGHREBR) REGAS
45 .25 70 85 L 4B -

BE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HL

FE
Zhenjiang
Xin Qu _Nap
EIIHE BERXF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
Gross amounts of the associate’'s B& N E 2@ &8
Non-current assets JEMENEE 129,520 494,217
Current assets TENE E 38,810 50,647
Current liabilities mEa s (30,190) (87,769)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (49,339) (82,900)
Net assets BEFE 88,801 374,195
Revenue g %5 30,257 44,290
Profit/(loss) for the year FREHRA () 2,186 (33,573)
Other comprehensive income H 2 e
— Exchange difference on — BB mE
translation of financial FE%
statements MEHZE (2,446) (10,657)
Total comprehensive loss T HEEIBREE (260) (44,230)
Dividend received from EWHEATZRE
the associate 1,204 -
Reconciliation to the Group's HEASERBEEATZ
interest in the associate EHHE
Gross amount of net assets of BENTBEEFEZ
the associate B EE 88,801 374,195
Group's share of net assets of the ~ ZAREBEDEHL AT 2
associate BEESE 26,640 112,259
Carrying amount in the consolidated R 4R & Bk 2
financial statements BRmEE 26,640 112,259
Aggregate amounts of the rEEShHENRZESHE
Group’s share of the associate’s
Profit/(loss) for the year FEwAM/(EE) 656 (10,072)
Other comprehensive income H b 2 e
— Exchange difference on —ME WS RE
translation of financial FrESE
statements MENZH (734) (3,197)
Total comprehensive loss T HEBEE (78) (13,269)
CECCEER FFRAREEBRAF
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Bt 15 xR M E

—F-=F+-A=1—F

=

Y Al_
19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19.RBE AR 2R (8)
(continued)
(@)  (continued) (@) (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZT-_—F+-A=+—HI
FE
Zhenjiang
Xin Qu NCIP
ST M RATF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Gross amounts of the associate’'s BtZ AT 2B &5
Non-current assets JEMEEE 67,639 525,276
Current assets TRENEE 70,063 52,965
Current liabilities mEBAE (19,816) (74,781)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (24,811) (85,035)
Net assets EEFE 93,075 418,425
Revenue U 31,885 57,078
Profit/(loss) for the year FE®MN,(FEE) 7,362 (31,528)
Other comprehensive income Efh 2 E W
- Exchange difference on —BEMERE
translation of financial FTESE
statements I 5 =5 (7,455) (34,533)
Total comprehensive loss >HEBAE (93) (66,061)
Dividend received from BRBEATZRE
the associate 2,538 -
Reconciliation to the Group's HEAEERBE QT2
interest in the associate EEZHER
Gross amount of net assets of Hy BRREEFEZ
the associate ek 93,075 418,425
Group's share of net assets of the  ANEESHEE QT2
associate BESFE 27,923 125,527
Carrying amount in the consolidated R 4R & BT iR & 2
financial statements BREE 27,923 125,527
Aggregate amounts of the AEESHHENRAZHESHE
Group’s share of the associate’s
Profit/(loss) for the year Egﬁiﬂ/ (&18) 2,209 (9,459)
Other comprehensive income ﬁt%ﬁﬂﬁ(x
— Exchange difference on — MBI HBmE
translation of financial FTESE
statements PEH=E58 (2,237) (10,360)
Total comprehensive loss THEEBLEE (28) (19,819)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

(b)

Impairment testing of the Group’s interest in NCIP

At 31 December 2023, the recoverable amount of the
Group's interests in NCIP as a cash-generating-unit has
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
Group has appointed Colliers International (2022: Colliers
International), an independent firm of professional qualified
valuers, to perform such valuation. The calculations use cash
flow projections of NCIP covering a five-year period according
to the forecast of its management. The pre-tax discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 15.57% (2022:
15.74%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
of this cash-generating unit is 2.1% (2022: 2.2%) per annum.
Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations relate
to estimation of the performance which is based on the
incineration facilities with a licensed capacity of 38,000 (2022:
38,000) metric tonnes for the hazardous waste treatment of
NCIP, and management’s expectation for market demand in
Nanjing, the capital city of Jiangsu Province, PRC.

The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based their cash flow projections to
undertake an impairment test of the recoverable amount of
the Group’s interest in NCIP:

Projected cash flow — The projected cash flow from NCIP is
based on the performance of the incineration facilities with
capacity of 38,000 (2022: 38,000) metric tonnes for the
hazardous waste treatment of NCIP, and the management’s
expectation of the market demand in Nanjing.

31 December 2023

B % ¥R ok M ORE

—E-=Ft-A=t-H

=

19.REERR ZEE ()

(b)

REBRERKFREZBE R
RZFEZ_=F+=ZA=+—H &
SERERAF(EA—EBRSE
EBEA) EmA T E SR IR
FTHEBFEET AEEBEBEEMT
é%iE¥A>§¢%1E1ﬁﬁmf?%‘j]l

R ZF  m HER)ETT
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ ZEFEFERERRTF
RIBHEEE 278 RME 7 F EH
ZHEeEREEN - FEARBASRE
TER 2 BRI T IR K B15.57% (=&
115.74% ) - B HEE L
CELEMNESRECEREAE
F21% (ZE=-—®F :22%) o &
BEAEAEZEMEERI S LM
ARE EERERRFEREYD
BEE R IR BE ) AB38,0008 M (==
~ T4 : 38,000AWH) 2 KEIERR I
UREEEHE R (PRIHESE
g MEHR B -

EREREARL REENY AL
BB R R T A S
ARERARNE T ERRWT -

BARERE-KEERAFZRE
ARERENERERAXFHEAR
BRIEERENEE CRIBENR
38,000~ M (== = — 4 : 38,000
AW Z2RBE - UREBEHER
MiGHm K2 TAH -

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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@ils: 31 December 2023

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

(b)

Impairment testing of the Group’s interest in NCIP (continued)

Discount rate — The pre-tax discount rate 15.57% (2022:
15.74%) was determined using the Capital Assets Pricing
Model on the cash flows projection before tax and under
specific risks relating to the business of NCIP. In determining
an appropriate discount rate, consideration has been given to
the applicable borrowing interest rates in the year immediately
before the projection period. The decrease in the discount rate
for this year’s assessment is mainly attributable to the fact that
NCIP has obtained the necessary operating permission licence
for its processing facilities for hazardous waste treatment and
there is less company specific risk for the assessment in the
current year.

Growth rate — the growth rate used beyond the five-year
period is determined based on the expected long-term
inflation in the PRC and does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate of the hazardous waste treatment
business in which NCIP operates in Nanjing, the capital city of
Jiangsu Province, PRC.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on the discount
rate and growth rate are consistent with information from
external sources.

Management determined that the recoverable amount of the
Group's interest in NCIP exceed the carrying amount of the
interests in NCIP. Accordingly, no impairment is considered
necessary at the end of the reporting period.
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19.REERR ZEE ()

(b)

A% BRERK T % 2R E R
()

MIRE-BRIMTIREI557% (= F
T ZF :1574%) ERAEAREE
TEENERARBEMNESREEA
LEHERRXFEBFEB2HFER
BB TEE EETHEEMTER
B EEEZEENSN —FENE
BHERFE - RNFEFEZMER
TREIZHAEEAXFECREER
BEMEERERGBESVENK
BHAE MAFETFGEZ AR
TR TR o

BREX-BALFHMEANER
XNRETPENEHRRABKRE
EATEBERARTERR (P
BOT#HEAGWT) BEZERE
MREEH 2RI FHEREX -

BERMRERERRNEIEERRK
EESRRBIIBIRHER — -

EREEEEARERERARTES
B AT UR Ol & BB N R A T RS
MAREE - Bt RBEMRRBR
B EERABE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

B % ¥R ok M ORE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

20N —REEEFZHER

2023 2022
—EB-=F —F-—
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FERT FHET
Share of net assets PEEERE
At 1 January R—B—AH 35,213 51,990
Capital contribution HE = 57
Loan to a joint venture EXRTF—REEDLE (a), (b) 11,083 -
Share of results DIEFEE (11,726) (13,044)
Share of other comprehensive income %1 H i & [ 4 25 (887) (3,316)
Unrealised profit on inter-company C?m/\@?%:zﬁi NG
transaction eliminated on W HZ HH
consolidation R A = (474)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 33,683 35,213
Notes: Htaz -
(@) At 31 December 2023, loan to a joint venture is unsecured, (@ RZZE_=F+ZA=+—H B

bearing interest at fixed rate of 4.05% per annum. In accordance
with the terms of the joint venture agreement, both parties
provided loans to the joint venture in proportion to their equity
interests under equal terms. Repayment of any amount of the
loan requires both venturer’s approval and is subject to the joint
venture having sufficient assets.

(b)  The Directors of the Company are in the view that there has been
no significant increase in credit risk in loan to the joint venture.
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 44(c).

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which are
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements, are as follows:

FT—HAELLETERM  FTUEE
FHMELO5%ZAE - 5 & ETTRIE
BEREARZER & B AR
”KMEH %ﬁTﬁA%ﬁﬁkﬁ
ER-EEZERZEMNEEFES
Mﬁﬁzmﬁ IH%@?A%ﬁi
EBRAZEE -

(b) ARAEERR MELLERHEE
R IEER Iﬂi?ﬁ%i“ﬂu ° BAERT
5T AT it44(c)

ASBMESEEXZ BTN IS MR

RPTRBEREZE  FB0T

Proportion of ownership interest

RERERLY
Place of Particulars of Group's’
incorporation  Form of legal issued and effective Heldbythe  Heldbya
Name of joint venture and operations entity paid-up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
H-%
MR LR BRTR rE@e  AEARE WELF
RELELRE EERY ERERCKE  BRERREE BRER BE BE IEER
Liuzhou Xinyu Rongkai Solid Waste ~ PRC Sino foreign joint  Registered 65% - 65%  Environmental
Disposal Company Limited* equity enterprise  and paid-up hazardous waste
("Xinyu Rongkai”) RMB80,080,000 treatment and
disposal services
MASTRIERENRE e mgERE  EMRBRARER BRERBENRRE
ARAR (TR 80,080,00070 REERB

TECCFFER HFERREEERAF 223
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gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

224

LY '—I—l P ra A Y -I-lu— LY
20.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 20— xREELHEZER
(continued) (%48)
Summarised the financial information of Xinyu Rongkai relating MFRICHBERNBERBEREHHB
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial WMENEREBEHEK-
statements.
2023 2022
—E-=F -
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FAET
Gross amounts of the joint venture’s BELECHESH
Non-current assets FERBEE 160,707 181,330
Current assets mEAE 778 3,848
Current liabilities mBBE (87.316) (64,473)
Non-current liabilities EREBAR (39,399) (62,317)
Equity [i& A< 34,770 58,388
Included in the above assets: NEEEEHE:
Cash and cash equivalents BekERREER 211 2,359
Revenue U & 1,853 6,035
Loss for the year FEEE (18,039) (20,067)
Other comprehensive income Har2mi s
- Exchange difference on translation of —BREVERERMESE
financial statements PEH Z% (1,364) (5,102)
Total comprehensive loss FHEEERTE (19,403) (25,169)
Included in the above loss: NEEEaERE
Depreciation and amortisation e REE (15,578) (9,464)
Interest income A B WA 6 217
Dividend received from (SRS
the joint venture KBE - -
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in EAEBEREE ¥ 2
the joint venture fEm 2 HER
Gross amount of net assets of the BENEEEFBEZRLE
joint venture 34,770 58,388
Group'’s share of net assets of the REBDEEERECEETE
joint venture 22,600 37,952
Group’s share of shareholders’ loan AEEDBERRER 11,083 -
Unrealised profit on inter-company REFeHRREEARMR I
transaction eliminated on consolidation AEREF - (2,739)
Carrying amount of net assets of the joint A& EFEERBE
venture 33,683 35,213
Carrying amount in the consolidated KA SRR 2EAEE
financial statements 33,683 35,213
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AEEIHEELECHASHE
share of the joint venture’s
Loss for the year FERE (11,726) (13,044)
Other comprehensive income H 2 mE W
- Exchange difference on translation of BmE P IERERTE
financial statements HIE N ERE (887) (3,316)
Total comprehensive loss FHEEEARS (12,613) (16,360)
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Bt %% %R ox M R

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

21.EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 21. ZBHM 2 EW HR L

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

FEANRZBEFRE

2023 2022
—E-=fF —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Equity instrument designated as measured 5 F &5 B H b 2 W 25 1%
at fair value through other comprehensive A F{EFE AT A
income (non-recycling) (TadleE) 81,500 70,300
2023 2022
—E=-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
At 1 January Hn—A—H 70,300 80,800
Net fair value change transfer to FREMEEARGRERS
equity through statement of other R Az A 1E
comprehensive income SE)EH 11,200 (10,500)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 81,500 70,300

The Group has designated the unlisted equity investments as
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income on
non-recycling basis ("FVOCI (non-recycling)”), as the investments
are held for strategic purposes. Dividends with amount of
HK$3,945,000 (2022: HK$4,249,000) were received on the unlisted
equity investments for the year ended 31 December 2023.

AEEBBZEFLITRAREREEAT
AEEyEREMEERGEERAFER
2(([BBHEME2EKFZEAFE (A E
#)]) RERZFREDNREBENM
BHE-BHE-_ZT_=F+-_A=+—H
LEFE BESIELMRARE mIE
2 W B A3,945,0008 L (Z &2 = =
4,249,000/ 7T) °

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21.EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has interests in the following

unlisted equity investments:

21 ZRHE M EW mER

FENEZ B ALE ()

IS
IS

N

Proportion of ownership interest

F_=Ft-A=+—RH AKH
TOIE EMBRARAHE RS -

BRRERLA
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation  Form of legal issued and effective Held by the Heldbya  Principal
Name of investee and operations  entity paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary  activity
B-%
ERHALER BETR rEEZ WA i) e

BRENAER EENY ERERZF  BRELARSK BN ER 5E BE IEXR

Suzhou New Huamei Plastics Co., PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered 18.62% - 18.62%  Plastic materials
Limited ("Suzhou New Huamei") equity enterprise  USD16,000,000 dyeing
(note (a)) and paid-up

USD5,000,000

FMHEXEHERAT hE mhaELE 116,000,000 ERHAE

(BMmEz]) (He) ETRER
5,000,000% 7T

Danyang New Huamei Plastics Co., PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered 24.50% - 24.50%  Plastic materials
Limited ("Danyang New Huamei") equity enterprise  and paid-up dyeing
(notes (a), (b)) USD1,600,000

AGHFEXEHERAA Gl PHEELE MR R ERLe
((ABHFEE]) 1,600,000 ¢
(Hiitta) - (b))

Qingdao Zhongxin Huamei Plastics Co., PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered 28.67% - 28.67%  Plastic materials
Limited ("Qingdao Huamei") equity enterprise  and paid-up dyeing
(notes (a), (b)) USD1,650,000

ERTHEREHERAT Gl mHEERE ThRER BHAE
(E8%x)) 1,650,000 T

(Hitla) - (b))
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21.EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 21.&E 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Notes:

(a)

31 December 2023

B % ¥R ok M ORE

—E-=Ft-A=t-H

=

Hit:zmWmE A

FEANRZBRERE (E)

i -

The unlisted equity investments carried at fair value represent (@) FLETRAEE ERAFEAR) D
investments in Suzhou New Huamei, Danyang New Huamei BREMNFEE NBEHEEXLSTS
and Qingdao Huamei, which are principally engaged in plastic EX(ZERRAETEZRPEANMIES
materials dyeing manufacturing business in Mainland China. BRACREEL) 2RE - RZ_F
As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of these unlisted equity T=F+ZA=+—H8 KEEZ
investments was determined by reference to the valuation ELMEEARZTERB MR E

carried out by Colliers International (2022: Colliers International), 15.94% (ZZF = =% : 15.50% ) 1% -
an independent firm of professional valuers, using a market ZEFRLTRAREZRAFENZ
approach model based on the EBIT multiple of enterprise value to EZHBUFEEFTEMS NBEER (ZF
earnings before interest and tax (“EV/EBIT") of comparable listed ZZF ahBER)RAMSEER
companies in the same industry, after having taken into account of ZIEEEE - ZEXTARRITER
the discount for lack of marketability of 15.94% (2022: 15.50%) BUBRETARZEXEELBTA
for these unlisted investments. Details of fair value hierarchy for i A 2 EBITAE 8 ([EV/EBIT]) A& &%

these investments are disclosed in note 43 below. H— R IEE M FT43 55 -
Fair value relative to
EBIT Dividend yield Fair value the Group's total assets
RYrERAEE
EBIT kEx AYE ZBVE
(note (i) (note (i)
(i) ()
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Z8-zE -E--f CECZE -E--F CECCE CE-CF CZECCE CECoCF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
S¥:7 THn TE7 THn

Suzhou New Huamei iR 1,710 5232 21.9% 94% 7,000 17,500 0.5% 1.2%

Danyang New Huamei LEESS 3,018 3,675 33% 3.6% 7,600 7,600 0.6% 0.5%

Qingdao Huamei EEESS 17,033 11,276 2.8% 4.4% 66,900 45,00 5.1% 3.0%

(i) Dividend vyield represents the net dividend received (net
of PRC dividend withholding tax paid) from the respective
unlisted equity investment during the reporting period in
a ratio to the fair value of the respective unlisted equity
investment of the Company at the end of that reporting
period.

(i) The fair value of each of the unlisted equity investments
at the end of the reporting period was determined by
reference to the respective independent and professional
valuation performed by Colliers International (2022: Colliers
International).

(iii)  In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, there was

no impairment on each of the above unlisted investments

at the end of both reporting periods, and there was no
impairment charge to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for both years.

(i) BEXREWRSHAKXRAARAQF
B LR AR E U R
FR(CHEECEMZPERE
BIM) BEIFF ETRARER
BERRZAFEZILE -

(i) BHEFELETHRARERIRE
RKZAFEIZRERHEK (:
T F /3 ABER) TET
BUYBEGEMERE -

ARABEERR LI L™
BREZERXMEREBRGE
AE - B BN W EFE A
AERAEXRAHBREARE

(iii)

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA

2.8



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

s 31 December 2023 —E_=%F+_-_A=+—H

21.EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 21. ZBHM 2 EWHR L

A ~ = =

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FEANRZERAEE (F)

INCOME (continued)

Notes: (continued) Kiat : (&)

(b)  Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei were not regarded by BEEEZRMGHEZTHEELARNE
as associates of the Group, because the Group could not exercise B oEE AR RAREAREEN L
significant influence over their financial and operating policies EWREFTEFEHEBTR20%IEE
under the constitutional frameworks that the Group has less than B2ERERT AEETRHEZSE
20% voting power of the board directors of these investees. RAZ B REERRITEEATE
Accordingly, the investments in Qingdao Huamei and Danyang B REBEZRAGMEE
New Huamei are accounted for as unlisted equity investments. ZIEEAE ETRAIEE AR -

Fi=3
22.INVENTORIES 22.=F&

2023 2022

B =5 —Eq-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Raw materials R A 4,936 7,037

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense BRAAS Y ABEZEESBESN
and included in profit or loss is presented as follows: Z5mT
2023 2022
—E=-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Carrying amount of inventories consumed  FriE#fEFS 2 BREE 46,825 72,487
=+
23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23 BEWERA R ER

2023 2022

—E=-= ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT
Trade receivables JrE W BR 3R 73,337 124,866
Lease receivables FEWRAERIEA 15,853 21,424
Bills receivables B E 26,823 1,597
116,013 147,887
Less: allowance for credit loss B EEEEZ BE (23,396) (41,388)
92,617 106,499
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)
Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (including lease receivables)
and bills receivables as of the end of the reporting period, based on
the invoice date and net of loss allowance is as follows:

31

B % ¥R ok M ORE

December 2023 —ZE—-=%+—-A=+—H

=

23. BEBRARER ()

i 5 17
RS B YRR (B AR E3R0E)

REWEEBZERE BB RINREREE
ZHREDITZ25IT

2023 2022
—ZE_-= —E-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

0 to 30 days 0B £30R 57,669 47,751
31 days to 60 days 31H&E60H 9,236 13,217
61 days to 90 days 612 %E90H 10,694 14,437
91 days to 180 days 91E ZE=180H 6,305 21,859
181 days to 360 days 181HE360H 3,738 5,588
Over 1 year Be—a& 4,975 3,647
92,617 106,499

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The Group allows an average credit period of 60 days to its
customers of the environmental industrial waste, sewage and sludge
treatment services and its lessees, and an extended average credit
period of 180 days to the customers of regulated medical waste
treatment from hospitals and medical clinics. Further details on the
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade receivables
are set out in note 44(c).

=
=

AEEBXFZUEEFAATERFES
BR - AEBEARTEBRRIEEY 5
KESREEERBEEFPREABAZF
t’]ﬁ%fﬂﬂ W AE0R MAREERK
B XERNERBEMEERFPZF
i’]*““iﬁkﬁimoa EBRAKHEE
HERERERMEEEERR 2 E—
SEHIBE AR M E44() ©

FER HFRAEEARAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

24.

ERRE-ZERHEM
B SR IR

2023 2022
—E-=HF T

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FAT
Other receivables H th JE SRR (a) 402 4,946
Prepayments A IR 7,990 16,135
Amount due from a joint venture B —RELEDERR (b) 13,435 -

Consideration receivable from HE—KMB AR ZEI
disposal of a subsidiary KRE 18(c) 10,670 -
32,497 21,081

Notes: Bt -

(a)  Included in other receivables was an advance of HK$988,000 to an
associate and was repaid on 16 February 2022.

(b)  The amount due is unsecured, bearing interest at rates ranging
from 3.55% to 4.05% per annum and with no fixed terms of
repayment.

The above other receivables and prepayments do not contain
impaired assets and are expected to be settled within one year.

25. CONTRACT ASSETS

The Group's contract assets are analysed as follows:

25.

(@ HMBRERBLEGT ZXBEQ
A]2988,0008 TEF WER T
ZZFZAtTARREE-

(b) HRRDEERF RN F355%F
4.05%2 FMEE - RIEETE
AR -

bt E YRR R TR SRR B IR
BEE IRBER—FAEN -

BHEE

REBZEWEEDTWT

2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FiBT
Contract assets BREE
— arising from performance under —RERBERER
equipment construction and ZERRBET 2
installation services & 49 = 32,652

The contract assets were related to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the rights
are unconditional on the Group’s future performance. The contract
assets were transferred to trade receivables when the rights became
unconditional.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

(a)

By

31 December 2023

%R A& R

—EZ=F+=ZA=1+—H

260 RERFRAEEEB R

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HtBRERER
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) R NFERBFLEBNENK:
2023 2022
—E=-= —ZE-=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=2 FTHERT FHET
Cash and bank balances Re MRITHEER 113,670 89,543
Time deposits TE BT 73,426 185,961
187,096 275,504
Less: Restricted bank deposits B PR BRI IRI TR 0) (731) (5,225)
Cash and cash equivalents in RiraRERERALZ
the consolidated statement of Be hERIES
cash flows I8 B (i) 186,365 270,279
Notes: Wi

0]

(i)

As at 31 December 2023, bank deposits of HK$731,000
(2022: HK$5,225,000) are pledged to banks for payments
to the suppliers and the issuance of guarantees by the bank
to customers in respect of the specific performance under
certain service agreements.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates on daily
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are placed for
varying periods of between one day and 3 months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted bank
deposits are placed with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

(i)

(in)

R—E—=F+=-A=+—8"
ABET731,0008 T (Z T4 :
5,225,000 7T) < R 1T 17 3K
MW TFET BRAEERN
HUARRETREHHEETA
EEAOBEBITAERHAER -

EHRRRT2RSLEAFK
MEFEZIHNEHE -8
HERFRZ2ERAR—RE
ZEARRERMERR RFAR
SEZHSReFTEmME A
RIREE ST RA RS - R
THRHBRZRBINRTERE
RNEE R I 8 2 19 R0
82 SRAT e

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

260 RERFERFEEEER

HppRERER (F)

(continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing b)) MEEFHELEZEABENE
activities: g :
Lease Accrued Bank
liabilities interest borrowings Total
HEESE BRI E HMITEE #st
(note 31) (note 30) (note 28)
(Kt7#31) (#7£30) (Ht5£28)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T TET FHET FET
At 1 January 2023 RZTEZ=%F
—H—H 667 77 97,959 98,703
Changes from financing BMERSR
cash flows: #
Proceeds from bank IRITIEEFRS
borrowings E] - - 106,601 106,601
Repayment of bank EERT
borrowings BE - - (158,995) (158,995)
Finance costs paid 21 BB B AR = (3,833) = (3,833)
Capital element of lease HMENRZ
payments RN (321) = = (321)
Interest element of lease MENKZ
payments BB (24) - - (24)
Total changes from financing &8 4 7
cash flows By (345) (3.833) (52,394) (56,572)
Exchange adjustments [ 7, 38 28 (14) - (1,565) (1,579)
Other non-cash changes: HEMIFIR & &S -
Interest expenses recognised M8z MR 2
in profit or loss FEFHZ 24 3,756 = 3,780
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=F
+=—B=+—H 332 - 44,000 44,332
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

31 December 2023

—E-=F+-A=+—8H

260 RERFRBEEHEER

HppRERER (F)

(continued)
Changes in liabilities arising from financing b) MEEZHELE - BEBENE
activities: (continued) g (&)
Lease Accrued Bank
liabilities interest  borrowings Total
HEBE JE 5T 2 RITEE et
(note 31) (note 30) (note 28)
(H1&E31) (Ht7#30) (H15#28)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2022 RZZTEZZF
—H—H 1,470 194 198,970 200,634
Changes from financing BMERSR
cash flows: g
Proceeds from bank HITEEMS
borrowings IR - - 139,268 139,268
Repayment of bank EERT
borrowings BE - - (233,425) (233,425)
Finance costs paid EATEE KA - (5,758) - (5,758)
Capital element of lease HMENRZ
payments EARE D
- Continuing operations — BB ER (322) - - (322)
- Discontinued operation —BERIEEEER (400) - - (400)
Interest element of lease HEMNKZ
payments PSR- 50
— Continuing operations —FEKCEER (42) - - (42)
— Discontinued operation —ERIEEEER (10) - - (10)
Total changes from financing Bt & IR &%
cash flows I EGE (774) (5,758) (94,157) (100,689)
Exchange adjustments M W R (81) - (6,854) (6,935)
Other non-cash changes: HiIER S EE -
Interest expenses recognised A IB5 MR
in profit or loss FEMZ 52 5,641 - 5,693
At 31 December 2022 i S
+=-HA=+—H 667 77 97,959 98,703
TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

27.ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 21T. 7 EABIEHEZEE
SALE
The major classes of assets classified as held for sale: DEARFIELEZEEZXEHER

Assets held Assets for the

for sale  disposal group Total
RHIELHEZ HEHEEZ
BE BE 5
(note)
(H15t)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2022 R-E-_—_F#—HF—H 15,931 23,649 39,580
Transfer on disposal NHERELH 18(c) - (23,830) (23,830)
Exchange adjustments PE 55 F8 % (1,173) 181 (992)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—_F+—-H
and 1 January 2023 =t+—HBRZT==F
—H—H 14,758 - 14,758
Exchange adjustments FE H 2 (391) - (391)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZE-=%+=A#
=+—H 14,367 - 14,367
Note: Mat -
On 16 June 2020, the Company'’s subsidiary, Yancheng New Universe RZZ2ZZFRA+TRAE - BEMTBA
Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited has entered into a demolition and MG T ERRE - ARRIME AR E
relocation compensation agreement with the local authorities to dispose BFEHFEREYEEARAACELTE
of the land and buildings situated at Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, RITYFBHERS  WEBFESOAR
the PRC at a total compensation of approximately RMB13,061,000 #13,061,0007C (ABE 514,367,000 7T ) &
(or equivalent to HK$14,367,000) under an urban development plan =vaiNGe 5I§%%E§§f)ﬁﬁ_ﬁ’\)iiﬁ&§$§§¢_% o
promulgated by the local government. The related assets classified BRSO HERRBEFLEEERLEREFHE
as held for sale were stated at the net consideration on disposal of 14,367,000/ 7T (=& = — 4 : 14,758,000
HK$ 14,367,000 (2022: 14,758,000) as at 31 December 2023. BN ZE-_=F+-"A=+—B%k-
As at 31 December 2023, the related assets classified as held for sale 5’\:1@: =F+=H EJF*E iz AR
located at Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC was still subject to BAHRmOBARIEHENEHREE
the environmental restoration works to be approved by the relevant E’Jf_f“ &1 TR 1) A 5 18 78 I 5= R 3B P9
governmental environmental authority. HHLTE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

4= JAE 4%
28. BANK BORROWINGS 28. RITEE

At the end of the reporting period, interest-bearing bank RMEBRR NEB 2 ERITEEZR

borrowings of the Group were repayable as follows: AT EAREEE -

2023 2022
—E-=F —E=-=

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E TET FHT

Current liabilities mEBAaE
- Secured bank borrowings — BT EE (a) 22,000 67,800
- Unsecured bank borrowings —EIFRITEE (b) 22,000 30,159
44,000 97,959

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the RBEBRR FEEATIEBHEL

Group's bank borrowings were denominated in the following RITEEZREBENT :

currencies:

2023 2022

—E=-= —E_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
Hong Kong Dollar T _ 25,300
Renminbi AR 44,000 72,659
44,000 97,959

Notes: it -

(@)  Secured bank borrowings carry fixed interest rates ranged from (@ BEMARTEEZEEFMENTF
3.90% to 4.25% (2022: 4.05% to 4.35%) per annum. 3.90%%E4.25% (—ZF = —4F : 4.05%

£4.35%) °

(b)  Unsecured bank borrowings carry interest rates ranged from (b) \EFRTEEZFFRNF3.20%

3.20% t0 7.99% (2022: 1.65% to 7.99%) per annum. F2799% (ZZEZZF : 1.65%%
7.99%) ©

(¢ As at 31 December 2023, the secured bank borrowings were © R-F-_=F+-_A=+—-H FA&
secured by pledge of land use rights and certain property, ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%%)}%iiﬁ@iﬁﬁ*&&a?%
plant and equipment of approximately HK$7,692,000 (2022: * ;ﬂﬁ?%&ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ # 2%17,692,0(?0
HK$26,091,000) and HK$57,483,000 (2022: HK$89,129,000) I (=T = 4 26,091,000
respectively. JT) K57,483,0008 L (— T — —

89,129,000/ 7T ) Z AL MEHE I -

(d) The Group’s short-term loan facilities amounting to (d RB|EHK - ZIS%E@EF‘H@!HHE
HK$197,300,000 (2022: HK$137,000,000), of which FELE £ %197,300,000% T (=
HK$44,000,000 (2022: HK$97,959,000) has been utilised as at i — 3 13\7,900,000;’5 o) H
the end of the reporting period. 244,000,000 T (ZF = =

97,959,000 7T) °

CECCEER HFRAREBEBRAT

23§



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

2. BRRARER

2023 2022

—E-=F =T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Trade payables FEHBE 20 59,392 59,497
Bills payables EREE = 10,242
59,392 69,739

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the

invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

RBEHRR ENRRRBEZAHZE
g

BoMmmT

2023 2022
—_E_= -

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#& T FAET

0 to 30 days 0B Z30H 12,740 17,040
31 days to 60 days 31HZE60H 5,422 5,428
61 days to 90 days 61HZ=90H 3,022 3,431
Over 91 days #3891 H 38,208 33,598
59,392 59,497

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled within

90 days to 180 days.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER

B % ¥R ok M ORE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

30.BrtE B R EMEM IR

PAYABLES
2023 2022
—EB-=F —F-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and bonuses payable B TERIEL 6,627 12,961
Accounts payable for acquisition of  WEWE WE MK EZ
property, plant and equipment FETBRRX 9,521 24,720
Accrued interest payable JE < FE 5T F 2. = 77
Provision for claims AR EE = 8,177
Costs accrued for land restoration and ﬁ%@}?&%ﬁ%Ziiﬂﬂk@&
soil remediation of obsolete plants B Z BT AR 26,377 27,372
Dividends payable to non-controlling J?Eﬁ EXGIEVNGIE S il
interests of a subsidiary w8 B 57,466 60,193
Other payables H A & 518 37,383 85,112
137,374 218,612
Notes:

As at 31 December 2023, no provision were recognised for any
claims pending outcome of the decision. The recognised provision
reflects the Directors’ best estimate of the mostly likely outcome.

As at 31 December 2023, the dividends payable to the
non-controlling interests of the subsidiary, NUET(JS), is comprised
of amounts attributable to (i) Mr. YIN Yong Xiang approximately
to HK$25,540,000 (2022: HK$26,752,000), (ii) Mr. SUN Jia
Qing approximately to HK$25,540,000 (2022: HK$26,752,000),
and (iii) Mr. LIU Lai Gen approximately to HK$6,386,000 (2022:
HK$6,689,000). Mr. YIN Yong Xiang, Mr. SUN Jia Qing and
Mr. LIU Lai Gen hold 8%, 8% and 2% of the equity interests in
NUET(JS) respectively, and they are also the existing directors of
Zhenjiang New Universe, the wholly owned subsidiary of NUET(JS).

As at 31 December 2023, other payables mainly comprised (i)
audit fee HK$1,350,000 (2022: HK$1,350,000), (ii) retentions
and deposits received of approximately HK$14,318,000
(2022: HK$26,085,000), (iii) provision for selling expenses of
approximately HK$3,697,000 (2022: HK$8,392,000) and (iv)
other tax payables of approximately HK$1,854,000 (2022:
HK$1,085,000). As at 31 December 2022, other payables
also included payables due to independent constructors of
approximately HK$30,727,000.

RZZF-_=F+-A=+—08 H#
R AE SR AT - A B ) FR R R B
o CHRAREBRREEH RS
RS EME

RZZTEZ=F+=ZA=+—H0 &
B R TNUET(JS)?H fi% 1 %= 7Y
B B B 3E ¢ (I)BR Sk #F 5T & B (h 3k 1E
#)25,540 000,%71 (ZZ=—=%F:
26,752, ooo,%m) (IVERETEE
15 T8 925,540,000 T (— & = —
F 26,752,000 L) + K(i)BI KR
¥ A FE(H FRTE 496,386,000 T (— &
— Z%F 16,689,000 L) ° BKEEL
£ BREEERBFIBLEED B
ANUETUS)8% ~ 8% M2 %K B # -+ 1
75 BNUET(S)Z & K B 2 &) ST 5
FHRIES -

RZTE_=F+=-_A=+—H Hf
FEAS /18 £ E B 3E()E % E1,350,000
B (—ZF = —4 1,350,000/ L) °
(B WRE & RIES 414,318,000/
7T (=ZZ = — % :26,085,000/% L) -
(iii) 55 & B9 37 B 18 493,697,000/ 7T (=
T~ — 4 8,392,000 L) K(iv)E
b FE B0 i FX I8 91,854,000 T (=
T~ — 4 :1,08500087L) R T
T+ -_A=+t—8 HEtEMR
ERNBEANETREFTRED
30,727,000 7T ©

=F58 HFRAEEARAA




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

s 31 December 2023 —E_=%F+_-_A=+—H

31.LEASE LIABILITIES 1.THE&E
At the end of the reporting period, the lease liabilities were payable RIEHR BENHEEABNT
as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F =T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Current liabilities mBBE
Within 1 year —FR 332 326
Non-current liabilities ERBaE
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNAN - 341
332 667
32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES .54 &’
2023 2022
—EB-=F =T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deposits received from customers DWEFZRS 4,272 3,190
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B % & M

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

33. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 33. IE L I FF 48 B
Government grants were obtained by the subsidiaries, Yancheng MEBARBERTFEE REBETERER
NUHF and Zhenjiang Sinotech to subsidise the construction of their ZBTHEIERRBRERE FE R R
respective environmental energy saving facility and controlling BES B ZRREN LR M N5 KR
facility of sewage discharge in the eco-plating specialised zone. The EEPERR b BL c WA DIRIEERE &
grants are recognised as other revenue over the estimated useful M2 T A BB R A E A -

lives of the plant facilities.

HK$'000
FET
Receipt of grants W ER 465 Bb
At 1 January 2022 R-B-_—_#—HF—H 23,859
Exchange adjustments ME W A (1,760)
At 31 December 2022 and at 1 January 2023 RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—HK
—E-=%—H—H 22,099
Exchange adjustments ME A (589)
Receipt for the year F AU E 165
At 31 December 2023 R-ZZB-=f+-A=+—H 21,675
Release of grants wmERL
At 1 January 2022 N_ZT——&F—H—H 8,371
Exchange adjustments ME i A (695)
Release for the year FARY 2,026
At 31 December 2022 and at 1 January 2023 R-E-_—F+-_A=+—HRK
—E-=%—F—H 9,702
Exchange adjustments PE 5 8 (285)
Release for the year FARNEL 2,017
At 31 December 2023 R-ZBZ=f+ZA=+—H 11,434
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2023 R-ZB-Z=f+ZA=+—H 10,241
At 31 December 2022 WZEZZF+=ZA=+—H 12,397
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s 31 December 2023 —E_=%F+_-_A=+—H

33. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 33k I BUAT #H AL (48)
(continued)

The government grants were analysed for reporting purpose as: B HMmRERME 2N A -

2023 2022
—E-= —Eq-—

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Current liabilities mENAEE 1,881 1,935
Non-current liabilities EnBEE 8,360 10,462
10,241 12,397

34.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 34 . RGEM B MR ABE TN

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Zﬁﬁ i
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement @) MNEEMBIRIERAZ
of financial position: Eﬂ HARIE -
2023 2022
—E-=HF —EF-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Provision of PRC Corporate REFFBEMEMGREE
Income Tax for current year 9,073 18,525
Provision of PRC Corporate Income B4 & P B 1> ¥ AT 1S 5 45
Tax for prior years 6,069 7,058
Exchange adjustments PE i A% (111) (446)
Income tax refunded FriS At iR 151 62 409
Income tax paid =ENRE T (12,364) (19,971)
2,729 5,575

240  New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

—EZ=F+=ZA=1+—H

34.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(i)

Movement of each component of deferred tax assets
and liabilities

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

31 December 2023

ZEHEH (&

M. REEHMBRAKERA

(b) BHERELERBEEK

BiE

() LBEEHEREERBEEKD

ZEH

REAMBRRKNER

BIERE (BEE) /ABEZK

position and the movements during the year are as follows: D RFERNEESHHIOT ¢
Effect of
withholding
tax on
Fair value distributable
Fairvalue  adjustment profits of
adjustment of assets  the Group’s  Impairment
on equity  on business PRC loss on trade
investments  combination  subsidiaries  receivables Total
BB H
rEEZ
REHEH HEAHBAT
RAfEe HEEFLZ ok ERRXZ
AYERE ATERE  RAZRE AEFE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FEL FHET
At 1 January 2022 W-E--%-HF—-H 3,571 17,081 12,427 (10,154) 22,925
Charge to other comprehensive St AEMZE
income g 580 - _ _ 580
Released upon distribution RAER S
of dividends B - - (3,455) - (3,455)
Charge to profit or loss SAER - (497) 1,404 (857) 50
Released upon disposal of a NHE-ZFHBLARE
subsidiary e - ) - - 71)
Exchange adjustments ERBE - - - 782 782
At 31 December 2022 and WZZ-—F+-A=1-H
1 January 2023 RZE-=F-F-H 4,151 15,873 10,376 (10,229) 20,171
Charge to other comprehensive 3 A2
income g 2,170 - - - 2,170
Released upon distribution 7R R B
of dividends B - - (2,059) - (2,059)
Charge to profit or loss iABE - (497) (12) 3,994 3,485
Released upon disposal of REE-FHBEARS
a subsidiary B - - (277) 177 (100)
Exchange adjustments 5 A% - - - 212 M2
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=f+ZA=1-H 6,321 15,376 8,028 (5,846) 23,879

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA
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@ils: 31 December 2023

—E-=f+-A=+—H

34.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

34. 1%

HEMBARRKREA

ZF 5% ()

(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) BEERELENIBEE K
(continued) BE:(8)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial (i)  AEHBENILEZZEH R
position
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Net deferred tax assets recognised — FA4R A BF S AR L R FE 7R
in the consolidated statement of 2 IEER TR
financial position BEEFH (5.846) (10,229)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised %44 BF 75k R & R
in the consolidated statement of ZIEERIE
financial position BEFHE 29,725 30,400
23,879 20,171
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: () AERZELEMIBEE
The Group has tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately AEEEPBEEENRIBESEED
HK$35,009,000 (2022: HK$20,399,000) that will expire in 435,009,000 T (=& — —
one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. 20,399,000 7T) + E 0] LUK 8H R
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect RERBEMNER—ZRFAE
of these losses as it is uncertain that taxable profits will be Ho@mR I ETEEBERAN R
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. AAREHEZEMIEEE Bt
AMZEEERRAEEHBEEE -
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of AREBGCEREENNEEBED
approximately HK$50,036,000 (2022: HK$50,036,000) for /50,036,000 L (ZE ==
offsetting against future taxable profits indefinitely. Deferred 50,036,000/ jr) + A] DA 4 (R AR 3K
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses HARERB @A o MARZES
and it is uncertain that taxable profits will be available against BHERARBEERIEBEE AT i#
which the tax losses can be utilised. TE LD BUSER TR M AR HZ S
IR 1A ©
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: (d) AERZELEHIEAE :

At 31 December 2023 and 2022 there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities.
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31 December 2023 —FT-=F+-A=+—H
35.SHARE CAPITAL 35. g &
Number of shares Share capital
BRoEE [
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EB-=F —E—-— —B-=F —E-—
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T & FHET FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 SREE0.01ETZ
each ZBER
Authorised EE
At 1 January and 31 December ®H—A—BNE+=A
=+—H 100,000,000 100,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
At 1 January and 31 December ®R—A—BE+ A
=+—H 3,035,697 3,035,697 30,357 30,357
36.RESERVES 36. f# &
(a) The Group (a) AN&EEH

Details of the movements on the Group's reserves are set out

AEERBZEDFBRANGSE

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. wmEEK -
The Company (b)y AR F
Share
Share option Retained
premium reserve profits Total
RBEE  BRERE RERR @zt
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik T T THET T
(note 36 (c)(i))
(W#36 (i)

At 1 January 2022 RZE--%—f—H 456,465 906 191,302 648,673
Profit for the year imﬁﬂ - - 8,602 8,602
Dividend relating to 2021 “To-ERE - - (11,839) (11,839)

Equity settled share-hased R A ERRD
transactions frERZR S 40 - 475 - 475

At 31 December 2022 and W_ZE-_&+-fA=1+-H

1 January 2023 kZE-=F-f-H 456,465 1,381 188,065 645,911
Profit for the year FEER - - 2,765 2,765
Dividend relating to 2022 “EC-CERE - - (11,536) (11,536)

Equity settled share-hased R A= BRI D
transactions FERZRS 40 - 489 - 489
Lapse of share options BREXN = (733) 733 -
At 31 December 2023 —®-zf+zf=1-B 456,465 1,137 180,027 637,629

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA
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@ils: 31 December 2023

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

36.RESERVES (continued)

(0)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of overseas operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies of
translation of foreign currencies set out in note 2(x) to
the financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments at the end of the reporting period and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(h) to the financial statements.

Capital reserve

On 17 February 2011, the Group's effective interest
in NSIL was increased from 38% to 98%, and NSIL
Group became 98% indirectly owned subsidiaries of
the Company, and the excess of fair value of net assets
acquired over cost of acquisition of 98% equity interest
in NSIL Group of HK$4,185,000 (after deduction of
acquisition related costs) was recognised as deemed
contribution from the transferors, New Universe
Enterprises Limited and another party, in their capacity
as shareholders of the Company and fully credited as
capital reserve in the equity of the Group.

On 7 October 2015, the Group's effective interest in
NSIL was increased from 98% to 100%, and the excess
of carrying value of net assets acquired over cost of
acquisition of the remaining 2% equity interest in NSIL
Group of HK$378,000 (after deduction of acquisition
related costs) was recognised as deemed contribution
from the transferor in his capacity as shareholder of
the Company and fully credited as capital reserve in the
equity of the Group.
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RERSBHERRE AR
AR EEZEZAI DT
ADBRIR - EREHRRE
B Bz B &A1 5] BE 5 10 1
ENEEXBEETIH
&7 e

VE 5 1 1
EHFERERREBINES
ZHBEREREL Z A I
EER-FEHEIDREMBR
KM 200 A RBIREINE
ZEET BRI o

REZEIG B
REEHRFBEERENRSH
RFFBEARERAFEZR
AHEEFE EREBEHENY
BmEME2N 2 GFERET
IABRIE ©

RZE——F=ZA++tH"
AEBEMNSILZ BB EZ B
38%IE INZE98%  NSILE B AKX
BN T EE R BI8%E &=
ZHBAR  FKEEEF
B2 AFEHBENSILEEI8%
f% # 7 Wy B8 R 72X 2 4,185,000
T (F0BR U B EIE 4B B K
Nig) B HER B EE ANew
Universe Enterprises Limited
EBS—F(UARREBIREZ
M ZEEHE WEHEZA
REBBRARN 2 ERGFHE -

R—ZE—RHF+AEAH -
AEBNRNSILZ B EZ R
98% 1% =100% * A U BE &Y
FEAEZIREEBHNSILE
B84 T 2% 2 WHER AN 2
378,000/ 7T (0B W i =18
KA EERABEZEA
(AERRREZ HH) 2 H#
EHE TERHBEZALEE
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B % & M

36.RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the value of the
unexercised share options granted by the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(s)(iii) to the
financial statements.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC,
the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
required to transfer a certain percentage of its profits
after tax to reserve funds. Subject to certain restrictions
set out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the
subsidiary’s articles of association, the reserve funds may
be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation by
way of paid-up capital.

37.OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

31 December 2023

—EZ=F+=ZA=1+—H

36. = #a ()
(0 HHZHERAR(#)

(v)

(vi)

BIRER 1
BRERBREERBY B R
2% B 52 2(s) i) P 5% 49 1 LA B £
A R & 5T R R
AR DR ERETEER
BnEE-

A TE R 1
REBEFRBEER  AQA
RPBEKZZHBARASE
BMEETHO ZBRBE )G
EfBLrEE -GETEHEH
EHREMB AR BBMER
MAUZHERT  REEITER
]/ 4K SH B 1B S A R AR
RZIABEER -

7. REFHERIE
AEBEERERAA
RBEBHR REEBRBAETWEET
FIBEHER 2 T REEEHE 2 KK

leases in respect of office premises which fall due as follows: REMERENT
2023 2022
—EC-= —E-Z
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Within 1 year 15 A" 560 560
The Group as lessor AEBEERALHEA

The Group leases out certain of its factory buildings under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally provides for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market

conditions.

AEERECEEERHEALETT
BAE - HEGRK—RETRELET
REMBBES -

=
=

FER HFRAEEARAT
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/ ﬁ. 31 December 2023 —ZE=_=%+=-A=+—H

37.OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 7. REFHERIE (F)

(continued)
The Group as lessor (continued) AEBEERLMEA(E)
At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments RMESPRR AEBTAREECEHE
receivable under the non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: BTHRBEKAERNTAT
2023 2022
B =5 —Eq-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Within 1 year —FR 28,766 30,489
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNRN 23,665 30,337
After 2 years but within 3 years MFBE=FN 18,921 15,108
After 3 years but within 4 years —F®ENFA 15,313 9,807
After 4 years but within 5 years MEBBRFA 8,263 4,331
After 5 years hFE 5,492 7,927
100,420 97,999
38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. BRI
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following REEHR AEE 2 ERAENAT
capital commitments:
2023 2022
—EC-=F S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Contracted but not provided for: BRI 4B R B
- Capital expenditure in respect of —BEENE BMERRBRHEZ
property, plant and equipment B AR A E 44,084 22,464
— Capital contribution payable to — R TRAEE
the equity investment M E 15,976 15,976
39.EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 30. BEERAKEF
(a) Defined contribution retirement plans (a) TFRMHFERMNKETE
Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of TEFBZHEARES S BB
pension schemes operated by the PRC government. The Group BEZRKFTEIKE - AEEZER
is required to make contributions to the Schemes at certain EEREEF e ETEDLAZ
percentage of the eligible employee’s salaries. The local FFEMEHE R BB H#IEES
government authorities are responsible for the entire pension ERRAREEZEINRRKRE -

obligation payable to the retired employees.
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31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

39. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 0. BERAKEFR (&)

(continued)

(a) Defined contribution retirement plans (a) TEHEFRIKEIE ()
(continued)
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme FAEERBEEBEBEMILSE —
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Employment H#lE A BT E ([RESE
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution ) - miEestE N ABBILE
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. FRAERZ EHEMFKRIKG S -
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees BERETE - EEXREEES
are each required to make contributions to the plan at AlizEE BB A 25%M %5t &l
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of TER R - MK AZZAETA
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (2022: HK$30,000). 30,000 7T (=& = Z % : 30,000
Contributions to the plan vest immediately. There are no L) o M st EIEL 2 KTy AD
forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group to NEEB - ANEEWREJHAER
reduce the existing level of contributions. RIRAHFOKTE 2 2 K -

(b) Long service payment obligation (b) KEIRBSEE
Pursuant to the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the BEEBERGD  AEBEBERT
Group has the obligation to pay long service payment (“LSP") HEBEGEREE (AEEZHZ IS
to qualifying employees in Hong Kong upon retirement, F2RER) RRKE XK BAR
subject to a minimum of 5 years’ employment period, based Be((REARB2])) FE2K
on the formula of “last monthly wages (before termination BlIZERAOZH 2 (KLIEERABD
of employment) x 2/3 x years of service”. Last monthly wage X2BXPRBFH] - HE 2B RE
is capped at HK$22,500 while the amount of long service ® FMR#%22,500/8 T H - il & A7
payment shall not exceed HK$390,000. This obligation is ik 7% € 2 & %8 A 713 # 1%390,000
accounted for as a post — employment defined benefit plan. BT R XN EAIRERE T
The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance permits BRI EETERIERE - GRHIME
the withdrawal of accrued benefits derived from an employer’s NE® T EHEO) /£ FFIRIUVE £ R
MPF contributions for the purpose of offsetting LSP payable BEESHICRERNER - U
to an employee under the Employment Ordinance. The LSP HIRBEEBGIETEINEEZ
obligation, if any, is presented on a net basis. RERG S - ZEHEREEE (N

B)ANFRETIIR -

The Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation (2 ZZFEERBIREED
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the (EH = HE) (BRT) 150 (TME AT 15
“Amendment Ordinance”) was gazetted in June 2022 and PINDR=ZT=Z=F R XATERER
will take effect on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Under —E-_hAFRA—B(BEEBHD
the Amended Ordinance, accrued benefits derived from an ER o IRIBZIERTIRD - EEXEB
employer’s mandatory MPF contributions after the Transition EHEE 2RIt RESHRME
Date can only be applied to offset the pre-Transition Date LSP E22ERNER EREARNY
obligation but no longer eligible to offset the post-Transition HIBEHBA c RERESET
Date LSP obligation. Furthermore, the LSP obligation before i~ B RS B A iR E B
the Transition Date will be calculated based on the last ZEREARBESEMT LI - BER
monthly wages immediately preceding the Transition Date. HAaiz RERBEEXTAKREER

EEHAZ B%—EANFE R
HEEHH -

The Group has determined that the Amendment Ordinance REEDMEZETGRITESER
has no material impact on the Group’s LSP liability with TEREEHEECRERKEE
respect to employees. ff o
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40.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s non-executive directors, including independent
non-executive directors, employees of the Group, consultants of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers
of the Group, the Company’s shareholders and any non-controlling
shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 5 May 2015 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
on the adoption date. The maximum number of shares issuable
under the Scheme to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5 million, within 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of grant, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
commence after a vesting period and ends on a date which is not
later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.
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31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

40.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 40.BERZ# 58| (48)

The exercise price of share option is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of the offer of the share options; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares on the date of offer. Share options
do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at the
shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme:

BREZOEERHEFEE  BETF
ERTIEEE : RLBRERBAR
BIBRMRE RS HREE AR
WmE (AR FROREERR L BRE
EHAAERXZAEMIMARES L
PR 2 P U 8 ¢ R(i)AN 2 BB 2%
BHASsEE - BREXIEHR TRHE
AZEBRBEIRBERREG LIREZHER -

RBZFABHARITEZBRENT

2023 2022
“BE-CE 2
Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
MmE¥H MEFH

fTEE BREHA TRE  FERE#A

HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000

BT T4 BT TH

Outstanding at 1 January W—A—BHAETE 0.281 29,059 0.262 21,020

Granted during the year FRRL - 0308 13,080

Exercised during the year ERTE - - - -

Lapsed during the year ERRM 0.250 9,640 - -

Cancelled during the year FABKHE 0.308 3,763 0.272 5,041

Outstanding at 31 December (note) REZA=+—RERETE (K2 0.293 15,656 0.281 29,059

Vested during the year FREE 0.308 9,317 0.272 6,339

Exercisable at the end of the period AEHRTE 0.293 15,656 0.259 15,979
Note: The number of shares of the Company that may be issued in Bi#t 315,656,000 (ZF Z = F
respect of 15,656,000 (2022: 29,059,000) outstanding options are 29,059,0001% ) 14 & 17 {F 2 B %
15,656,000 (2022: 29,059,000) shares, representing approximately HEE ADQA A EEITZRMmE

0.52% (2022: 0.96%) of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2023.

No share options were exercised during the year. The options
outstanding at 31 December 2023 had a weighted average exercise
price of HK$0.293 (2022: HK$0.281) per share and remaining a
contractual period of 0.59 years to 1.59 years (2022: 0.37 years to
3.54 years).

B 515,656,000 (=& = — 4 :
29,059,0000%) @ AME AR EIEHZE =T
—TZF+-A=Zt+—HBLEEETRD
#90.52% (ZEFE = =4 : 0.96%) °

BEERERFREAE KT ==
FH+_A=+—"HHRTEBREZ
mEFEHITFEERSR023E L (ZF
ZZF 0281 FBpAEHNERA
059F BE159F (T -~ :037F &
3.54%F) o

CECCEER HFRAREBEBRAT
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gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted on 18 January 2022,
15 January 2021 and 15 January 2020 was approximately
HK$1,092,000, HK$578,000 and HK$836,000 respectively, of which
the Group recognised total share option expense of HK$489,000
(2022: HK$475,000) charged to profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2023.

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted
is measured with reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of share options is measured
based on binomial option pricing model by the independent firm of
professional valuer, Colliers International, taking into account the
terms and condition upon which the options were granted during
the year. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

0.fFBix =t 8 ()

RZB_Z_F—A+N\R -ZZ=Z—%
—A+REBRZZE_FTF-—A+HAE
TR EREN A FES R4 A1,092,000
7 7T~ 578,000/ JT 836,000/ jT + H
PAREBEREBEE_Z-_=F1+=-A
Tt BLEEERBEREATHAX
489,000/ 7T (=& — — 4 : 475,000
L) WEEEETF R -

MBMERHBERERNRERE 22 FE
D2EERLBEREZAFEFE B
Bz A FEZEFIRABLEEMGE
fim W BEIBRARE —EA PR EERNG
B WEBRFAT R GRRRARSE
TRIETAERNEXNEAE:

Date of grant

RHEBH
18 January 15 January
2022 2021
== —E-—4F
—A+N\H —A+HH
Fair value at measurement date SFERHEATFE HK$0.1017% 7T HK$0.0847% 7T
Share price at grant date HBERMDER HK$0.305/%7C  HK$0.2707 7T
Exercise price TE(E HK$0.308/ T  HK$0.272%& 7T
Expected volatility TEHA R B = 51.845% 51.135%
Expected life of options Ta 5T HA#E 5 HR 3.54 yearstE 3.55 years4F
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B =& 2.36% 2.64%
Risk-free interest rate 4 3 B A R 1.18% 0.22%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted by any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option granted.
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No options was granted during the year ended 31 December 2023.
The terms and conditions of the options granted and outstanding as

at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Number of shares
to be issued upon
exercise in full of

the options granted

REBREEZETE

BATRITROHE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

—EZ=F+=ZA=1+—H

40. BB Rx Rt 8 (4|)

REE_ZT =

31 December 2023

R R AEHIT -

Vesting conditions

ERRA

Contractual life of options

BRENSHER

=&+ -_A=+—HI*
EREREERE R-ZE-_=F+=
A=Z+—RH CEREERRITEEREZ

Options granted
to employees
on 18 January 2022

(2022: 13,080,000
shares granted)

and vest to

employees:

RZZZZ%—-F  5B9,317,0008
TNBETR (ZE-—F:
EBBESY 1% ¥13,080,0008%)
Bl -

9,317,000 shares vested The Options granted shall be vested upon

achievement of certain vesting conditions (the
"2022 Vesting Conditions") as specified in the
offer letter (the "Offer Letter”) of each respective
Grantee. If the 2022 Vesting Conditions applicable
to the relevant Grantee are not achieved, the
unvested Options granted to such Grantee shall be
cancelled as specified in the Offer Letter.

The Options shall vest in the proportions to be
determined according to each particular Offer letter
on the date the 2022 Vesting Conditions applicable
to the relevant Grantee are achieved.

FEHEREERSEBARANZOR(TENE])
WETAEE THBIEM ([20228 B Gi]) ERE
BB o WEARAEARAN202258 KRz
B RTEBARANREBBERESZEN AR
MARTE T IAFESH -

BRESRNERRBBEARAN02GB KT ENE
RRRBERNRETNLIGE -

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA

Subject to the Options having been
vested, the Options granted
are exercisable from the date
of publication of the annual
results of the Company for the
year ending 31 December 2024
(the "2024 Results Date”) to
the earlier of (i) the date on
which such Options lapses in
accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme; or (i) the
90th business day after the 2024
Results Date.

FERESER FAERLUER
BAf ABARRHEZZ
“METZA=T-HILEFE
MEFEERH (22N
FEERBEAGE EE
UTHEH(UBREERE):
(VR BB R R R T 2l
BEFRABHOBE R()=F=m
FEERBEZOMEEH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

Number of shares
to be issued upon
exercise in full of

the options granted  Vesting conditions

40. BBz Rt 8 (48)

Contractual life of options

REBREEL2ETE
HATRITROHE BEGG BRENSNES
Options granted on 6,339,000 shares The Options granted shall be vested upon achievement Subject to the Options having
15 January 2021 (2022: 6,339,000 of certain vesting conditions (the “2021 Vesting been vested, the Options
and vested to shares) Conditions”) as specified in the offer letter (the granted are exercisable from
employees: "Offer Letter”) of each respective Grantee. the date of publication of
If the 2021 Vesting Conditions applicable to the annual results of the
the relevant Grantee are not achieved, the Company for the year ended
unvested Options granted to such Grantee have 31 December 2023 (the "2023
been cancelled as specified in the Offer Letter. Results Date"”) to the earlier
of (i) the date on which such
The Options have been vested in the proportions being Options lapses in accordance
determined according to each particular Offer letter with the terms of the Share
on the date the 2021 Vesting Conditions applicable Option Scheme; or (ii) the 90th
to the relevant Grantee are achieved. business day after the 2023
Results Date.
RZEZ—%5—-F 6339000 (ZZ== MELBRESRSEBARZANENR ([BH  SRRESES  FROERED
THERTRESR  F:6,339,0008%) M) REATANETERGE (22— BB K RAUBARREZ_T_=
BESERE: HERBELEE -HERNEBHARAN TZA=T-BLEFEMNZF

SEC-BEAEREER BTABAEAN
SEBBREEEHANOETE TS

BRENEAMIBARAN T~ ERIHEFEK
EHCHREBERNREENLIELRR -
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41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

(a) List of related parties

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

MNEXRBRABALRS

(a) AEBMALZRE

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the REBEE-_ZE-_ZFR_ZFT=-—

Directors are of the view that the following entities and
persons are related parties to the Group:

Name of the related party
BEAER

Sun Ngai International Investment Limited

("Sun Ngai”)
TEBRREBRAR ([FE])

Zhenjiang Xin Qu
HILH =

Xinyu Rongkai

TZA=ZT—HIEFE  E£RR
TIRRR/AEEZEBEBAL:

Relationship

B &

The Company’s Director, Mr. Xl and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are also
directors of Sun Ngai.

ARAREZREERKNRELNRFEZES -

An associate of the Group.
REBEZBERT] -

A joint venture of the Group, of which the Company, being one of
the two joint venturers, holds an indirectly owned equity interest of
65% and shares joint control of the joint venture.

TRl AEBEZRERE  ARAHERMBAZE T Z—  HMEHEHEH%
BRETARAZAZAERE LREHE-
(b) Transactions with related parties by BEBBMALT RS
2023 2022
—EZ=F —ZF=-=
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B £ FHET THET
Revenue from environmental REBRRERERTE
equipment construction and RS > U 3%
installation services
— Xinyu Rongkai — iRy — 4,295
Rental expenses ek
- Sun Ngai — 960 960
Charges on hazardous waste EREEEEEME
landfill disposal
— Zhenjiang Xin Qu —ETHE 7,118 7,693
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=

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

41 EXRBHEBALTRXS ()

254

(c) Balances with related parties (c) HAERE AL 4&e
Maximum outstanding
balance during the year ended
BEUTEERRARELS
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=F —E--F —EB-=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET THT
Amounts due from customers for Fi—RAELEZANHTE
contract works in relation to EWEP 238
a joint venture
- Xinyu Rongkai —¥FEs - 8,287 8,287 8,287
Accounts payable for charges on £ — 5B & 13 7] 5 B AT 4
hazardous waste landfill disposal  EREVEERENHR 2
in relation to an associate FE1T 8RR
- Zhenjiang Xin Qu —BIHRE 934 576 - -
Other receivables Hi IR
- NCIP —HRRT - - - 988
- Xinyu Rongkai —¥FE 13,435 - 13,435 -
Loan to a joint venture ERT-—RAEE
- Xinyu Rongkai —HFEY 11,083 - 11,083 -
(d) Provision of guarantees to a related party (d) MA@ A TIRHEER
On 25 September 2020, the Company and the joint venturer, as RZZEZZTEFALAZF+THB AR

the joint guarantors, entered into the guarantee agreement with
a bank in the PRC to jointly guarantee the repayment obligations
of Xinyu Rongkai (a 65% indirectly owned joint venture of the
Company) in relation to the bank loan facilities in a total amount
of RMB120,000,000 (approximately HK$132,000,000) and the
guarantee is effective until 31 December 2027, for the purpose
of financing the construction of the integrated hazardous waste
treatment project undertaken by Xinyu Rongkai in Liuzhou,
Guangxi province, the PRC and the guarantee is effective until 31
December 2027.

On 7 December 2022, the Company as the guarantor, entered
into the guarantee agreement with another bank in the PRC
to guarantee the repayment obligations (in the proportion of
65% interests in Xinyu Rongkai) amounted to RMB5,850,000
(approximately HK$6,435,000) in relation to the short term
bank loan being granted to Xinyu Rongkai with a total
amount of RMB9,000,000 (approximately HK$9,900,000)

RHEAEH (EAERERA) &
qﬂl—%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ_ﬁﬂ%ﬁim LA $£
BEERMFLI (A eMEES
S BB RBLBEARARE
120,000,0007T, (#7132,000,0007% Jt.)
ZRTERBE  ZERBXRZE
—tF+=-A=+—8  BMAMA
T4 YL P 2 AR AL R AR B JE 7 A0
ZEBEMSRARIEREREES
ZERBRHPE_T_tF+=-A
=t+—H-

R-ZZE-_—_F+_-_A+tBH ARQAF
EAERAEPES —RIBITHRR]
ERmE AFFRINERTE
B E 45 A K #9,000,0007T (49
9,900,000/ JT) H) i 3R & 75 (&hﬁ
FTFe65% M 5 2 LB 3R A

#5,850,0007T (#96,435,0007% JT) a@

for its purpose of general working capital in the PRC and the BER BERAENFLRIEFRBERNM
guarantee has been extended to 4 December 2027. H—REEES  ZERBIHST
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

Provision of guarantees to a related party
(continued)

The guarantees disclosed above were not recorded at fair
value, as in the opinion of the management, the difference in
the interest rates, by comparing the actual rate charged by the
bank with this guarantee made available, with the estimated
rate that the bank would have charged had the guarantee not
been available, is not material.

The banking facilities of Xinyu Rongkai guaranteed by
the Company amounting to 65% of RMB129,000,000,
(approximately HK$141,900,000) (2022: RMB129,000,000,
approximately HK$145,770,000) of which RMB125,100,000
(approximately HK$137,610,000) (2022: RMB125,100,000,
approximately HK$141,363,000) was utilised, and
loans of approximately RMB63,148,000 (approximately
HK$69,462,000) (2022: RMB93,173,000, approximately
HK$105,285,000) were outstanding as at 31 December
2023 of which approximately RMB55,148,000 (2022:
RMB84,173,000) is repayable on 21 June 2025 and
bearing interest at 4.35% (2022: 4.55%) per annum and
RMB8,000,000 (2022: RMB9,000,000) is repayable on 4
December 2024 and bearing interest at 6.00% (2022: 3.65%)
per annum.

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
and the Company, including amounts paid to the Directors
of the Company as disclosed in note 10 and certain of the
highest paid individual as disclosed in note 11, is presented as
follows:

B % ¥R ok M ORE

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

M EXEHEBALTRXSZ (E)

iy

(d) mB R ALRHEER(E)

BEENERLERATFEAR
HAERERS BBLLBRITAERHK
ZERNBRTER IR = &
RITEL | HEROBER TG
WERH A R 7 ) Z 2K -

RAFIFHEREP65% % 5BR# T4
glIR 1T RE & A& A R #129,000,0007T
(#9141,900,000/87T) (Z ==

A #129,000,0007T (49145,770,000
BIL)) EFEBHAARE
125,100,0007T (#7137,610,0005% JT)
(ZZ2==F : AR¥125,100,0007T
(#9141,363,0008 7)) c R ==
F+-_AZ+—HB XEEEZYH
A R #63,148,0007T (#769,462,0007%
L) (ZZF = —F : AR¥93,173,000
7 (49105,285,000/8 7T)) » Hth 4
A R #455,148,0000T (—Z & = — 4 :
AR #84,173,0000) B —_ZE—H
EXNA-+—HBHBE THRFEMNX
435% (ZB 4% : 455%) 5t 8
& A R #8,000,0007T (ZE ==
AR #9,000,00070) B —F — P04
+Z A BEEE - WiLF FE6.00%
(T4 :365%):t8

e) TEEHEALTZME
AEBRANATEEREATY
B (RIENE10RE 2 BN T A
ARAEFRERMENHEZEN
FTETREFEREFA HIMT -

2023 2022
—s=-= —E-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

(Restated)

(& E7)

Salaries and other benefits H e M H MR 12,228 10,934

Discretionary bonuses (SR EREEAN 1,354 3,744

Contributions to retirement ROKAE FET B R

schemes 1,420 1,265
Equity-settled share-based payment  LARS AR #E 25 5 B4R % 17 1B

expenses AW AAX 489 475

15,491 16,418

CECCEER HFRAREBEBRAT
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 2. Z7EErzeMI A

CATEGORY

The carrying amount of the financial assets and liabilities for each AEBRGEMAZESHRIAZS M

category of the Group's financial instruments as at the end of the BEMBBEREENT :
reporting period are as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= =T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHEIT
Financial assets at amortised cost DSt EZERMEE
Trade and bills receivables FEW R N E g 92,617 106,499
Other receivables b FE YRR 402 4,946
Amount due from a joint venture B —REERERK 13,435 -
Consideration receivable from disposal of HE—FKWBARZ
a subsidiary JE W R AB 10,670 -
Restricted bank deposits IR HIR TR 731 5,225
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBFEIER 186,365 270,279
Financial assets at fair value through ZREMEZEAKZEAFEAER
other comprehensive income ZERMEE
Equity investments at fair value FEBREMEEREEATFENE
through other comprehensive income ZRRAZE
(non-recycling) (AT &leE) 81,500 70,300
Total financial assets TREELR 385,720 457,249
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHAATEZ
kA=K
Bank borrowings RITEE 44,000 97,959
Trade and bills payables JETBR R R R IR 59,392 69,739
Accrued liabilities and other payables FE 5T 8 & & H fth FE A 5118 137,374 218,612
Lease liabilities HEaE 332 667
Total financial liabilities TRIAEAR 241,098 386,977

ERMTANFBRERNGEEMBERRE
B EE

Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % & M

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

43.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF 43. &M T RZ

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonable approximate to fair values, are as follows:

2 TE 5B

REAREBESEMERES 2 A FEME
EEN AEBEZERTAZERER

AFENT :

Carrying amount Fair value
REE A¥E

2023 2022 2023 2022

—E-=f C-—E--f ZCZB-=fF C—ET__F

Note HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ks TET TET FET TET
Financial assets at fair BBHMZENE
value through other BAFEAEZ

comprehensive income SREE

Equity investments at fair value EBHE 2 E K&
through other comprehensive A TEAE Y

income (non-recycling) BRARE (T 28E) 21 81,500 70,300 81,500 70,300

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, financial assets included
in refundable deposits and other receivables, contract assets,
trade payables, financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities
and other payables, deposits received from customers, contract
liabilities, amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximately to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturity of these
instruments. The Directors consider the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost of the Group is determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable markets transactions.

The fair values of non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for the instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group's
own non- performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings
and other borrowings as at 31 December 2023 was assessed to be
insignificant.

EEECDFERELRERASEE B
WERRRE AT RERS REAM
EERFENEREE ARNEE BN
R ﬁ)\ﬁaﬂ%ﬁZFﬁ“ﬁ%ﬁ&E’rﬁz

ENHRE CREPEE AHAEE

W/ ENMBARRE ATE  HE
CEEHRZELAR
DREHAIY BEFRRREATH
BRARBRAAGFEZEREERS

mEZREERSE

RAEECEEEAREZATFERSE

AEBUAEBKAFEZEREERS
MEBEZEEEDREENRERTER
BRHZERETHRBS RSN

EREEMNEEBRL TUETE -

AREBRITEEZERSIE S ZAFED
GRS TNFHMEAE 2T
ﬂZEﬁiﬁﬁ%‘J%%ﬁfﬁi‘Eﬁﬂﬂixiﬁéﬁ

25E - E/\_’giiiﬂ’*ﬂ:‘?’—ﬁ'
RREMEE

iy 1\% ?ﬂ EE R

AREBEBRFFF BIRTT
LA EITR R T aﬁﬁi%iﬁ%ﬂ

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA

259



258

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

43.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity investments in plastic materials
dyeing have been estimated based on assumption that are not
supported by observable market prices or rates. The valuation
requires the Directors of the Company to make estimates using
the enterprise value to earnings before interest and tax ratio of
comparable listed companies adjusted for discount on lack of
marketability. The Directors believe that the estimated fair value
resulting from the valuation methodology, which are recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable and they were appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period on recurring basis, which categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market date are available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

43.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF 43. &M T EZAFEFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (%48)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEEER(E)
- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant - M_Jﬁﬁ EATAERGR 2
unobservable inputs. EEHBTEATE-
2023 202
3=z i St -2
Fair value Fair value
at31 at 31
December December
2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
iy B®
—B-=F - St -2
t=A T4
=+—HZ =+-H2
AYE %-B %8 B=RE ATE F-F F_E =
Note  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Mgk TR TR TiER TR FEL FEL FET FET
Unlisted equity investments at fair value EBZM2ARZHATE
through other comprehensive income A8 2 3 Fiifk AR i% 4
(non- recycling) (radlE) 21 81,500 - - 81,500 70,300 - - 70300
During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no transfers REBE_Z_=F+-_A=+—HIL*F
between level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3 (2022: B ﬂzﬂﬁ’\‘% —EBEREF_EBHEEE -
Nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of FEANELE=ZB(ZT__F: &) -
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which ZK%IZE&%%J‘S"E%%EE’U?&%E@X
they occur. HRAFEERENER -
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements: FZEATEFEZAER
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Key data applied
fEERE EXATABRABAEE TEERAEE
2023 2022
—E-= -
Unlisted equity investments in plastic Market comparable Discount for lack of
materials dyeing companies marketability 15.94% 15.50%
BREEY M5 A& LB AR HhZ S REE
FEMBRARE ZiTE
EV/EBIT ratio 16.65 17.55
EV/EBITEL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

43.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF A3.&EMIEZATEHFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (%48)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEER(E)
The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the ANEEFEERZ TSR MEIINE A
discount for lack of marketability. As at 31 December 2023, it was BM-MZ—ZTZ=F+=-_A=+—8 1
estimated that with all other variables held constant, a decrease/ ARMEHMESERFEIE  RZWIHR
increase in discount for lack of marketability by 5% would have BIEFHRLD EMS% B AEE 2
increased/decreased the Group’s other comprehensive income by fth 2> T Wz 38 00,8 424,900,000 7T (=
HK$4,900,000 (2022: HK$4,100,000). T4 1 4,100,000 L) ©
The movements during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair value FRNEZEBATEGEZHHEFHOT :

measurements are follows:

2023 2022
—E=-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHEIT
Unlisted equity investments: FLTREARE :
At 1 January w—HF—H 70,300 80,800
Net unrealised profit/(loss) in fair value R E AL 2 S TR
recognised in other comprehensive ANFEZARER
income wmA S (E51E) F 5 11,200 (10,500)
At 31 December W+=—RA=+—H 81,500 70,300
44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 B FEREE B R RER
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
The main risk arising from the Group’s financial instruments are KEASEeMTAZEFZRRAINE
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity BB - F R R B {5 R &R E R
risk. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk e AEBFEHZERRE KAEHE
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage EEZERABZUERABREERRLE
these risks are described below. BT o
(a) Foreign currency risk (a) HIMNE = Bz
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated REBARFPEERABREDNASE
in HK$ or RMB, which are same as the functional currencies THAREE HAEEEERSE
of the relevant group entities. The Group undertakes certain I EE - REBETET
transactions denominated in foreign currencies, and hence LASNEE T E 222 5 - AT 5| B £
exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Group fEERBER AEEWTES
does not expect any significant exposure to foreign exchange ABRERIIERBSRK  RRES
fluctuations and shall use derivative contracts to hedge against FERSTFERATEEGNEPEERE
its exposure to currency risk only when it is required. The % o 7N £E B LA 27 1) B 400 1 SR
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring IR ERINE RS o

the movement of the foreign currency rate.

260  New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44 . FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

Since the interest-bearing borrowings have fixed interest rates,
there was no significant interest rate risk as at the end of the
reporting period.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables, other receivables contract assets and loan
to a joint venture. The Group's exposure to credit risk arising
from cash and cash equivalents and bills receivables is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial institutions
for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

Trade and lease receivables

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
in industries or countries in which the customers operate.
Significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual customers. At
the end of the reporting period 1.3% (2022: 2.4%) and 5.6%
(2022: 5.5%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade and lease
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is
calculated using a provision matrix.

31 December 2023

B % ¥R ok M ORE

—EZ=F+=ZA=1+—H

44 MHEREE BT RER

(48)
(b) 7= B
RMEHKR ARTEEERAE

FERE - FEEEANRER -

EERR
FERREHFIRERANEE
MEFAKEELMBER - A%
B (= EE R 25 ERERRR
HMEKARBENEE RERT
—REERE HBFHTRRITK
TREE AEERREEERR
BE #ASEERERLERRES
HEREUEBELEZEERRA
MR o

RAZEERRAGAFBRREK
FEEEREEZREE K=
E-=F+-A=+—H F5H
W EE R AERT < A KBS
EERR -

JEM AR R FEW B 50 H
REEERFAEETERBERA
WEEBREFHNEERR -EXE
EEPRBRETEAE AL EHEME
BEFEEAEHARBEE - K
BEER BUERBEEZ1.3%
(CE-F :24%)5.6% (=%
TZF55%) DRl AARERE &
REFPRAREFE ZHERFIE -

AEEZAEFRE2HMEREEER
2 & BART 8 WOR SR K B WOE &R
RZEREE RSB IIEHAR
WREMESE -

BoCFEFR FFRREEARAF

261



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

gl 31 December 2023 —ZE-=%+-F=+—H

44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BB EREE B R RBUR
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (%48)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (o0 =ERR (&)
ECL rates are based on actual loss experience over the past EHEEBEBEDNERBA=SF
3 years, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, MEREELR BEBAEER
and an assessment of both the current and forecast of general RETHE) RRERFHIBERE
economic conditions at the end of the reporting period over Bz 5 HACR Y B AT R R R EE R A
the expected lives of the receivables. At 31 December 2023, BERZAE - T _=F+=_A
lifetime ECL of trade and lease receivables in the amount of =+—H AEBEDFIREKER
HK$23,396,000 (2022: HK$41,388,000) was provided as REWEEREZ 2 HAHEER
amount of impairment measured under the ECL model. 18 B 523,396,000 T (Z &2 = =

£ : 41,388,000/ 7T) - tEAIRIETE
HEEEXGFEZRESE -

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure AT &S BEBRAREEMETER
on the Group's trade and lease receivables using a provision SEERERREREEREZE
matrix: BRBEEER

As at 31 December 2023 R-ZB-=F+=ZA=+—H

Trade and lease receivables

EWERRELEERE
Days past due
BHAY
More than More than
30 but 120 but
Not yet due Less than less than less than More than
or current 30 days 120 days 360 days 360 days Total
%1308 %MM20A
REBHHNE HH308  BHR1208  BHR360H %1360 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THEL THEL TET TET
Expected credit loss rate ~ EHIEEFEXR 3.89% 7.86% 23.44% 25.13% 76.93% 20.17%
Gross carrying amount FEHLE 69,610 11,606 8,235 4,993 21,569 116,013
Loss allowance BRAR 2,705 913 1,930 1,255 16,593 23,39
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3 Z2==F+=-A=+—H

HHRREBUR

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued)

31 December 202

44 BTG R E

(#8)
(©)

EERRE (%)

As at 31 December 2022 RZE-_—F+=-A=+—8H
Trade and lease receivables
R R EREEE
Days past due
jal =k
More than More than
30 but 120 but
Not yet due Less than less than less than More than
or current 30 days 120 days 360 days 360 days Total
%M30A %1208
RIHS A D308 BAR1208 BAHR360R %1360 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FER FER FETL FET
Expected credit loss rate FEEEFER 0.38% 0.63% 0.84% 53.51% 90.43% 27.99%
Gross carrying amount FHEE 61,202 14,529 22,043 12,020 38,093 147,887
Loss allowance EEEE 234 92 184 6,432 34,446 41,388

Movement in the credit loss allowance account in respect of
trade and lease receivables during the reporting period is as

FEU R R e R B 5RIR 2 EE &
EREeENRERAZEEHIT

follows:
2023 2022
—E-=fF —_E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
At 1 January n—AB—H 41,388 41,166
Impairment loss recognised: EWRBREERE:
— continuing operations —HREREEY 5,100 17,016
— discontinued operation — BRI EER = 1,203
Impairment loss reversed: EREZRAERE -
— continuing operations —RHEEEER (20,772) (14,831)
— discontinued operation — BRI EET (1.162) -
(16,834) 3,388
Amount written off HiE < & (289) -
Exchange adjustments B 5, B (869) (3,166)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 23,396 41,388

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade and lease receivables contributed to the
decrease in the loss allowance:

- decrease in amounts past due more than 360
days resulted in a decrease in loss allowance of
HK$17,853,000.

JE W PR R K e W A B ROR R BB
ZATEXRBBEREBREERD

- B HEIHE360H 2 & B D E
BB R R4 17,853,000/8 7T °

TE_EEER HFERREBERAA
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—E==Ff+=A=+—H

44 . FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(0)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk arising from loan to a joint venture

The Group regularly monitors the business performance
of the joint venture. The Group's credit risk in this balance
is mitigated through the value of the assets held by the
joint venture and the power to jointly control the relevant
activities of the entity. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Group assessed the ECL for loan to a joint venture is
insignificant and thus no credit loss allowance is recognised.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity through maintaining a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank borrowings, banking facilities, and other
interest-bearing borrowings. In management of the liquidity
risk, the Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
considered adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation
in cash flows. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity
requirements and its compliance of financial covenants, and
ensures sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer terms. As at 31
December 2023, the Group did not have any available secured
banking facilities not yet drawn down and the unsecured
banking facilities not yet drawn down by the Group were
approximately HK$153,300,000 (2022: HK$39,041,000).

Liquidity needs are monitored on a day-to-day basis.
Long-term liquidity needs for a 360-day lookout period are
identified monthly. Funding for long-term liquidity needs
will be considered when there is any potential investment
identified. For term loans subject to repayment on demand
clauses which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion,
the following table shows the cash outflow based on the
contractual repayment schedule and, separately, the impact of
the timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
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B AR KR

31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BB EREE B R RBUR
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (%48)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) mEptERbR ()
The following table details the remaining contractual TRAMNBEARETEEEHE
maturities at the end of the reporting period for the BEER NEHENEA ZFF1E - HiRE
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual SRARFIRE @B I AREE AT
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the Group can ERERZGFARREE

be required to pay:

As at 31 December 2023
R-B-=%+-A=1+-H

Total
Carrying undiscounted  Less than 1to3 3 months 1to  More than
amount cash flows 1 month months  to 1year 5 years 5 years
AFRRE

RAEE REEE SHMEA  1E3MER EAEIE 1255 BIB5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET T T TET TET

Financial liabilities ~ £REE

Bank borrowings BOEE
- at fixed rates —REFEH®E 44,000 45,085 - - 45,085 - -
Trade and bills payables [EFTEEF R 245 59,392 59,392 38,207 8,444 12,741 - =

Accrued liabilities and ~ [EEBREREM

other payables JEf5B 137,374 137,374 26,685 1,169 109,520 - =
Lease liabilities HERE 332 341 28 57 256 - -
241,098 242,192 64,920 9,670 167,602 - -

As at 31 December 2022
RZEZZF+-A=1—H

Total
Carrying  undiscounted Less than Tt03 3 months Tto  Morethan
amount cash flows 1 month months to 1 year 5 years 5 years
ATRES
REE nERE  SMER 1237 3EAZIE 1255 HESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TEL TR TR TAT TAT TAL

Financial liabilities ~ £®E®E

Bank borrowings BOREE

- at variable rates B 25,300 25,949 7,751 7,746 10,452 - -

- at fixed rates - RETH = 72,659 74,044 - - 74,044 - -
Trade and bills payables ERERHRER 69,739 69,739 33,598 8,859 27,282 - -
Accrued liabilities and ~ fEEt & ER A

other payables JEft 3R 218,612 218,612 50,434 3,895 164,283 - -
Lease liabilities HEER 667 700 29 58 263 350 -

386,977 389,044 91,812 20,558 276,324 350 =
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NOTES TO THE FINLANCIAL STATEMENTS
._ Br & ¥R &k M &
l 31 December 2023 —Z-=%F+-F=+—H
44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 A EREEBERBKR
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (#8)

(e) Capital management (e) BEAEIRE

The Group's capital management objectives are: REBZERABEBGZNT :

(i)  to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going )y WREAXEEEERDATUNGE
concern; g

(i) to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for (i) ARBRRERE WK A EMF]
other stakeholders; AB B AT R A 5

(i)  to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the (i) REKEELEBEUERE
cost of capital; PN

(iv)  to support the Group's sustainable growth; and (v) ZFHAEEZAIHERE:

IS4
(v)  to provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers V) ABEEAHREEBREER -

and acquisitions.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes REFERTEHERNEEWRELHE
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions RELAHHEEE RARMEEFHER
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To BREE - R THIFLAERELRR
maintain and adjust the capital structure, the Group will adjust BAEEEARINTREZR
the dividend payment to shareholders, issue new shares, buy B BTHK BRKG - 2175
back its shares, issue new debts or redeem existing debts. BBk EER A ES -

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to AR E) S H A B R B A A
any externally imposed capital requirements. HNERE AR HE o

There was no change in the objectives, policies or process for REE_ZT_=Fk=_F=_=
managing the capital during the years ended 31 December +ZA=+—BLEFEN HEE
2023 and 2022. WERERZ BFE  BEHLRER -
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31 December 2023 —ZE-_=F+_-A=+—H

44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44 BB RABEEEHERBR

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (48)

(e) Capital management (continued) (e) BAEIE (&)
AEEBZBEABELXREEHSE
Ko REBFEHfHFEERAGELL
RES0%UAAN - R ZE-=F K=

The Group monitors its capital using gearing ratio. The Group
expects to maintain its gearing ratio at less than 50%. The
gearing ratios as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as

follows: EoFTA=T—RAZEESA
B EmMT
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current liabilities REEE

Bank borrowings RITIEE 44,000 97,959
Lease liabilities HEAE 332 326
44,332 98,285

Non-current liabilities FREAE
Lease liabilities HEaE = 341
Total interest-bearing debts FFEEKARE 44,332 98,626
Total equity FEY S 1,013,359 1,075,507
Gearing ratio EESELER 4.4% 9.2%

TECCEER HFRARSEEERAA
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45.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 45 A B HBAR AR F
OF THE COMPANY

2023 2022
—E-= S

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5E FE T FET

Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RBRAR Z e 618,933 626,772

Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 28,690 49,270
Prepayments TET IR 511 509
Cash and cash equivalents HekERIEEEHE 20,633 25,548
49,834 75,327
Current liabilities REBaE

Bank borrowings RITEE = 25,300
Accrued liabilities and other payables [E&T & 18 K H fib JE [~ 78 781 531
781 25,831
Net current assets RBEEFE 49,053 49,496
Total assets HWEE 668,767 702,099
Total assets less current liabilities REERAREBERS 667,986 676,268
Total liabilities weE 781 25,831
Net assets BERE 667,986 676,268

Capital and reserves BEXR#EE
Share capital A& X 35 30,357 30,357
Reserves i 36 637,629 645,911
Total equity RA4BEE 667,986 676,268
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46. CONTINGENCIES

(a)

Legal contingencies

Legal proceedings were in process against NUET(JS), an 82%
indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Hong Kong. Two existing shareholders (each a “Plaintiff”,
Mr. YIN Yong Xiang and Mr. SUN Jia Qing, both are the
existing directors of Zhenjiang New Universe and each
holding 8% of the issued share capital of NUET(JS)) actioned
separately against NUET(JS) and alleged that NUET(JS)
should immediately pay each Plaintiff accrued and unpaid
dividends of approximately HK$26,579,000 (approximately
RMB22,478,000) and interest thereon in the amount of
approximately RMB4,058,000 (the “Actions”). In connection
with the Actions, Jiangsu Zhenjiang Intermediate People’s
Court (the “Court”) had approved each of the Plaintiffs’
applications to grant each of them an asset preservation order
to preserve (the “Asset Preservation”) 38.54% of the equity
rights of Zhenjiang New Universe, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of NUET(JS) in the PRC, with effect from 18 March 2022 and,
unless extended, will last until the earlier of 17 March 2025 or
until the Asset Preservation is lifted by the Court. Although the
Court handed down two civil judgments dated 4 January 2023
and 5 January 2023 in respect of the two Actions respectively,
both Plaintiffs did not admit to the judgments of the Court
and have each submitted a civil appeal both dated 29 January
2023 to request for (i) the revocation of the judgments of the
Court; and (ii) NUET(JS) to bear the respective judged costs of
the Actions.

The civil appeals have been transferred to and heard in the
Jiangsu Province High People’s Court in Mainland China for
trial. As such Actions are still ongoing, the Asset Preservations
will continue to remain in effect.

The Group has already recognised the amounts being claimed
under the Actions as dividends payable to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary under accrued liabilities and other
payables in the consolidated financial statements (note 30)
but no provision has been recognised for any interest claimed
under the Actions on those accumulative and rolling amounts
payable to the non-controlling interests without fixed terms of
payment.

As at 31 December 2023, the amounts accrued in the
consolidated financial statements for both Plaintiffs were
approximately HK$51,080,000 (2022: HK$53,504,000).

31 December 2023

B % ¥R ok M ORE

—EZ=F+=ZA=1+—H

46. LA EIR

(a)

SRR AEIR
FEINUETUS)M A R F AR E A R
o NUET(S)Z A8 2 8 A & 7 5 it
LRI R A82% MM B A T -
MEBRBRR(ZEARIRE]
BKELRERRRELE HA
EIIHTFHNBRIEES Sa8A
NUET(S)E 1T IR AN #)8% ) 79 Kl A
NUETUS)$E tH 3F 52 + 37 2 FBNUET(JS)
Y NERREETRMATR
B #926,579,0008 7T (R AR
22,478,0007T) R EF BHARE
4,058,0007T ([#F#A)) < BLEFFA M
TARBIHEAEIMRRARK
BR(CARRD BHERS RENEHEBR
HEABHEVER2SUR2 ([H
ERE])EITIHF38.54% M I -
ST #15 2NUETUS)AE 1 B A Hb Y
2EMBRA WEREZEBEZ-ZT
TEZATNBBER  BRIES
B TRABFEE_T_AF
= A+t B EAR BRI ER
2UUABREERE) AL - BREER
DR —_E-_=F—ANEE_-E
—=ZF—ARARZMEBEAIRFR
EHEMEREBH R MEBEREHT
ROEBTEEAR T A RRBER=ZF
Z=F—-AZt+hBERRXRTREE
FF o B SRG)VRUSE A BT ;&R ¢ R
NUETUS)E ¥ ZsF A B EUR VA E X
$ °

ZERELHECBRINGTER
WIEHERRAREREE - R
ZEFRDDEESTH  BERZH
rEEX -

AEBEEEFEMBRRIEZSE
FAFMBRNEHEEDRRETBE
REMEMNFBERATHEN K
(P NCIEIS g S v $s (i
30) - BERRURFRF LR AE
[E] TE 1 75 HA ) 8 1 JF 4% P 4 5 SKOR
R4 % 5 F AR B R V(AR B RE R
Bifh o

RZFZ=F+=ZA=+—80 ' &
RAEMBEHRERPUMA RS D ERT
2 & B # 451,080,000 T (==
— —4% :53,504,00087T) °

CECCZEER FFRREBEBRAF

269



270

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MO o MR

@ils: 31 December 2023

—E==Ff+=A=+—H

46. CONTINGENCIES (continued)

47.

48.

(b)

Environmental contingencies

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
subsidiaries have provided regulated medical waste treatment
and disposal services to hospitals and medical clinics, and
provided hazardous industrial waste treatment services
and industrial sewage treatment and disposal services in
Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The related operations require
valid operating permission licences for processing specific
categories of hazardous waste and/or regulated medical
waste and industrial sewage treatment services issued by
the Environmental Protection Department of the Jiangsu
Province, the PRC. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
each of the Group's subsidiaries which carries out treatment
operations for hazardous industrial waste treatment and/
or regulated medical waste and industrial sewage treatment
services has complied with the relevant regulations to ensure
continuous renewal of the licences concerned with best
efforts, or otherwise, the subsidiary would cease its operations
temporarily until the relevant licence(s) is being issued. Save
as disclosed therein, for the year ended 31 December 2023
and up to the date of this report, the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC have not incurred significant expenditures for
environmental remediation and have not currently involved
in any significant environmental remediation. In addition, the
Company and the Group'’s subsidiaries in the PRC have not
accrued any amounts for environmental remediation relating
to its operations. Under existing legislations and regulations,
the management believes that there are no probable liabilities
that will have a material adverse effect to the financial position
or operating results of the Group.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no other significant contingent
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed a final
dividend. Details are disclosed in note 13(a).

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified or restated due
to the presentation for the discontinued operation during the year,
as disclosed in note 5, and to conform with the current year's
presentation.
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49.POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND

INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1

BEGHENEIR BT

Amendments to HKAS 1

BAEGHENE IR 2B

Amendments to HKFRS 16

BB BREERE 165 2ER]

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

BEGHERNETR REB B RS %R
%7‘7‘);72{? 7

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 5 (Revised)

AEHERUBEREZREZES)
—BREFESFKUSETA)

Amendments to HKAS 21

BERGETERE2HK ZEET

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BEVBRESEANFE 10 LT B ER
F285 2 ER]
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31 December 2023

o

=

=¥+=-A=+—H

9.8 Z-_FE-_=F+=A8

Z+—HLEFEEHEME

RIEFEE®
HRER AR o
ERENAR -

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

DEABRRBIIERD

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

MERENFERDEE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

ERECNNEEAR

Supplier Finance Arrangements
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Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause
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Lack of Exchangeability
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Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an
Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture
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49.POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2023 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

50. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors of the Company on 22 March 2024.
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